

GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY 2000 North Santa Fe Avenue, Vista, California 92083 Phone (760) 631-8500 Website www.guajome.net

Administration

Humphrey, Kevin Superintendent

Thompson, Judd Head of School

Arias, Lindsay Admin of GPPA

Perkins, Katy Admin of School Culture and Climate

Sterner, Mike Admin of Intervention and Student Support Through innovation and excellence, our mission is to inspire and empower all learners to become responsible, critically thinking, compassionate global citizens who approach the future with curiosity, courage and resolve.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING Agenda September 7, 2023

Board of Directors Meeting Public Session 4:00 p.m.

Building 1, Student Services Building Administration Training Center

Board of Directors

McAfee, Anna, Chair Duffy, Debbie, Vice Chair Harper, Sylvia Kildoo, Steve Semrow, Casey

Student Board Representatives

	Agenda	<u>Presenter</u>	Action/ Information
1.	PUBLIC SESSION- CALL TO ORDER (4:00 p.m.) Roll call and establishment of quorum: Pledge of Allegiance	Anna McAfee	
2.	APPROVAL OF AGENDA Recommended motion: The Board of Directors approve the agenda for the September 7, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting	Anna McAfee	Action
3.	PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS The Board welcomes and encourages public comments. Each Individual will be allotted a maximum of three minutes to address the Board. The Board will limit the total agenda time for public input to 20 minutes.		
4.	PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS The Board welcomes and encourages public comments. Each Individual will be allotted a maximum of three minutes to address the Board. The Board will limit the total agenda time for public input to 20 minutes		
5.	HEAD OF SCHOOL REPORT	Judd Thompson	
6.	SUPERINTENDENT REPORT A. General Updates	Kevin Humphrey	
7.	PUBLIC HEARING A. The public will be given opportunity to provide testimony on a proposal regarding the Educational Protection Account.	Anna McAfee	

8. FISCAL SERVICES

A.	Educational Protection Account	Charterwise	Action
B.	Unaudited Actuals 2022/2023	Charterwise	Information
C.	Special Education Allocation Plan	Kevin Humphrey	Action
D.	Job Description- GESS Student Worker	Kevin Humphrey	Action
E.	GPA and GLC MOU Agreement Update	Kevin Humphrey	Action
F.	Stipend Schedule Update	Kevin Humphrey	Action
G.	Non Public Agency Master Contracts and MOU	Karen Whitworth	Action

The purpose of the consent calendar motion is to expedite action on routine agenda items. All agenda action items that are not held for discussion at the request member of the audience or Board member will be approved as written as part of a single motion Consent Calendar Motion. Action items designated or held for discussion will be acted upon individually.

9. CONSENT CALENDAR

Anna McAfee

Action

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. August 3, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting

B. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES

Science Camp- 5th Grade

10. COMMUNICATION FROM THE BOARD

Anna McAfee

11. PROPOSED AGENDA ITEMS FOR UPCOMING MEETINGS

Anna McAfee

12. FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES

October 3, 2023

November 2, 2023

December 7, 2023

13. ADJOURNMENT

Anna McAfee

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities. Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to the Office of the Charter School Superintendent at (760) 631-8500, Ext. 1222, at least 72 hours before the Board meeting.

GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY

AGENDA ITEM 8A

TO:

Board of Directors

FROM:

Superintendent

DATE:

September 7, 2023

SUBJECT:

EPA Spending Report

This presentation will provide details on how the Education Protection Account funds were spent during the 2022-23 school year. Guajome Park Academy received \$1,098,260 for this fund from the state and 100% of that money was spent on approved expenditures.

RECOMMENDATION:

Administration recommends the approval of the EPA Spending Report.

Prepared by:

Stephanie Whitehouse

Approved by:

Kevin Humphrey, Superintendent

2022-23 Education Protection Account Program by Resource Report Expenditures by Function - Detail

Guajome Park Academy Expenditures July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023-Actual Expenditures For Fund 01, Resource 1400 Education Protection Account

Description	Object Codes	Amount
AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR		
Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance	9791-9795	0.00
Revenue Limit Sources	8010-8099	1,098,260.00
Federal Revenue	8100-8299	0.00
Other State Revenue	8300-8599	0.00
Other Local Revenue	8600-8799	0.00
All Other Financing Sources and Contributions	8900-8999	0.00
Deferred Revenue	9650	0.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE		1,098,260.00
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES	Function Codes	
(Objects 1000-7999)		
Instruction	1000-1999	1,098,260.00
Instruction-Related Services		
Instructional Supervision and Administration	2100-2150	0.00
AU of a Multidistrict SELPA	2200	0.00
Instructional Library, Media, and Technology	2420	0.00
Other Instructional Resources	2490-2495	0.00
School Administration	2700	0.00
Pupil Services		
Guidance and Counseling Services	3110	0.00
Psychological Services	3120	0.00
Attendance and Social Work Services	3130	0.00
Health Services	3140	0.00
Speech Pathology and Audiology Services	3150	0.00
Pupil Testing Services	3160	0.00
Pupil Transportation	3600	0.00
Food Services	3700	0.00
Other Pupil Services	3900	0.00
Ancillary Services	4000-4999	0.00
Community Services	5000-5999	0.00
Enterprise	6000-6999	0.00
General Administration	7000-7999	0.00
Plant Services	8000-8999	0.00
Other Outgo	9000-9999	0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES		1,098,260.00
BALANCE (Total Available minus Total Expenditures and Other Finan	cing Uses)	0.00

GUAJOME ACADEMY PARK CHARTER SCHOOL RESOLUTION REGARDING THE EDUCATION PROTECTION ACCOUNT

WHEREAS, the voters approved Proposition 30 on November 6, 2012;

WHEREAS, Proposition 30 added Article XIII, Section 36 to the California Constitution effective November 7, 2012;

WHEREAS, the provisions of Article XIII, Section 36(e) create in the state General Fund an Education Protection Account to receive and disburse the revenues derived from the incremental increases in taxes imposed by Article XIII, Section 36(f);

WHEREAS, before June 30th of each year, the Director of Finance shall estimate the total amount of additional revenues, less refunds that will be derived from the incremental increases in tax rates made pursuant to Article XIII, Section 36(f) that will be available for transfer into the Education Protection Account during the next fiscal year;

WHEREAS, if the sum determined by the State Controller is positive, the State Controller shall transfer the amount calculated into the Education Protection Account within ten days preceding the end of the fiscal year;

WHEREAS, all monies in the Education Protection Account are hereby continuously appropriated for the support of school districts, county offices of education, charter schools and community college districts;

WHEREAS, monies deposited in the Education Protection Account shall not be used to pay any costs incurred by the Legislature, the Governor or any agency of state government;

WHEREAS, a community college district, county office of education, school district, or charter school shall have the sole authority to determine how the monies received from the Education Protection Account are spent in the school or schools within its jurisdiction;

WHEREAS, the governing board of the district shall make the spending determinations with respect to monies received from the Education Protection Account in open session of a public meeting of the governing board;

WHEREAS, the monies received from the Education Protection Account shall not be used for salaries or benefits for administrators or any other administrative cost;

WHEREAS, each community college district, county office of education, school district and charter school shall annually publish on its Internet website an accounting of how much money was received from the Education Protection Account and how that money was spent;

WHEREAS, the annual independent financial and compliance audit required of community college districts, county offices of education, school districts and charter schools shall ascertain and verify whether the funds provided from the Education Protection Account have been properly disbursed and expended as required by Article XIII, Section 36 of the California Constitution;

WHEREAS, expenses incurred by community college districts, county offices of education, school districts and charter schools to comply with the additional audit requirements of Article XIII, Section 36 may be paid with funding from the Education Protection Act and shall not be considered administrative costs for purposes of Article XIII, Section 36.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED:

- 1. The monies received from the Education Protection Account shall be spent as required by Article XIII, Section 36 and the spending determinations on how the money will be spent shall be made in open session of a public meeting of the governing board of GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY Charter School;
- 2. In compliance with Article XIII, Section 36(e), with the California Constitution, the governing board of GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY Charter School has determined to spend the monies received from the Education Protection Act as attached.

DATED:	, 2023	Board Member
*		Board Member
		Board Member
		Board Member
		Board Member

GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY

AGENDA ITEM 8B

TO:

Board of Directors

FROM:

Superintendent

DATE:

September 7, 2023

SUBJECT: Unaudited Actuals Report

This presentation will detail the final financial position of Guajome Park Academy as of June 30, 2023. Detail is provided for all expenditures, revenues, assets, and fund balance. These values are official prior to any audit adjustments that may be made once our audit report is completed by Wilkinson, Hadley, King & Co. LLP A follow up presentation will be made once the audit report is finalized.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

RECOMMENDATION:

Information

Prepared by:

Stephanie Whitehouse

Approved by:

Kevin Humphrey, Superintendent

		2022-23 PROPOSED BUDGET	2022-23 FIRST INTERIM	2022-23 SECOND INTERIM	2022-23 UNAUDITED ACTUALS	2023-24 PROJECTED BUDGET	2024-25 PROJECTED BUDGET
A. REVENUES							
1) Revenue Limit Sources	8010-8099	14,906,706	15,263,547	14,925,396	14,909,166	15,747,647	16,380,804
2) Federal Revenues	8100-8299	1,884,544	2,505,801	2,505,801	2,834,258	3,504,519	1,159,535
3) Other State Revenues	8300-8599	574,365	1,036,330	1,027,980	3,162,559	942,146	2,856,562
4) Other Local Revenues	8600-8799	1,789,388	1,353,987	1,329,059	1,592,290	1,460,058	1,460,058
5) TOTAL REVENUES		19,155,004	20,159,665	19,788,236	22,498,272	21,654,370	21,856,959
B. EXPENDITURES							
Certificated Salaries	1000-1999	9,206,573	8,795,197	9,009,661	8,822,232	9,335,691	9,710,986
2) Classified Salaries	2000-2999	1,854,531	2,090,882	2,142,086	2,128,207	2,183,052	2,270,810
3) Employee Fringes	3000-3999	4,147,914	4,442,640	4,495,304	5,080,978	4,683,725	4,831,110
*Bonus Consideration	1000-3999						
4) Books, Supplies, Non-Capital Equip	4000-4999	804,376	1,363,840	1,363,840	1,332,167	1,499,379	1,465,421
Services, Other Operating Exp	5000-5999	2,655,860	3,642,768	3,804,764	3,837,205	3,333,675	3,407,017
6) Capital Outlay	6000-6999	-	171,579	171,772	161,441	171,579	171,579
7) Other Outgo	7100-7299	-	-	-	-	-	-
8) Direct Support/Indirect Costs	7300-7399	-	-	-	1	-	
9) TOTAL EXPENDITURES		18,669,254	20,506,908	20,987,427	21,362,231	21,207,101	21,856,922
			(0.47.0.40)	(4.400.404)	1 100 011	447.000	
C. EXCESS/DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER	REXPENDITURES	485,749	(347,243)	(1,199,191)	1,136,041	447,269	37
	REXPENDITURES	485,749	(347,243)	(1,199,191)	1,136,041	447,269	37
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES	REXPENDITURES	485,749	(347,243)	(1,199,191)	1,136,041	447,269	37
	REXPENDITURES	485,749	(347,243)	(1,199,191)	1,136,041	447,269	37
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES	8910-8929	485,749	(347,243)	(1,199,191)	1,136,041	-	-
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers		485,749 - -	(347,243) - -	(1,199,191) - -	1,136,041 - -	447,269 - -	- -
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers a) Transfers In	8910-8929	485,749 - -	(347,243) - -	(1,199,191 <u>)</u> - -	1,136,041 - -	- -	- -
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers a) Transfers In b) Transfers Out	8910-8929	485,749 - - -	(347,243) - - -	(1,199,191 <u>)</u> - - -	1,136,041 - -	- - -	- - -
 D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers a) Transfers In b) Transfers Out 2) Other Sources/Uses 	8910-8929 7410-7429	485,749 - - - -	(347,243) - - -	(1,199,191 <u>)</u> - - - -	1,136,041 - - -	- - - -	- - -
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers a) Transfers In b) Transfers Out 2) Other Sources/Uses a) Sources	8910-8929 7410-7429 8930-8979 7430-7499	485,749 - - - - -	(347,243) - - - - -	(1,199,191) - - - - -		- - - -	- - - -
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers a) Transfers In b) Transfers Out 2) Other Sources/Uses a) Sources b) Uses	8910-8929 7410-7429 8930-8979 7430-7499	- - - -	- - - -	(1,199,191) - - - -		- - - -	- - - -
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers a) Transfers In b) Transfers Out 2) Other Sources/Uses a) Sources b) Uses	8910-8929 7410-7429 8930-8979 7430-7499 ≣S	- - - -	- - - -	(1,199,191) - - - - - (1,199,191)	1,136,041 - - - - - 1,136,041	- - - -	- - - - - -
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers a) Transfers In b) Transfers Out 2) Other Sources/Uses a) Sources b) Uses 3) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USI E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BAL	8910-8929 7410-7429 8930-8979 7430-7499 ≣S	- - - -	- - - -	- - - -	- - - -	- - - -	- - - -
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers a) Transfers In b) Transfers Out 2) Other Sources/Uses a) Sources b) Uses 3) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USE E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BAL F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES	8910-8929 7410-7429 8930-8979 7430-7499 ES	- - - - - 485,749	(347,243)	- - - - (1,199,191)	- - - - 1,136,041	- - - - - 447,269	- - - - -
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers a) Transfers In b) Transfers Out 2) Other Sources/Uses a) Sources b) Uses 3) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USI E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BAL F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 1) Beginning Balance/July 1	8910-8929 7410-7429 8930-8979 7430-7499 ≣S	- - - - - - 485,749	(347,243)	(1,199,191)	1,136,041 16,817,694	- - - - - 447,269	- - - - - 37
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers a) Transfers In b) Transfers Out 2) Other Sources/Uses a) Sources b) Uses 3) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USI E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BAL F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 1) Beginning Balance/July 1 2) Ending Balance	8910-8929 7410-7429 8930-8979 7430-7499 ES	- - - - - 485,749	(347,243)	- - - - (1,199,191)	- - - - 1,136,041	- - - - - 447,269	- - - - -
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers a) Transfers In b) Transfers Out 2) Other Sources/Uses a) Sources b) Uses 3) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USI E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BAL F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 1) Beginning Balance/July 1 2) Ending Balance Components of Fund Balance	8910-8929 7410-7429 8930-8979 7430-7499 ES	485,749 17,872,426 18,358,175	(347,243) 16,460,765 16,113,522	(1,199,191) 16,460,765 15,261,574	1,136,041 16,817,694 17,953,734	447,269 16,113,522 16,560,792	- - - - - 16,560,792 16,560,828
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers a) Transfers In b) Transfers Out 2) Other Sources/Uses a) Sources b) Uses 3) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USE E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BAL F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 1) Beginning Balance/July 1 2) Ending Balance Components of Fund Balance Restricted for Econ Uncert.	8910-8929 7410-7429 8930-8979 7430-7499 ES	485,749 	(347,243) 16,460,765 16,113,522 615,207	(1,199,191) 16,460,765 15,261,574 629,623	1,136,041 16,817,694 17,953,734 640,867	447,269 16,113,522 16,560,792 636,213	- - - - - - - 16,560,792 16,560,828 655,708
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers a) Transfers In b) Transfers Out 2) Other Sources/Uses a) Sources b) Uses 3) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USI E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BAL F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 1) Beginning Balance/July 1 2) Ending Balance Components of Fund Balance Restricted for Econ Uncert. Restricted for Special Purposes	8910-8929 7410-7429 8930-8979 7430-7499 ES	485,749 17,872,426 18,358,175	(347,243) 16,460,765 16,113,522	(1,199,191) 16,460,765 15,261,574	1,136,041 16,817,694 17,953,734	447,269 16,113,522 16,560,792	- - - - - 16,560,792 16,560,828
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 1) Interfund Transfers a) Transfers In b) Transfers Out 2) Other Sources/Uses a) Sources b) Uses 3) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USE E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BAL F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 1) Beginning Balance/July 1 2) Ending Balance Components of Fund Balance Restricted for Econ Uncert.	8910-8929 7410-7429 8930-8979 7430-7499 ES	485,749 	(347,243) 16,460,765 16,113,522 615,207	(1,199,191) 16,460,765 15,261,574 629,623	1,136,041 16,817,694 17,953,734 640,867	447,269 16,113,522 16,560,792 636,213	- - - - - - - 16,560,792 16,560,828 655,708

79% 73% 84%

1 9/1/2023

ASSUMPTIONS	2022-23 PROPOSED BUDGET	2022-23 FIRST INTERIM	2022-23 SECOND INTERIM	2022-23 UNAUDITED ACTUALS	2023-24 PROJECTED BUDGET	2024-25 PROJECTED BUDGET
<u>REVENUE</u>						
1. STATUTORY COLA	6.56%	6.56%	6.56%	6.56%	5.38%	4.02%
2. INDIRECT COST RATE	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%
3. CALIFORNIA CPI	6.11%	2.65%	2.65%	2.65%	2.20%	2.40%
4. LOTTERY						
Unrestricted	\$163.00	\$170.00	\$170.00	\$204.00	\$170.00	\$170.00
Restricted	\$65.00	\$67.00	\$67.00	\$100.00	\$67.00	\$67.00
5. MANDATED BLOCK GRANT						
K - 8th Grade	\$18.13	\$18.34	\$18.34	\$18.34	\$18.34	\$18.34
9th - 12th Grade	\$50.39	\$50.98	\$50.98	\$50.98	\$50.98	\$50.98
6. ENROLLMENT ESTIMATES	•	·	·	•	·	·
Totals	1,409	1,353	1,321	1,305	1,353	1,353
7. AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE	1,345	1,285	1,255	1,244	1,285	1,285
Attendance Rate	95%	95%	95%	95%	95%	95%
<u>EXPENDITURES</u>						
1. FRINGE BENEFIT RATES						
STRS State Teachers Retirement System (Tier 1)	19.10%	19.10%	19.10%	19.10%	19.10%	19.10%
PERS Public Employee Retirement System	26.10%	25.37%	25.37%	25.37%	25.37%	25.37%
Social Security	6.20%	6.20%	6.20%	6.20%	6.20%	6.20%
Medicare	1.45%	1.45%	1.45%	1.45%	1.45%	1.45%
SUI State Unemployment Insurance	0.50%	0.50%	0.50%	0.50%	0.50%	0.50%
Workers Compensation	1.22%	1.22%	1.22%	1.22%	1.22%	1.22%
Health Insurance Percentage Increase	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%
Health Insurance Average cost per year	\$14,379	\$14,379	\$14,379	\$14,379	\$ 15,817	\$ 17,398
2. EMPLOYEE SALARY STEP INCREASES						
Certificated	2.59%	2.59%	2.59%	2.59%	2.59%	2.59%
Classified	3.50%	3.50%	3.50%	3.50%	3.50%	3.50%
Estimated for Certificated Column Changes	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$20,001	\$20,000	\$20,000

REVENUES	2022-23 PROPOSED	2022-23 FIRST	2022-23 SECOND	2022-23 UNAUDITED		
Total Objects of Formally and	BUDGET	INTERIM	INTERIM	ACTUALS	Variance	40/
Total Student ADA	1,409	1,353	1,321	1,305	(16.00)	-1%
Total Student ADA	1,345	1,285	1,255	1,244	(10.56)	-1%
Revenue Limit Sources						
1400 8012 Education Protection Account	2,831,673	3,747,279	3,651,801	1,098,260		
0000 8011 LCFF Apportionment	7,417,899	6,783,686	6,661,597	8,730,617		
0000 8096 In lieu of Property Taxes	4,657,134	4,732,582	4,611,998	5,080,289	(46.220.00)	00/
TOTALS	14,906,706	15,263,547	14,925,396	14,909,166	(16,230.00)	0%
Federal Revenues						
5310 8220 Child Nutrition Programs 5310 8220 Child Nutrition Programs - PY	500,000	538,899 -	538,899 -	498,560		
0000 8290 All Other Federal Revenue	1,384,544	1,966,902	1,966,902	2,335,697		
TOTALS	1,884,544	2,505,801	2,505,801	2,834,258	328,457.00	13%
Other State Revenues	35,000	25,000	25,000	262 490		
5310 8520 Child Nutrition Programs 5310 8520 Child Nutrition Programs - PY	35,000	35,000	35,000	363,480		
0000 8550 Mandated Costs	- 41,118	39,791	38,644	38,338		
1100 8560 State Lottery - CY Unrestricted	217,898	218,510	213,342	267,734		
6300 8560 State Lottery - CY Restricted	86,892	86,118	84,082	137,368		
6230 8590 PROP 39	00,002	33,113	01,002	107,000		
0000 8590 One-time Funds	-	-	-			
0000 8590 College Readiness	-	-	-			
All Other State Revenue	193,457	656,912	656,912	2,355,638		
TOTALS	574,365	1,036,330	1,027,980	3,162,559	2,134,578.72	208%
Other Local Revenues				_		
5310 8634-000 Child Nutrition Programs	8,500			26,258		
0000 8660-000 Interest	160,000	160,000	160,000	426,874		
6500 8677-001 SpEd Reimbursement	1,420,238	1,053,987	1,029,059	1,133,266		
0000 8699-001 Cobra Reimbursement	650	, ,	, ,	1,273		
0000 8699-005 GPA Foundation After School	-	-	-			
0000 8699-010 GLC MOU	140,000	140,000	140,000	151,254		
0000 8699-020 GLC Lease Agreement	-	-	-			
0000 8699-015 Contributions / Donations	-	-	-			
0000 8662-0000 Fair Market Value Adj	-	-	-	(146,635)		
0529 8699-529 GPPA GESS	60,000	4 252 007	4 200 050	4 500 000	262 220 66	200/
TOTALS	1,789,388	1,353,987	1,329,059	1,592,290	263,230.66	20%
TOTAL REVENUE	19,155,004	20,159,665	19,788,236	22,498,272	2,710,036.38	14%

EXPENDITURES	2022-23 PROPOSED BUDGET	2022-23 FIRST INTERIM	2022-23 SECOND INTERIM	2022-23 UNAUDITED ACTUALS	Variance	
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999	9,206,573	8,795,197	9,009,661	8,822,232	(187,428.75)	-2%
Classified Salaries 2000-2999	1,854,531	2,090,882	2,142,086	2,128,207	(13,878.52)	-1%
Employee Fringes 3000-3999	4,147,914	4,442,640	4,495,304	5,080,978	585,673.63	13%
Books and Supplies						
4000-4999 Services, Other Operating Expenses	804,376	1,363,840	1,363,840	1,332,167	(31,673.05)	-2%
5000-5999	2,655,860	3,642,768	3,804,764	3,837,205	32,441.73	1%
Capital Outlay 6000-6999	0	171,579	171,772	161,441	(10,331.50)	-6%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	18,669,254	20,506,908	20,987,427	21,362,230	374,803.54	2%

EVDENDITUDES DETAIL		2022-23	2022-23	2022-23	2022-23		
EXPENDITURES DETAIL	Object #	PROPOSED	FIRST	SECOND	UNAUDITED	Variance	
Down II Contificated	Object #	BUDGET	INTERIM	INTERIM	ACTUALS	(187,428.75)	-2%
Payroll - Certificated Payroll - Classified	1000-XXX 2000-XXX	9,206,573 1,854,531	8,795,197 2,090,882	9,009,661 2,142,086	8,822,232 2,128,207	(13,878.52)	-2% -1%
Payroll - Fringes	3000-000	4,147,914	4,442,640	4,495,304	5,080,978	585,673.63	13% STRS on behalf
TOTAL PAYROLL	_	15,209,018	15,328,720	15,647,051	16,031,417	000,070.00	1070 OTTO OTT DOTION
TEXTBOOKS	4100-000	30,000	30,000	30,000	97,628		
OTHER BOOKS	4200-000	11,700	72,441	72,441	73,392		
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES	4300-000	343,000	442,503	442,503	373,605		
SUBSCRIPTIONS	4300-011	320	320	320	266		
TESTING ASSESSMENT	4300-021	25,000	45,000	45,000	22,010		
MAINT/OPER MATERIALS/SUPPLIES	4300-101	31,637	64,695	64,695	92,590		
FURN & EQUIP LESS THAN \$5000	4400-000	10,000	10,000	10,000			
NON-CAP EQUIP (\$4999 & under)	4400-001	32,719	315,287	315,287	315,349		
CAPITALIZED F&E (over \$5000)	4400-002	-	-	-	257 227		
CNS FOOD TOTAL 4000's	4700-000	320,000 804,376	383,594 1,363,840	383,594 1,363,840	357,327 1,332,167	(31,673.05)	-2%
SUBAGREEMENTS (SUBS)	5100-001	004,370	255,448	-	1,332,107	(31,073.03)	-2 /0
MEETINGS	5200-001	2,150	5,079	7,150	8,594		
MILEAGE	5200-002	1,100	1,500	1,500	1,695		
IB TRAINING/CONFERENCES	5200-003	4,000	15,000	15,000	28,252		
CONFERENCES	5200-004	29,428	40,000	44,496	91,289		
STAFF DEVELOPMENT - IN HOUSE	5200-005	6,000	11,424	12,657	41,690		
BOARD WORKSHOPS	5200-006	-	-	-	-		
DUES & MEMBERSHIP	5300-000	35,500	35,500	35,500	37,893		
DUES & MEMBERSHIP-IBNA	5300-001	12,300	12,300	12,300	-		
WASC	5300-004	1,320	1,320	1,320	1,130		
PROPERTY & LIABILITY INSURANCE	5450-001	183,000	183,000	183,000	180,270		
D&O INSURANCE	5450-002	-	-	-			
GAS & ELECTRIC	5500-004	329,219	329,219	329,219	375,355		
IRRIGATION & SEWER	5500-005	38,742	38,742	38,742	33,168		
CONTRACTED TRASH DISPOSAL CONTRACTED PEST SERVICES	5500-008 5500-009	16,763 2,077	18,000 2,077	18,000 2,101	19,954 2,589		
CONTRACTED FEST SERVICES CONTRACTED CLEANING SVCS	5500-009	213,790	213,790	213,790	157,525		
LEASE-BUILDING&GROUNDS	5600-010	129,000	131,109	131,109	131,109		
FACILITY RENTAL	5600-004	120,000	9,248	9,048	(200)		
RENTAL/LEASE OF VEHICLES	5600-005	27,500	50,000	50,000	1,355		
CONTRACTS-MAINT AGREEMENT	5600-006	17,500	17,500	17,500	18,651		
GROUNDS MAINT/REPAIRS	5600-007	18,700	21,193	25,723	132,779		
RENTAL/LEASE OF EQUIPMENT	5600-008	53,000	56,000	56,000	55,380		
MAINT/REPAIR SERVICE CALL	5600-009	70,000	229,785	190,000	316,015		
SITE IMPROVEMENTS	5600-020	20,000	20,000	20,000	33,492		
FACILITY USE	5600-004	40,000	40,000	40,000	-		
BANK EXPENSES	5800-002	1,500	1,500	1,500	132		
CONTRACTED SERVICES - FLEX PLAN	5800-007	3,350	3,350	3,350	3,927		
OTHER ADMIN/OPERATING	5800-009	19,000	24,000	24,000	16,803		
OTHER CONTRACTED SERVICES EMPLOYMENT SERVICES	5800-011 5800-014	495,694 4,000	962,571 9,000	1,405,448 9,000	1,271,815		
FIELD TRIPS	5800-014	22,000	35,000	35,000 35,000	2,288 73,535		
SOFTWARE LICENSING	5800-010	230,547	232,547	232,547	167,889		
SDCOE SYSTEMS / SOFTWARE	5800-030	6,030	14,000	14,000	11,809		
CALSTRS PENALTIES & INTEREST	5800-031	-	-	-	,,,,,,		
VUSD OVERSIGHT FEES 3%	5800-050	574,650	457,906	447,762	446,530		
VUSD PRINT SHOP EXPENSES	5800-054	300	600	600	217		
VUSD PAYROLL SERVICES	5800-055		-	-			
LEGAL	5800-101	4,000	5,560	17,882	38,920		
ADVERTISING	5800-104	-	4,000	4,000	700		
TELEPHONE	5900-001	-	9,000	9,000			
POSTAGE - REGULAR	5900-002	2,500	5,000	5,019	8,477		
POSTAGE - SPECIAL DELIVERY	5900-003	1,000	1,500	1,500	1,507		
TELEPHONE - INTERNET	5900-006	34,000	133,000	133,000	119,363		
CELLULAR PHONES	5900-010	6,200	7,000	7,000	5,310	20 444 70	1%
TOTAL 5000's PROP 39	6200-001	2,655,860	3,642,768	3,804,764	3,837,205	32,441.73	I 70
BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS	6200-001	-	- -	-			
LEASE/PURCHASE OF EQUIP.	6400-005	-	-	-			
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE	6900-001	_	- 171,579	- 171,772	161,441		
TOTAL 6000s			171,579	171,772	161,441	(10,331.50)	-6%
	_					,	

5 9/1/2023

2022-23 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23

EXPENDITURES DETAIL PROPOSED FIRST SECOND UNAUDITED

Object # PURPOSE INTERIM INTERIM ACTUAL 2

 Object #
 BUDGET
 INTERIM
 INTERIM
 ACTUALS

 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
 18,669,254
 20,506,908
 20,987,427
 21,362,230

Variance

CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022

CHARTER SCHOOL CERTIFICATION

Charter School Name: Guajome Park Academy CDS #: 37684523730942

Charter Approving Entity: Vista Unified School District County: San Diego Charter #: 0050 NOTE: An Alternative Form submitted to the California Department of Education will not be considered a valid submission if the following information is missing: For information regarding this report, please contact: For Charter School: For Approving Entity: For County Fiscal Contact: Kevin Humphrey James Phan Roxy Travers Name Name Name Superintendent Executive Director, Fiscal Services Financial Accounting and Data Support Ma Title Title 760-631-8500 x1222 858-295-6700 760-726-2170 Telephone Telephone Telephone humphreyke@guajome.net jamespham@vistausd.org Roxanna.travers@sdcoe.net Email address Email address Email address To the entity that approved the charter school: 2021-22 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report has been approved, and is hereby filed by the charter school pursuant to Education Code Section 42100(b). Signed: Charler School Official (Original signature required) Printed Name: _____ To the County Superintendent of Schools: 2021-22 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report (<u>X</u>) is hereby filed with the County Superintendent pursuant to Education Code Section 42100(a). Date: Signed: Authorized Representative of Charter Approving Entity (Original signature required) Printed Title: Name: To the Superintendent of Public Instruction: 2021-22 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report has been (X)verified for mathematical accuracy by the County Superintendent of Schools pursuant to Education Code Section 42100(a). Date: Signed: County Superintendent/Designee (Original signature required)

Guajome Park Academy Charter Vista Unified San Diego County

2022-23 Unaudited Actuals Charter School Alternative Form Certification

37 68452 3730942 Form ALT D8A7XHFRUY(2022-23)

CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS FINANCIAL REPORT – ALTERNATIVE FORM

July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023

CHARTER SCHOOL CERTIFICATION

	Charter School Name:	Guajome Park Academy Charter	
	CDS #:	37-68452-3730942	
	Charter Approving Entity:	Vista Unified	
	County:	San Diego	
	Charter #:	0050	
No.	1		
NOTE: An Alternative Form submitted to the	California Department of	f Education will not be considered a valid submis	sion if the following information is missing:
For information regarding this report, please cont	act:		
For County Fiscal Contact:	F 4		
Roxanna Travers		ring Entity:	For Charter School:
Name		ed School District	Kevin Humphrey
Financial Accounting and Data Support Manager	Name		Name
Title		Director, Fiscal Services	Superintendent
858-295-6700	Title		Title
Telephone	760-726-21	70x92602	760-631-8500x1222
Roxanna.travers@sdcoe.net	Telephone		Telephone
Email address		do@vistausd.org	humphrey ke@guajome.net
	Email addre	ess	Email address
To the entity that approved the charter school:			
2022-23 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTL Education Code Section 42100(b). Signed:			ved, and is hereby filed by the charter school pursuant to
	Kinh	F — ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report has been approx	0 0. 00
	Charter School Official		0 0. 00
	Charter School Official (Original signature required)	Date	· 9·31·23
Signed: Printed Name:	Charter School Official (Original signature required)		· 9·31·23
Signed: Printed Name: To the County Superintendent of Schools:	Charter School Official (Original signature required)	Date	8·31·23
Signed: Printed Name: To the County Superintendent of Schools:	Charter School Official (Original signature required)	Date	8·31·23
Signed: Printed Name: To the County Superintendent of Schools:	Charter School Official (Original signature required)	Date Title - ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report is hereby filed w	9. 31. 23
Printed Name: To the County Superintendent of Schools: 2022-23 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTU Section 42100(a).	Charter School Official (Original signature required) ALS FINANCIAL REPORT	Date	9. 31. 23
Printed Name: To the County Superintendent of Schools: 2022-23 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTU Section 42100(a).	Charter School Official (Original signature required)	Date Title - ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report is hereby filed w	9. 31. 23
Printed Name: To the County Superintendent of Schools: 2022-23 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTU Section 42100(a).	Charter School Official (Original signature required) ALS FINANCIAL REPORT Authorized Representative of	Date Title - ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report is hereby filed w	9. 31. 23
Printed Name: To the County Superintendent of Schools: 2022-23 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTU Section 42100(a).	Charter School Official (Original signature required) ALS FINANCIAL REPORT Authorized Representative of Charter Approving Entity (Original signature	Date Title - ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report is hereby filed w	e:
Printed Name: To the County Superintendent of Schools: 2022-23 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTU Section 42100(a). Signed: Printed Name:	Charter School Official (Original signature required) ALS FINANCIAL REPORT Authorized Representative of Charter Approving Entity (Original signature	Title — ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report is hereby filed w	e: 9.31.23
Signed: Printed Name: To the County Superintendent of Schools: 2022-23 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTU Section 42100(a). Signed: Printed Name: To the Superintendent of Public Instruction:	Charter School Official (Original signature required) ALS FINANCIAL REPORT Authorized Representative of Charter Approving Entity (Original signature required)	Title - ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report is hereby filed w Date	9. 31. 23 with the County Superintendent pursuant to Education Code
Printed Name: To the County Superintendent of Schools: 2022-23 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTU Section 42100(a). Signed: Printed Name: To the Superintendent of Public Instruction:	Charter School Official (Original signature required) ALS FINANCIAL REPORT Authorized Representative of Charter Approving Entity (Original signature required)	Title - ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report is hereby filed w Date Title	with the County Superintendent pursuant to Education Code
Printed Name: To the County Superintendent of Schools: 2022-23 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTU Section 42100(a). Signed: Printed Name: To the Superintendent of Public Instruction: 2022-23 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTU Schools pursuant to Education Code Section 42100	Charter School Official (Original signature required) ALS FINANCIAL REPORT Authorized Representative of Charter Approving Entity (Original signature required)	Title - ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report is hereby filed w Date Title - ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report has been verified.	with the County Superintendent pursuant to Education Code

2022-23 Unaudited Actuals Charter School Alternative Form Alternative Form

37 68452 3730942 Form ALT D8A7XHFRUY(2022-23)

CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS

FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM

July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Charter School Name: Guajome Park Academy Charter

CDS #: 37-68452-3730942

Charter Approving Entity: Vista Unified

County: San Diego

Charter #: 0050

This charter school uses the following basis of accounting:

(Please enter an "X" in the applicable box below; check only one box)

X Accrual Basis (Applicable Capital Assets/Interest on Long-Term Debt/Long-Term Liabilities/Net Position objects are 6900, 6910, 7438, 9400-9489, 9660-9669, 9796, and 9797)

Modified Accrual Basis (Applicable Capital Outlay/Debt Service/Fund Balance objects are 6100-6170, 6200-6500, 6600, 7438, 7439, and 9711-9789)

		Description	Object Code	Unrestricted	Restricted	Total
	EVENUE	76				
1.	LCFF	Sources				
		State Aid - Current Year	8011	8,730,617.00		8,730,617.
		Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year	8012	1,098,260.00		1,098,260
		State Aid - Prior Years	8019	0.00		0.
		Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes	8096	5,080,289.00		5,080,289
		Other LCFF Transfers	8091, 8097	0.00	0.00	0.
		Total, LCFF Sources		14,909,166.00	0.00	14,909,166
2.	. Feder	al Revenues (see NOTE in Section L)	•			
		No Child Left Behind/Every Student Succeeds Act	8290		408,437.00	408,437
		Special Education - Federal	8181, 8182		268,816.78	268,816
		Child Nutrition - Federal	8220		403,616.18	403,616
		Donated Food Commodities	8221		0.00	0
		Other Federal Revenues	8110, 8260-8299		1,704,803.99	1,704,803
		Total, Federal Revenues	-	0.00	2,785,673.95	2,785,673
3.	. Other	State Revenues	-			
		Special Education - State	StateRevSE		1,707,808.58	1,707,808
		All Other State Revenues	StateRevAO	1,222,445.63	1,791,463,49	3,013,909
		Total, Other State Revenues	98	1,222,445.63	3,499,272.07	4,721,717
4.	. Other	Local Revenues	-			
		All Other Local Revenues	LocalRev AO	217,752.84	0.00	217,752
		Total, Local Revenues	-	217,752.84	0.00	217,752.
5.	. TOTAL	REVENUES	9-	16,349,364.47	6,284,946.02	22,634,310.
		JRES (see NOTE in Section L)	-	***************************************		
1.	. Certifi	cated Salaries				
		Certificated Teachers' Salaries	1100	5,862,591.40	1,622,412.81	7,485,004
		Certificated Pupil Support Salaries	1200	326,325.59	280,126.58	606,452
		Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries	1300	730,775.87	0.00	730,775.
		Other Certificated Salaries	1900	0.00	0.00	0.
		Total, Certificated Salaries		6,919,692.86	1,902,539.39	8,822,232.
2.	. Nonce	rtificated Salaries	-			
		Noncertificated Instructional Salaries	2100	36,457.79	326,607.85	363,065.
		Noncertificated Support Salaries	2200	218,287.72	134,216.47	352,504.
		Noncertificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries	2300	276,857.73	0.00	276,857.
		Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries	2400 -	915,868.61	30,005.74	945,874.
		Other Noncertificated Salaries	2900	8,682.75	181,222.82	189,905.
		Total, Noncertificated Salaries	·-	1,456,154.60	672,052.88	2,128,207.
		Description	Object Code	Unrestricted	Restricted	Total
3.	Employ	ee Benefits				
		STRS	3101-3102	1,183,383.89	1,118,069.37	2,301,453
		PERS			(3)	
		, Line	3201-3202	327,259.99	125,833.83	453,093.

) 	ego (Al	ternative Form		D	BA7XHFRUY(2022-23)
		Health and Welfare Benefits	3401-3402	1,445,155.81	428,539.32	1,873,695.13
		Unemployment Insurance	3501-3502	32,324.22	8,464.50	1
		Workers' Compensation Insurance	3601-3602	93,538.94	20,044.97	40,788.72
		OPEB, Allocated	3701-3702	0.00	0.00	113,583.91
		OPEB, Active Employees	3751-3752	0.00	0.00	
		Other Employee Benefits	3901-3902	5,152.64	0.00	0.00
		Total, Employee Benefits		3,300,843.86	1,780,133.77	5,152.64
	4	4. Books and Supplies		0,000,040.00	1,760,133.77	5,080,977.63
		Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials	4100	0.00	07 629 05	07.000.05
		Books and Other Reference Materials	4200	73,392.11	97,628.05	97,628.05
		Materials and Supplies	4300	421,199.07	0.00	73,392.11
		Noncapitalized Equipment	4400	42,565.55	67,271.80	488,470.87
		Food	4700	0.00	272,783.68	315,349.23
		Total, Books and Supplies	**************************************		357,326,98	357,326.98
	5.	5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures		537,156.73	795,010.51	1,332,167.24
		Subagreements for Services	5100	0.00		
		Travel and Conferences	5200	0.00	0.00	0.00
		Dues and Memberships	5300	142,634.66	28,885.47	171,520.13
		Insurance	5400	39,023.16	0.00	39,023.16
		Operations and Housekeeping Services		180,270.10	0.00	180,270.10
		Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncap. Improvements	5500	588,590.12	0.00	588,590.12
		Transfers of Direct Costs	5600	666,921.67	21,658.00	688,579.67
		Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expend.	5700-5799	0.00	0.00	0.00
		Communications	5800	1,164,502.88	870,062.56	2,034,565.44
		Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures	5900	134,656.61	0.00	134,656.61
		3 - 7 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1		2,916,599.20	920,606.03	3,837,205.23
	6.	Capital Outlay				
		(Objects 6100-6170, 6200-6500 modified accrual basis only)				
		Land and Land Improvements	6100-6170			
		Buildings and Improvements of Buildings	6200			0.00
		Books and Media for New School Libraries or Major	0200			0.00
		Expansion of School Libraries	6300			
		Equipment	6400			0.00
		Equipment Replacement	6500			0.00
		Lease Assets	6600			0.00
		Depreciation Expense (accrual basis only)	6900	161,440.50		0.00
		Amortization Expense - Lease Assets	6910	0.00	0.00	161,440.50
		Total, Capital Outlay			0.00	0,00
	7.	. Other Outgo	9	161,440.50	0.00	161,440.50
		Tuition to Other Schools	7110-7143	0.00		1
		Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues to Other LEAs	7211-7213	0.00	0.00	0.00
		Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec. Ed.	7211-7213 7221-7223SE	0.00	0.00	0,00
		Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - All Other	7221-7223AO	0.00	0.00	0.00
		All Other Transfers	7281-7299	0.00	0.00	0.00
		Transfers of Indirect Costs	7300-7399	0.00	0.00	0.00
		Debt Service:	7300-7355	0.00	0.00	0,00
		Interest	7438	0.00		
		Principal (for modified accrual basis only)	7439	0.00	0.00	0.00
		Total Debt Service	7435			0.00
		Total, Other Outgo	:-	0.00	0.00	0.00
	8.	TOTAL EXPENDITURES		0.00	0.00	0.00
				15,291,887.75	6,070,342.58	21,362,230.33
C	EXC	Description CESS (DEFICIENCY) OF DEVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OF THE PROPERTY O	Object Code	Unrestricted	Restricted	Total
٠.	ANE	CESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER D USES (A5-B8)	FINANCING SOURCES	1,057,476.72	214,603.44	1,272,080.16
D.	ОТН	HER FINANCING SOURCES / USES				
	1.	Other	9030 9070			
		Sources	8930-8979	0.00	0.00	0.00

Diego Cou	Alt	ternative Form		D8.	A7XHFRUY(2022
2.	Less: Other Uses	7630-7699			
	Contributions Between Unrestricted and Restricted Accounts		0.00	0.00	0.
	(must net to zero)	8980-8999	(377,309.31)	377,309.31	
4.	TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES	0000-0000	(377,309.31)		
	INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE /NET POSITION (C+D4)		680,167.41	377,309.31	1 272 090
	BALANCE / NET POSITION		000,107.41	591,912.75	1,272,080
1.	Beginning Fund Balance/Net Position				
	a. As of July 1	9791	15,845,471.90	(437,660.38)	15,407,811
	b. Adjustments/Restatements	9793, 9795	(525,218.69)	1,799,062.21	1,273,843
	c. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance /Net Position		15,320,253.21	1,361,401.83	16,681,655
2.	Ending Fund Balance /Net Position, June 30 (E+F1c)		16,000,420.62	1,953,314.58	17,953,735
(Components of Ending Fund Balance (Modified Accrual Basis only)			1,000,014.00	17,000,700
	a. Nonspendable				
	1. Revolving Cash (equals Object 9130)	9711			C
	2. Stores (equals Object 9320)	9712			(
	3. Prepaid Expenditures (equals Object 9330)	9713			(
	4. All Others	9719			
	b. Restricted	9740			(
	c. Committed				
	1. Stabilization Arrangements	9750			(
	2. Other Commitments	9760			
	d. Assigned	9780			(
	e. Unassigned/Unappropriated				
	Reserve for Economic Uncertainties	9789			(
	2. Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount	9790M			(
3. (Components of Ending Net Position (Accrual Basis only)				
	a. Net Investment in Capital Assets	9796	1,580,346.14	0.00	1,580,346
	b. Restricted Net Position	9797		1,953,314.58	1,953,314
	c. Unrestricted Net Position	9790A	14,420,074.48	0.00	14,420,074
	Description	Object Code	Unrestricted	Restricted	Total
. ASSE					
	In County Treasury	9110	15,019,662.30	4,128,430.36	19,148,092
	Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury	9111	(522,268.00)	0.00	(522,268
	In Banks	9120	66,467.00	0.00	66,467
	In Revolving Fund	9130	30,000.00	2,100.00	32,100
	With Fiscal Agent/Trustee	9135	0.00	0.00	(
	Collections Awaiting Deposit	9140	0.00	0.00	(
2.	nvestments	9150	0.00	0.00	
3. A	Accounts Receivable	9200	701,391.10	1,384,108.43	2,085,499
4.	Due from Grantor Governments	9290	0.00	0.00	
5. 8	Stores	9320	0.00	0.00	(
6. F	Prepaid Expenditures (Expenses)	9330	0.00	0.00	C
	NUMBER OF STREET		0.00	0,00	C
7. (Other Current Assets	9340	0.00		
	oner Current Assets Lease Receivable	9340 9380	86,138.07	0.00	
8. L				0.00	86,138
8. L 9. C	Lease Receivable	9380	86,138.07		86,138 1,580,346
8. L 9. C 10. T	Lease Receivable Capital Assets (accrual basis only) IOTAL ASSETS RRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES	9380	86,138.07 1,580,346.14	0.00	86,138 1,580,346
8. L 9. C 10. T	Lease Receivable Capital Assets (accrual basis only) FOTAL ASSETS	9380	86,138.07 1,580,346.14	0.00	86,138 1,580,346 22,476,375
8. L 9. C 10. T DEFEI	Lease Receivable Capital Assets (accrual basis only) IOTAL ASSETS RRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES	9380 9400-9489	86,138.07 1,580,346.14 16,961,736.61	0.00 5,514,638.79	86,138 1,580,346 22,476,375
8. L 9. C 10. T DEFEI 1. C	Lease Receivable Capital Assets (accrual basis only) FOTAL ASSETS RRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES Deferred Outflows of Resources FOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS	9380 9400-9489	86,138.07 1,580,346.14 16,961,736.61	0.00 5,514,638.79 0.00	86,138 1,580,346 22,476,375
8. L 9. C 10. T DEFEI 1. C 2. T	Lease Receivable Capital Assets (accrual basis only) FOTAL ASSETS RRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES Deferred Outflows of Resources FOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS	9380 9400-9489	86,138.07 1,580,346.14 16,961,736.61	0.00 5,514,638.79 0.00	86,138 1,580,346 22,476,375 0
8. L 9. C 10. T . DEFEI 1. C 2. T . LIABII	Lease Receivable Capital Assets (accrual basis only) FOTAL ASSETS RRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES Deferred Outflows of Resources FOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS LITIES	9380 9400-9489 9490	86,138.07 1,580,346.14 16,961,736.61 0.00	0.00 5,514,638,79 0.00 0.00	86,138 1,580,346 22,476,375 0 0
8. L 9. C 10. T 1. DEFEI 1. C 2. T 1. LIABII 1. A 2. C	Lease Receivable Capital Assets (accrual basis only) FOTAL ASSETS RRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES Deferred Outflows of Resources FOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS LITIES Accounts Payable	9380 9400-9489 9490	86,138.07 1,580,346.14 16,961,736.61 0.00 0.00	0.00 5,514,638.79 0.00 0.00	86,138 1,580,346 22,476,375 0 0 273,064 867,750

2022-23 Unaudited Actuals Charter School Alternative Form Alternative Form

37 68452 3730942 Form ALT D8A7XHFRUY(2022-23)

	5. Long-Term Liabilities (accrual basis only)	9660-9669	80,875.05		80,875.05
	6. TOTAL LIABILITIES	-	961.315.99	3,561,324,21	4,522,640,20
J.	DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES	-			4,022,040.20
	1. Deferred Inflows of Resources	9690	0.00	0.00	0.00
	2. TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS	-	0.00	0.00	0.00
ĸ.	FUND BALANCE /NET POSITION			0.00	0.00
	Ending Fund Balance /Net Position, June 30 (G10 + H2) - (I6 + J2)				
	(must agree with Line F2)		16,000,420,62	1,953,314.58	17.953.735.20

L. FEDERAL EVERY STUDENT SUCCEEDS ACT (ESSA) MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT REQUIREMENT

NOTE: IF YOUR CHARTER SCHOOL RECEIVED FEDERAL FUNDING, AS REPORTED IN SECTION A2, THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION MUST BE PROVIDED IN ORDER FOR THE CDE TO CALCULATE COMPLIANCE WITH THE FEDERAL EVERY STUDENT SUCCEEDS ACT (ESSA) MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT REQUIREMENT:

1. Federal Revenue Used for Capital Outlay and Debt Service

Included in the Capital Outlay and Debt Service expenditures reported in sections B6 and B7 are the following amounts paid out of federal funds:

Federal Program Name (If no amounts, indicate "NONE")		Capital Outlay	Debt Service	Total
a. NONE	\$	0.00	0.00	0.00
b	-			0.00
С.	52E-7			0.00
d.				0.00
е.	_			0.00
f.	_			0.00
9.	_			0.00
h.	_			0.00
i.	-			0.00
j.	() () ()	 		0.00
TOTAL FEDERAL REVENUES USED FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY AND DEBT SERVICE		0.00	0.00	0.00
munity Caminas France ditange	-			

2. Community Services Expenditures

Provide the amount of State and Local funds reported in Section B that were expended for Community Services Activities:

			Amount
	Objects of Expenditures		(Enter "0.00" if none)
a.	Certificated Salaries	1000-1999	0.00
b.	Noncertificated Salaries	2000-2999	0.00
C.	Employ ee Benefits	3000-3999 except 3801-3802	0.00
d.	Books and Supplies	4000-4999	0.00
e.	Services and Other Operating Expenditures	5000-5999	0.00
	TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES EXPENDITURES		0.00

3. Supplemental State and Local Expenditures resulting from a Presidentially Declared Disaster

	Date of Presidential Disaster Declaration	Brief Description i.e., COVID-19 (If no amounts, indicate "None")	Amount	
a		NONE	0.	0.00
b			0.	0.00
c			0.	0.00
d			0.	0.00
TOTAL	SUPPLEMENTAL EXPENDITURES (Should not be negative)		0.	0.00

4. State and Local Expenditures to be Used for ESSA Annual Maintenance of Effort Calculation:

Results of this calculation will be used for comparison with 2021-22 expenditures. Failure to maintain the required 90 percent expenditure level on either an aggregate or per capita expenditure basis may result in reduction to allocations for covered programs in 2024-25.

a.	Total Expenditures (B8)	21,362,230,33
b.	Less Federal Expenditures (Total A2)	
	[Revenues are used as proxy for expenditures because most federal revenues are normally recognized in the period that qualifying expenditures are incurred]	2,785,673,95
c.	Subtotal of State & Local Expenditures	18,576,556,38
	[a minus b]	
d.	Less Community Services	0.00
	[L2 Total]	
e.	Less Capital Outlay & Debt Service	161,440,50
	[Total B6 plus objects 7438 and 7439, less L1 Total, less objects 6600 and 6910]	
f.	Less Supplemental Expenditures made as the result of a Presidentially	0.00

Guajome Park Academy Charter Vista Unified San Diego County

2022-23 Unaudited Actuals Charter School Alternative Form Alternative Form

37 68452 3730942 Form ALT D8A7XHFRUY(2022-23)

Declared Disaster

TOTAL STATE & LOCAL EXPENDITURES SUBJECT TO MOE
[c minus d minus e minus f]

18,415,115.88

GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY

AGENDA ITEM 8C

T0:

Board of Directors

FROM:

Superintendent

DATE:

September 7, 2023

SUBJECT:

Special Education Allocation Plan

This plan provides Guajome Park Academy with the authority and ability to fully manage the Special Education funds received on behalf of Guajome Learning Centers. It specifically grants GPA permission to reallocate funds between entities in the event that one school does not utilize 100% of its funds while the other may be in need of those funds.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval

Prepared by:

Kevin Humphrey

Approved by:

Kevin Humphrey, Superintendent

GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY

AGENDA ITEM 8D

TO:

Board of Directors

FROM:

Superintendent

DATE:

September 7, 2023

SUBJECT: No

New Job Description

A new position of GESS (Guajome Extended School Services) Student After School Worker has been created, and as a result, a new job description for that position has been created.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval

Prepared by: Kevin Humphrey

Approved by:

Kevin Humphrey, Superintendent

GUAJOME SCHOOLS (Guajome Park Academy/Guajome Park Primary Academy) CLASSIFIED JOB DESCRIPTION

TITLE OF POSITION: Student Worker - Guajome Extended School Services

- A. <u>Primary Function:</u> Student workers will be supervised by GESS Instructional Assistant (IA) at all times and provide assistance to GESS Instructional Assistant as needed.
- B. <u>Directly Responsible To:</u> GESS Instructional Assistant and GESS Manager
- C. <u>Status:</u> Non-exempt
- D. <u>Assigned Responsibilities:</u>
 - GESS IA will instruct student workers with a variety of tasks ranging from: student check in, snack distribution, reading to GESS students, assisting GESS students with homework time, assisting with a variety of crafts, special projects, games, and more.
 - Assist in preparing material and supplies for GESS IA as needed.
 - Assist with student supervision during recess and snacks.
 - Aid in maintaining and promoting appropriate standards such as; appropriate and positive language at all times, dressing appropriately, appropriate positive interaction with all Guajome students, staff, and parents.
 - Maintain program confidentiality.
 - Perform a variety of cleaning and housekeeping functions in maintaining a clean, safe, and sanitary facility.
 - Perform related duties as assigned.

E. Knowledge and Abilities:

- Willingness to learn concepts of child behavior characteristics and behavior management strategies as well as techniques
- Play games, coordinate and assist with crafts, and interact with children

Ability To:

- · Demonstrate an empathetic, patient, and understanding attitude with all students
- Understand and carry out instructions given by GESS IA/ GESS Manager
- · Communicate with all GESS Staff members

F. Physical Demands:

- Ability to lift, carry, push, or otherwise move objects no more than 25 pounds
- Stand, walk, sit for brief portions of time.

Reasonable accommodation may be made to enable a person with a disability to perform the essential functions of the job.

G. Education and Experience:

 Currently enrolled in Guajome High School, eligible for a work permit and has no behavioral concerns.

GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY

AGENDA ITEM 8E

TO:

Board of Directors

FROM:

Superintendent

DATE:

September 7, 2023

SUBJECT:

GPA/GLC MOU Update

There are two updates for the GPA/GLC MOU:

- Dates within the document were updated to reflect the current length of the charter as a result of legislature that lengthened charter renewals by one year.

- Calculations regarding facility usage will be based off the percentage of square footage used by the GLC as opposed to basing the calculation off of ADA.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The annual revenue for GPA should be around \$125,000.00 - \$150,000.00 per year.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval.

Prepared by:

Kevin Humphrey

Approved by:

Kevin Humphrey, Superintendent

SERVICES AGREEMENT By and Between GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY And GUAJOME LEARNING CENTERS

This Services Agreement ("Agreement") is executed on June 14, 2016 September 12, 2023 by and between Guajome Park Academy ("GPA") a California public charter school operated as a nonprofit public benefit corporation, and Guajome Learning Centers ("GLC"), a California public charter school operated as a nonprofit public benefit corporation.

I. RECITALS:

- A. GPA is a public charter school existing under the laws of the State of California.
- B. GLC is also a public charter school existing under the laws of the State of California.
- C. GLC desires that GPA perform, and GPA agrees to perform, administrative services as further outlined herein.
- D. Written modifications of this Agreement may be made by mutual agreement as set forth below.

II. AGREEMENTS

A. Term

- 1. Administrative services will be provided by GPA to the GLC per the GLC's Charter approved by the Vista Unified School District and the California Department of Education (Attachment A). This Agreement will govern the relationship between GPA and GLC and incorporate the contents of the GLC's Charter as applicable to this Agreement.
- Any modification of this Agreement must be in writing and executed by duly authorized representatives of both parties and indicate and intend to modify this Agreement.
- 3. The duly authorized representative of GLC is the Board of Directors of the GLC, or its written designee.

- 4. The duly authorized representative of GPA is the GPA Board of Directors, or its written designee.
- 5. The term of this Agreement shall be effective April 12, 2016 through June 30, 2021 September 12, 2023-June 30, 2027, which is the term of the approved GLC's Charter. This entire Agreement is subject to, and shall not be effective, until approved by the Board of Directors of GPA and the Board of Directors of the GLC and shall only be terminated in a manner consistent with Section II; Q of this Agreement and the GLC's Charter.

B. <u>Services to be Provided by GPA</u>

The GLC is responsible for all functions of the GLC operations that are not otherwise expressly delegated to GPA as per this Agreement and/or the GLC's Charter. Any activity, obligation, right or duty of the GLC in its operations that is not expressly outlined as an obligation of GPA in this Agreement and/or the GLC's Charter remains an obligation of the GLC.

GPA agrees to provide the following services to the GLC, in exchange for which the GLC agrees to pay the sums identified in Attachment C. These services are included in the GLC's approved Charter and incorporated herein. Only those services expressly referenced below and/or in the GLC's Charter will be provided by GPA. The GLC will be responsible for providing all other services necessary for the successful operation of its school, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by both GPA and the GLC:

General Administrative Support

General Administrative Services — GPA will assist GLC with administrative oversight/support services. Areas of assistance and general support will include, but may not be limited to: maintenance and operations, facilities support, general secretarial support, student attendance accounting; compliance and accountability; mandated reporting, mandated state testing, staff development; board policy; forms, processes, and procedures; school calendar and instructional minutes; employee handbooks (student and employee); course catalogs; oversight coordination responsibilities with Vista Unified School District; and general business services including asset inventory management and procurement of general insurance coverage such as personal liability, property damage and loss, and directors and officers.

Educational Support

Educational Services – GPA will provide GLC with education services in support of the academic operations of the GLC. These services will include but may not be limited to: in-service training for teachers on instructional methods, computer skills, and curriculum usage; guidance and policies for student and faculty actions and discipline; oversight for program quality and success metrics; and school administration training and support. Additionally, GPA will provide school counseling and special education services as well as support for English Language Learners through GPA's ELD coordinator.

Technology Support

Technology Services — GPA will provide technical services for the installation, support, and ongoing maintenance of the hardware systems and supporting software products. Services to be provided in order to support these technologies will include but may not be limited to: specification of all educational and administrative hardware and software used by GLC; installation and maintenance support services for educational and administrative hardware, software, and curriculum technologies used by GLC. GPA will additionally be responsible for providing training for technical support of day-to-day technology operations, which is provided by the GLC staff.

Human Resources Support

Human Resources Services — GPA will assist GLC with all facets of human resource administration. This will include but may not be limited to: development of procedures and policies in all employment areas; responsibility for recruiting, screening, and interviewing procedures; development and implementation of employee salary schedules; development of employee job descriptions; oversight of evaluation process for employees; development and oversight of employee contracts and work calendars; oversight responsibility of teacher credentialing; responsibility for payroll functions including benefit plan administration; and organization and delivery of mandated employee training including but not limited to safe workplace and sexual harassment.

Business Support

Business Services — GPA will provide all accounting and business/financial services needed by GLC. Services will include, but may not be limited to: banking, accounts receivable/accounts payable, purchasing, student attendance reporting to all applicable entities, auditing, and financial services. GPA will also be responsible for the preparation and submission of all financial reports required of GLC by local and state entities. The provided business services are detailed in Attachment B.

All services provided by GPA to GLC will be at the same levels of quality and timeliness as GPA uses in its own administrative operations.

C. <u>GLC Obligations</u>

GPA will assist with the GLC's operations, as listed above, and GPA's responsibilities will include auditing the GLC's information and operations for completeness and compliance. It is both GPA's and the GLC's responsibility to ensure the school remains in compliance with all applicable rules and regulations.

In order to fulfill the scope of services described in this contractual agreement, GPA relies on the GLC to provide accurate, complete, and timely information, and to cooperate reasonably with GPA. Furthermore, the GLC must immediately inform GPA of any material change that could affect GPA's ability to complete its responsibilities and to assist the GLC in complying with all applicable laws and regulations.

D. <u>Fee for Services</u>

GLC agrees to pay a fee for services outlined in this Agreement and the GLC's Charter. The fee for services is described in Attachment C and will be re-negotiated and approved on an annual fiscal year basis. GLC agrees to pay on all invoices from GPA within 30 days of receipt.

E. Other Responsibilities of GLC

- 1. **SDCOE Services**: GLC is required to contract annually through SDCOE (San Diego County Office of Education) for both finance/accounting services and payroll services for use of software coordinated and supported by SDCOE.
- 2. Other Direct Fees/Costs: Other direct fees not expressly stated in the Agreement will be billed directly to GLC with appropriate back-up documentation. GLC will be responsible for direct costs of operations, equipment, supplies, and training which could include but may not be limited to: technology hardware and software; instructional materials including textbooks, online curriculum license fee, and duplication costs; conference and training expenses; travel expenses; liability and property insurance; employee health benefits; directors and officers insurance; equipment rental; and facilities maintenance costs

F. Liability/Warranties

- 1. It is the intent of the parties that GLC be responsible for its own debts and obligations. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as imposing on GPA any liability arising out of the operations of GLC, except as such liability may result from the provision of services by GPA to GLC.
- 2. GPA warrants that all services will be performed by competent personnel and in accordance with applicable professional standards. If any element of the services does not conform to the foregoing warranty, GPA will re-perform such element in a manner that does conform, except that if such re-performance is impracticable, GPA will refund the fees allocable to such nonconforming element.
- 3. GLC agrees to defend, indemnify and hold GPA, its employees, officers, directors, and agents, free and harmless against any liability, loss, claims, demands, damages, expenses, and costs (including attorneys fees and other costs of litigation or other proceedings) of every kind or nature arising in any manner out of any negligent or willful acts of GLC, its officers, directors, employees, and agents, except such loss or damage caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of GPA.
 - GPA agrees to defend, indemnify and hold GLC, its employees, officers, directors, and agents, free and harmless against any liability, loss, claims, demands, damages, expenses, and costs (including attorneys fees and other costs of litigation or other proceedings) of every kind or nature arising in any manner out of the performance by GPA of its obligations under this Agreement, except such loss or damage caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of GLC.
- 4. GPA's aggregate liability on all claims of any kind, whether based on contract, indemnity, warranty, tort (including negligence), strict liability, or otherwise, for all losses or damages arising out of or relating to this Agreement will in no case exceed three times the monthly average of fees actually paid GPA pursuant to this Agreement. GPA shall not be liable for special, incidental, exemplary, punitive, consequential, or indirect damages, including without limitation lost sales, profits, or revenue.

G. <u>Legal Relationship</u>

- 1. The Parties recognize that the GLC is a separate legal entity. Each party to this Agreement is an independent contractor. No provision of this Agreement or act of the parties hereunder pursuant to this Agreement and GLC's Charter will be construed to express or imply a joint venture, partnership, or relationship other than vendor and purchaser of the services. Each party is liable for all workers' compensation premiums and liability, federal, state, and local withholding taxes or charges with respect to its respective employees and will indemnify the other from any claims brought against the other in respect thereto.
- 2. The GLC shall have no authority to enter into a contract that would bind GPA, or to extend the credit of GPA to any third person or party. GPA shall have no authority to enter into a contract that would bind GLC, absent authorization by the GLC Board or GLC board designee.
- 3. The GLC shall clearly indicate to vendors and other entities and individuals with which or with whom the GLC enters into an agreement or contract for goods or services that the obligations of the GLC under such agreement or contract are solely the responsibility of the GLC and are not the responsibility of GPA.
- 4. The GLC affirms that the GLC shall remain solely liable for all debts incurred by the GLC and that no action taken by GPA shall render GPA liable in any way for the debts of the GLC.

H. <u>Non-Assignment</u>

Neither the GLC nor GPA shall assign their rights, duties, or privileges under this Agreement, nor shall either party attempt to confer any of its rights, duties, or privileges under this Agreement on any third party, without the written consent of the other party.

I. <u>Severability</u>

If any provision or any part of this Agreement is for any reason held to be invalid or unenforceable or contrary to public policy, law or statute, and/or ordinance, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and shall remain valid and fully enforceable.

J. Communication

- a. The GLC shall respond within 15 business days to any GPA requests for information. GPA shall respond within 15 business days to any GLC requests for information. GPA shall respond within 15 business days to any request by the GLC for clarification of any of the GLC's fiscal reporting obligations under this Agreement and/or the GLC's Charter.
- b. Pursuant to Education Code section 47604.3, GPA shall respond on behalf of the GLC to all reasonable requests of the GLC's granting agency and/or the County Office of Education for information regarding the fiscal operation of the GLC that are assigned to GPA herein no later than ten (10) business days following the issuance of the request. GLC shall notify the District and/or County Office of Education in writing that GPA is authorized to communicate on its behalf pursuant to this Agreement.
- c. All notices, claims, approvals or complaints/concerns regarding delivery of services given under this Agreement must be in writing and delivered in person, by first class or express mail, or by facsimile addressed as set forth below, or to such other address that a party gives by notice. Notice given in accordance with this subsection will be deemed given when received.

GPA GLC
Superintendent Board of Directors
2000 N Santa Fe Ave
Vista, CA 92083 Vista, CA 92083
FAX # 760-631-8506

d. Failure to timely respond, as defined in this agreement, will result in initiation of the informal dispute resolution process as outlined in Section II; P below.

K. Attorneys' Fees and Costs

In the event that an action or proceeding is instituted to enforce any provision of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to its court costs, interest, and reasonable attorneys' fees as fixed by the court.

L. Force Majeure

GPA shall not be liable for any delay in performance or inability to perform due to force majeure, including without limitation any acts of nature, acts or omissions of GLC, major equipment failures, fluctuations or nonavailability of electrical power or telecommunications equipment, or any other act, omission, or occurrence beyond GPA's reasonable control.

M. Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

N. <u>Authority to Contract</u>

Each party warrants to the other that it has the authority to enter into this Agreement, that it is a binding and enforceable obligation of said party, and that the undersigned has been duly authorized to execute this Agreement.

O. <u>Integration</u>

This represents the full and final Agreement between GLC and GPA and shall only be modified in writing by the mutual agreement of the parties. All previous and collateral agreements, representations, warranties, promises, and conditions relating to the subject matter of this Agreement are superseded by this Agreement and, if not explicitly incorporated into this Agreement, will not be binding on either party.

P. <u>Dispute Resolution</u>

Disputes between GPA and the GLC regarding this Agreement shall be resolved using the dispute resolution process identified below.

The Board of Directors representatives for the party initiating the dispute resolution process shall prepare and send to the other party a notice of dispute that shall include the following information: (1) the name, addresses and phone numbers of designated representatives of the party; (2) a statement of the facts of the dispute, including information regarding the parties attempts to resolve the dispute; (3) the specific sections of this agreement that are in dispute; and (4) the specific resolution sought by the party. Within twenty (20) business days from receipt of the notice of dispute the Board of Directors representatives from GLC shall meet with the Board of Directors representatives from GPA in an informal setting to try to resolve the dispute.

If the informal meeting fails to resolve the dispute, the party initiating the dispute resolution process shall notify the other party in writing that it intends to proceed to mediation and within ten (10) business days and shall request a mediator that may include but not be limited to State Mediation and Conciliation Services, a mutually agreed upon mediator/consultant, or representative from the charter-granting agency. If the State Mediation and Conciliation Services are not available the parties shall mutually agree upon another mediation service/mediator. initiating party shall request appointment of a mediator who is available to meet as soon as possible, but not later than 30 days after receipt of the request for appointment. The party initiating the dispute shall forward a copy of the notice of the dispute to the appointed mediator. responding party shall file a written response with the mediator and serve a copy on the initiating party within ten (10) days of the first scheduled mediation. The mediation procedure shall be entirely informal in nature; however, copies of exhibits upon which either party bases its case shall be shared with the other party in advance of the mediation. The relevant facts should be elicited in a narrative fashion to the extent possible, rather than through examination and cross examination of witnesses. The rules of evidence will not apply and no record of the proceedings will be made. If an agreement is reached, the agreement shall be reduced to writing and shall be signed by GPA and the GLC. If GPA and the GLC fail to meet within the specified time line, have not reached an agreement within 15 days from the first meeting held by the mediator, or if the mediator declares the parties at impasse, either party may terminate mediation.

This dispute resolution procedure shall not apply to any request for equitable or injunctive relief prior to the mediation to preserve the status quo pending the completion of that process. Except for such an action to obtain equitable or injunctive relief, neither party may commence a civil action with respect to the matters submitted to mediation until after the completion of the initial mediation session, or 30 days after the date of filing the written request for mediation, whichever occurs first. Mediation may continue after the commencement of a civil action, if the parties so desire.

Q. Termination

GPA may terminate this Agreement upon occurrence of any of the following:

a. Upon failure of GLC to remediate a breach within ten (10) business days after written notice to GLC including allegations that the GLC has engaged in misrepresentation, fraud, untimely delivery of information, inaccuracy of information, or any other

- material violation of the terms of this Agreement;
- b. Upon thirty (30) days written notice to GLC of termination of services with cause;
- c. Upon one hundred and eighty (180) days written notice to GLC of mutually agreed upon termination of services without cause;

In case of termination by GPA, GPA shall cooperate in the orderly transfer of work back to the GLC or another third party vendor of business services. GPA will continue to provide services here under to the effective date of any such termination.

GLC may terminate this Agreement with cause upon delivery of written notice to GPA with full payment for work completed with a minimum thirty (30) days notice of intent to terminate.

R. Retention of Records

D. CILLIONE DADIZ A CARRIAGA

GPA shall keep and maintain full and complete documentation and accounting records, employees' time sheets, and correspondence pertaining to the services to be provided, and GPA shall make such documents available for review and/or audit by GLC and GLC's representatives at all reasonable times during the Agreement period and for at least four (3) years from the date of the completion and/or termination of this Agreement.

By: GUAJOME PARK ACADEM	Y
Dated:	
	[NAME], [TITLE]
By: GUAJOME LEARNING CEN	TERS BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Dated:	
	[NAME], [TITLE]

SERVICES AGREEMENT By and Between GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY And GUAJOME LEARNING CENTERS

Business Services:

Budgeting

- 1. Annual and Multi-Year Budgets Including Cash Flow Analysis: GPA will work with the GLC to implement annual and multi-year budgets in time for submission to the GLC Board of Directors, sponsoring district, the San Diego County Office of Education ("SDCOE"), and the California Department of Education ("CDE") according to state-mandated timelines. The following year's annual budget will be prepared for the June board meeting approval.
- 2. <u>Interim Financial Reports</u>: GPA will prepare two interim financial reports: By November 30th a first interim report (July 1st through October 31st) will be prepared for the December board meeting approval. By February 28th a second interim (July 1st through January 31st) report will be prepared for the March board meeting approval. Interim reports include an updated multi-year budget and cash flow analysis. These reports will be filed with the GLC's sponsoring district, SDCOE, and the CDE.
- 3. <u>Year-end Report</u>: By May 31st GPA will prepare a projected year end budget revision (July 1st through May 31st) for June board meeting approval.

Financial Statements

1. <u>Monthly Cash Flow Projections</u>: GPA will monitor the GLC's cash position and strive to anticipate any cash shortfalls in future months so that the GLC can adjust spending accordingly or secure cash flow loans.

Accounting

- 1. <u>Maintain Chart of Accounts</u>: GPA will maintain the GLC's chart of accounts and update as necessary throughout the length of this agreement.
- 2. <u>Fund Accounting</u>: GPA will track revenue and expenditures by fund depending on implementation of grant funds and expenses.

- 3. <u>Accurate Transaction Recording</u>: GPA will record in detail all transactions through the SDCOE computerized account system.
- 4. <u>Journal Entries and Account Maintenance</u>: GPA will prepare and record all journal entries and maintain the general ledger according to generally accepted accounting standards.
- 5. <u>SDCOE Liaison</u>: GPA will be the point of contact for both finance and payroll with the SDCOE. GPA will prepare annually all applicable SDCOE resolutions for renewal by the GLC Board of Directors. The resolutions will be limited to necessary resolutions specific to finance and payroll.
- 6. <u>CDE Liaison</u>: GPA will be the point of contact for finance with the CDE. GPA will prepare and submit all mandated reports regarding finance, attendance accounting, federal funds, and all other applicable reports.
- 7. Revenue Verification: On an ongoing basis, GPA will verify that the GLC is receiving the correct amount of funds from the following identified sources: CDE, SDCOE, sponsoring district, federal funding sources, and any other identified funding source. GPA will follow-up on all revenue issues, as necessary.
- 8. Revenue Collection: If the funds from the CDE, SDCOE, sponsoring district, federal funding sources, or any other identified funding source are not correct, GPA will research and contact the appropriate officials/departments to rectify the situation. GPA will ensure that all funds are received. GPA will represent the GLC in disputes with funding agencies over improperly calculated payments, when applicable.
- 9. <u>Year-end Close</u>: GPA will handle all aspects of year-end close, including: setting up accounts receivable e and payable; clearing suspense accounts (financial and payroll); inputting adjusting entries; moving budget to cover negatives; working with SDCOE on year-end close issues; and working with the GLC's staff, as needed.
- 10. <u>Financial Training and Meetings</u>: GPA will attend necessary and applicable conferences, workshops, and user group meetings in order to keep current on all aspects of budget and finance policies, procedures, and funding. These meetings will include but not be limited to those sponsored by SDCOE, CDE, CASBO, and School Services of California.

Purchasing

- 1. GPA will handle all aspect of direct purchases on behalf of the GLC. The process will include the submission and approval of a purchase requisition, creation of a purchase order, and placing and receiving the order.
- 2. GPA will process approved request for reimbursements according to standard reimbursement procedures.

Accounts Payable and Receivable

- 1. Process and payment of invoices: GPA will process all invoices and pay bills in a timely manner and code the invoices in the SDCOE financial software, typically on a two-week schedule, with limited special payments as needed. GPA will verify that there are funds available to pay the invoices. GLC will be required to provide to GPA the following documentation for each purchase and/or service:
 - i. Signed authorization for purchase item(s) and/or service which is to be completed and provided to GPA prior to purchase and/or receipt of service.
 - ii. Vendor and/or service invoice requesting payment.
 - iii. Packing slip and documentation indicating actual receipt of purchased item(s) and or service.
- 2. <u>Bank Reconciliation</u>: By the 10th business day of each month or upon receipt of statements, GPA will reconcile primary bank accounts to general ledger. The reconciliation will include clearing and revolving cash accounts.
- 3. <u>Clearing Account</u>: GPA will account for all deposits made to the clearing account by last business day of each month in order transfer the money in the account to SDCOE.

Audit Support

- 1. <u>Audit support</u>: GPA will prepare all financial documents for the auditors and work side-by-side with the auditors to ensure a smooth and timely audit process.
- 2. <u>Audit compliance training</u>: GPA will assist the GLC in the development of financial policies to meet the requirements of the auditors and protect the GLC from financial mismanagement.

Payroll

- 1. <u>Payroll Processing</u>: GPA will calculate and process payroll and payroll-related payments and deductions for salaried and hourly employees, according to the established SDCOE pay warrant schedule and based on information submitted by authorized GLC representatives.
- 2. <u>Timesheet Processing</u>: Employee timesheets to must be provided to GPA by the 5th business day of each month in order to ensure timesheets are processed for same month payment.
- 3. <u>Paperwork for GLC Employees</u>: GPA will receive new hire paperwork and make changes to existing payroll information directly from the authorized GLC designee. The GLC is responsible for hiring credentialed teachers and submitting paperwork to GPA by the 5th business day of each month in order to meet SDCOE deadlines to process employee information for payroll.
- 4. New Hire Input and Payroll Record Maintenance: Within five (5) business days of receiving paperwork new hire paperwork from the GLC; GPA will input all new hire information into the SDCOE payroll system. GPA will input any updates or changes in the SDCOE payroll system. This includes, but is not limited to: personal employee information, salary schedules, Tax Sheltered Annuities and 457(b), direct deposits, health insurance premiums, TB test expirations, hire date, term date, federal and state tax allowances, and SACS position expense distribution.
- 5. <u>Employee Files</u>: GPA will maintain employee payroll files and employee personnel files.
- 6. <u>W-2 Processing</u>: GPA will prepare duplicate and corrected W-2's.
- 7. <u>Sick Leave Input</u>: By the 5th business day of each month GLC will provide employee absence information to GPA. GPA will maintain sick leave records on a monthly basis in the SDCOE payroll system in order for remaining sick leave to be reported on the employee's pay warrant stub each month.
- 8. Payroll Training and Meetings: GPA will attend necessary and applicable conferences, workshops, and user group meetings in order to keep current on all aspects of payroll policies, procedures, and funding. These meetings will include but not be limited to those sponsored by SDCOE, CDE, and CASBO.
- 9. <u>Employee Issues</u>: GPA will interact and work with employees on payroll issues to ensure accurate processing and changes.

- 10. <u>Payroll Forms</u>: GPA will provide the forms necessary for accurate payroll tracking.
- 11. <u>Distribution of Pay Warrants & W2's</u>: GPA will be responsible for the distribution of monthly pay warrants and annual W2's, which are received directly from the SDCOE. GPA will follow appropriate procedures for distribution.

BY: GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY		
Dated:		
	[NAME], [TITLE]	
By: GUAJOME LEARNING CENTI	ERS BOARD OF DIRECTORS	
Dated:		
	[NAME], [TITLE]	

SERVICES AGREEMENT By and Between GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY And GUAJOME LEARNING CENTERS

This Schedule of Fees for Services ("Schedule") documents the fees to be paid for services by Guajome Learning Centers ("GLC"), a California public charter school operated as a nonprofit public benefit corporation to Guajome Park Academy ("GPA"), a California public charter school operated as nonprofit public benefit corporation. The services will include all services included in the Services Agreement ("Agreement").

- 1. Term. The fee schedule specified herein is effective for the duration of the length of the GLC's current charter, April 12, 2016 through June 30, 2021 September 12, 2023-June 30, 2027.
- 2. Payments for Services. As soon as practicable following the last business day of each fiscal year, GPA will invoice GLC in arrears for services provided to GLC in the preceding fiscal year. The formulas for these invoices will be as follows:
 - Percentage Calculation Enrollment Based- A calculation of the percentage of enrollment for the GLC based on the total student enrollments of GPA and GLC will be established. (Example if the total enrollment for GPA and GLC equals 1500 students and the GLC enrollment equals 150 students the GLC enrollment will be 10% of the total enrollments of both GPA and the GLC. This is an example only and does not indicate the actual percentage.) The percentage calculation will determine a per student rate for services.
 - Percentage Calculation Facilities Based: As it relates to facility usage services, GLC will be charged based upon the percentage of the facilities (Calculated by square foot) that are being used by the GLC.
 - Once the student enrollment percentage calculation is determined, percentage will be used to determine the fee for service, which will be this percentage of the actual costs for GPA staff (salary and benefits) providing services for GLC. (Example if the GPA staff payroll costs for the staff providing services for GLC equal \$900,000 and the percentage calculation equal 10% the fee for service would equal \$90.000. This is an example only and does not indicate the actual amounts.)
 - An estimate of the percentage calculation will be determined by June of the prior school year; and this percentage will be used for proposed budgeting purposes. The final percentage calculation will be determined on P-2 attendance enrollment of the current school year. The <u>final percentage</u> calculation will be the actual percentage used for the fee for service.

The services to be provided to GLC will include: general administrative services support; educational support (including student services), technology support; human resources support; and business support (including facilities services).

- 3. Payments for In-Direct Expenses. The GLC will be responsible for in-direct expenses for operations, which will include but may not be limited to facilities rent, utilities, maintenance and operations materials/supplies; pest services, cleaning services, and rental/lease of equipment. In cases where the expenses are shared expenses GPA will utilize the same enrollment percentage calculation, as described in Section 2, to determine GLC's share of the expenses.
- 4. Invoicing and Payment Terms. Invoices will be due and payable in full by GLC within 30 days of receipt.

By: GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY	
Dated:	
	[NAME], [TITLE]
By: GUAJOME LEARNING CENT	ERS BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Dated:	
	[NAME], [TITLE]

GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY

AGENDA ITEM 8F

TO:

Board of Directors

FROM: DATE:

Superintendent September 7, 2023

SUBJECT: Stipend Schedule Update

A one-time stipend of \$10,000.00 will be provided to the one current TOSA to reflect the increase in job responsibilities compared to their previous job responsibilities.

FISCAL IMPACT: \$10,000.00

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval

Prepared by:

Kendria Tavares and Julie Hoopes

Approved by:

Kevin Humphrey, Superintendent

GUAJOME PARK ACADEMY STIPENDS Effective September 1, 2023

RANGE	ANNUAL	MONTHLY (11 MONTHS)	
1	\$1,000.00	\$90.91	
2	\$1,250.00	\$113.64	
3	\$1,500.00	\$136.36	
4	\$1,700.00	\$154.55	
5	\$2,000.00	\$181.82	
6	\$3,000.00	\$272.73	
7	\$4,700.00	\$427.27	
8	\$10,000.00	\$909.09	

RANGE	STIPEND NAME
	Academic Coach
	IB Career Program Service Learning Coordinator
1	IB Career Program Language Development Coordinator
	BTSA Lead
	Summer School Lead Teacher (per session)
	Security Lead
	Scholarships
	High School Junior Varsity Coach
2	Work Experience
	Short Term Independent Study
	Mentor Teacher
3	Lead Counselor
	After School Enrichment (per semester)
	Middle School Coach
4	BTSA Support Provider (per participant)
	Yearbook Advisor - GPPA
	Advanced Degree Stipend
	AVID Coordinator
5	AVID Site Director
	Extended Essay Lead
	CAS Lead
	High School Varsity Coach
6	Drumline Coach
	ASB Advisor – High School
	ASB Advisor - Middle School
	IB Coordinator
7	Yearbook Advisor
	Grade Level Lead-SAC
	ILT
8	Althletic Director
_	Teacher on Special Assignment

TO:

Board of Directors

FROM:

Superintendent

DATE:

September 7, 2023

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF NONPUBLIC AGENCY MASTER CONTRACTS & MOU

Federal and state special education laws and regulations require a free appropriate education for all disabled students. Whenever a student's special education needs are such that they cannot be met through either local or regional classes, the district/local educational agency (LEA) is required to participate in the location of an educational program where the student's special education needs can be addressed.

During the school year special education students are identified through the IEP process as requiring mental health, language/speech therapy, occupational therapy, physical therapy, low incidence services (support of auditory and visual impairments), and/or nursing services through non-public agencies. These agencies are also utilized to obtain additional support when caseloads become unmanageable or when service provider staff require substitute coverage. The agencies on the attached list were determined to be appropriate agencies to assist us in providing these services.

The original executed master contracts between the attached list of nonpublic agencies and Guajome Schools for the 2023-24 school year are available in the special education coordinator's office.

FISCAL IMPACT:

See attached rates and current anticipated needs.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the attached list of nonpublic agency master contracts

Prepared by:

Karen Whitworth, Special Education Program Coordinator

Approved by:

Kevin Humphrey, Superintendent

Nonpublic, Nonsectarian SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT 2023-2024

MASTER CONTRACT

GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN, NONPUBLIC SCHOOL AND AGENCY SERVICES

	LEA _	GUAJO	ME PARK ACADEMY
		Contract Year	2023-2024
		Nonpublic School	
	X	Nonpublic Agency	y
Type of	Contract:		
X	Master Contract for fis term of this contract.	scal year with Individua	al Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the
			lent incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) ract specific to a single student.
		et is to provide for ongo	s fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpose bing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole
		on is included as part o ction 4 – Term of Mass	of any Master Contract, the changes specified above ter Contract.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	<u>GE</u>	NERAL PROVISIONS	<u>Page</u>
	1	MASTER CONTRACT	1
			1 1
		COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS	2
		TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT	2
		INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT	2
	٥.		3
	6		
		INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT DEFINITIONS	4
II.	AI	DMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT	
	0	NOTICES	5
	0.	MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS	5 5
	9. 10	CEVED ADII ITV CI ALICE	6
		CLICCECCODE IN INTEDECT	
		VENUE AND COVERNING LAW	6
		MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO	
	13.	CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES	6
	1/1	TEDMINATION	
		INSURANCE	6
		INSURANCE INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS	9
		SURCONTRACTING	 9
		CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	 10
		NON-DISCRIMINATION	 1(
		TON-DISCRIMINATION	
III	[. <u>E</u>]	DUCATIONAL PROGRAM	
	21.	FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION	1:
	22.	GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION	11
	23.	INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES	
	24.	CLASS SIZE	
	25.	CALENDARS	13
		DATA REPORTING	13
	27.	LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT	14
	28.	STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING	14
	29.	MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS	14
	30.	POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS	13
	31.	STUDENT DISCIPLINE	16
	32.	IEP TEAM MEETINGS	10
	33.	SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH	17
	34.	DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS	17
	35.	COMPLAINT PROCEDURES	1′
		STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS	
		TRANSCRIPTS	18
		STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE	19
		WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM	19
	40.	PARENT ACCESS	19

	INSTITUTION CONTRACTORS	
AND RESIDENTIAL TREA	ATMENT CENTER CONTRACTORS	19
42. STATE MEAL MANDATE		20
43. MONITORING		20
IV. PERSONNEL		
44. CLEARANCE REQUIREM	IENTS	21
45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS		21
46. VERIFICATION OF LICEN	NSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS	22
47. STAFF ABSENCE		20
48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL B	BEHAVIOR	22
V. HEALTH AND SAFETY M	<u>MANDATES</u>	
49. HEALTH AND SAFETY		23
50. FACILITIES AND FACILI	TIES MODIFICATIONS	2/
51. ADMINISTRATION OF M	IEDICATION	2/
52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT RE		
53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTIN	NG	2/
54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT		26
55. REPORTING OF MISSING	G CHILDREN	25
VI. <u>FINANCIAL</u>		
56. ENROLLMENT, CONTRA	ACTING, SERVICE TRACKING,	
ATTENDANCE REPORTI	ING AND BILLING PROCEDURES	25
57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PA		26
58. PAYMENT FROM OUTSII	DE AGENCIES	27
59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCE	ES	27
60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC S	SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY	28
61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT	Γ	28
62. RATE SCHEDULE		20
63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICA		29
EXHIBIT A: RATES		32
EXHIBIT B: INDIVIDUAL SERVIO		34

CONTRACT NUMBER:

LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY: Guajome Park Academy

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: North

County Family Counseling Services

NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT

AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract (or "Contract") is entered into on July 1, 2023, between <u>Guajome Park Academy</u>, hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA"), a member of the El Dorado Charter SELPA and <u>North County Family Counseling Services</u> (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred to as NPS/A or "CONTRACTOR" for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 *et seq.* and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 *et seq.*, AB 490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB 1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this agreement does not commit the LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any student, or CONTRACTOR to provide such special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Service Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA"). Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all relevant services specified in the student's Individualized Education Program (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days of a student's enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each student served by CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and/or electronic database for the development of the ISA and invoices.

Unless placement and/or services is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed settlement agreement between LEA and parent or authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A services until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent.

2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a NPS/A. All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification and licensure specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 *et seq* and within the professional scope of practice of each provider's license, certification, and/or credential. A current copy of CONTRACTOR's NPS/A certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this Agreement is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification and in Section 24 of the Master Contract.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified and all staff persons providing services to pupils shall be certified and/or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children's institution (hereinafter referred to as "LCI"), CONTRACTOR shall be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract with the state to license, to provide nonmedical care room and board to children, including, but not limited to, individuals with exceptional needs. The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements relevant to the protection of the child, and have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child so placed. If the CONTRACTOR operates a program outside of this State, CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the appropriate licensing agency in both California and in the state where the LCI is located.

With respect to CONTRACTOR's certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE in writing of any changes in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS

During the term of this Master Contract, unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of Section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to; the provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, student enrollment and transfer, student inactive status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive behavior interventions).

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE nonpublic school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a).

4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT

The term of this Master Contract shall be from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years. The parties acknowledge that any subsequent Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2024. In the event the contract negotiations are not agreed to by June 30th, the most recently executed Master Contract will remain in effect for 90 days. (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d)) No Master Contract will be offered unless and until all of the contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR is at the sole discretion of the LEA.

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR's ownership or authorized representative shall be provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized representative.

5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION

This Master Contract includes each ISA and they are incorporated herein by this reference. This Master Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement. This Master Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties.

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract or a renewal.

At a minimum, such information shall include copies of current teacher credentials and clearance, insurance documentation and CDE certification. The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract will be issued. If CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new Master Contract's effective date. If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract within such ninety-day period, all payments shall cease until such time as the new Master Contract for the current school year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) and (2)). In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students at the discretion of the LEA.

6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICE AGREEMENT ("ISA")

This Agreement shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide special education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with the approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A). An ISA may be effective for more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect. In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students.

Any and all changes to a student's educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student's IEP or by written agreement between the parent and LEA. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a student's parent, CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a student's IEP subject to all procedural safeguards required by law.

Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California Education Code sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)). In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5) business days of the last date a service was provided. CONTRACTOR shall provide any and all subsequent compensatory service hours awarded to student as a result of lack of provision of services while student was served by the NPS/A.

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, CONTRACTOR shall abide by the "stay-put" requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.

Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located, or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code section 56366(c) (2).

7. **DEFINITIONS**

The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract:

- a. The term "CONTRACTOR" means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the California Department of Education and its officers, agents, and employees.
- b. The term "authorized LEA representative" means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible for NPS/A. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA. The LEA maintains sole responsibility for this Contract, unless otherwise specified in this Contract.
- c. The term "credential" means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(g).
- d. The term "qualified" means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and related services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which the individual is providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards contained in the California Business and Professions Code.

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations. (Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (r)).

e The term "license" means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or refer to themselves using a specified professional title including but not limited to mental health and board and care services at a residential placement. If a license is not available through an appropriate state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at the national or state level which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(1).

f. "Parent" means:

- i. a biological or adoptive parent; unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal authority to make educational decisions for the child,
- ii. a guardian generally authorized to act as the child's parent or authorized to make educational decisions for the child,
- iii. an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally responsible for the child's welfare,

- iv. a surrogate parent,
- v. a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational decisions on the child's behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2).

Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the NPS/A under contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services for a child. (California Education Code section 56028).

- g. The term "days" means calendar days unless otherwise specified.
- h. The phrase "billable day" means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs.
- i. The phrase "billable day of attendance" means a school day as defined in California Education Code Section 46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA.
- j. It is understood that the term "Master Contract" also means "Contract" and is referred to as such in this document.

ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT

8. NOTICES

All notices provided for by this Contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page of this Master Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of this Master Contract.

9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) years after the termination of this Master Contract. For purposes of this Master Contract, "records" shall include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision; daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional instructional assistants, NPA behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; behavior emergency reports (BER); incident reports; notification of injuries; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications bylaws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general journals; cash receipts and disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents; documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; evidence of electronic payments; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of CONTRACTOR's employees who have access to confidential records. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an access log for each student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, date/time of access for each individual requesting or receiving information from the student's record, and a description of the record(s) provided. Such log needs to record access to the student's records by: (a) the student's parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the student's parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student records. For purposes of this paragraph, "employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR" do not include subcontractors. CONTRACTOR shall grant the following access to student records, (a) the student's parent; (b) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record, and comply with parents' requests for copies of student records, as required by state and federal laws and regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school or agency closure, to forward student records within ten (10) business days to LEA. These shall include, but not limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, BER's, incident reports, notification of injuries and all other relevant reports. LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request within five (5) business days.

10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect.

11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST

This contract binds CONTRACTOR's successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of any change of ownership or corporate control.

12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the County where the LEA is located.

13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. The party seeking such modification shall provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days' notice of any such changes or modifications made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which the modification or changes are based.

14. TERMINATION

This Master Contract or ISA may be terminated for cause. The cause shall not be the availability of a public class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the public school program at an IEP team meeting. To terminate the contract either party shall give no less than twenty (20) days prior written notice (California Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of termination, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under this Master Contract. ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section 5 or 6. CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause. To terminate the ISA, either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice.

15. INSURANCE

CONTRACTOR shall, at CONTRACTOR'S sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the term of this Contract, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the work or any component or part thereof:

PART I - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AND AGENCIES

A. **Commercial General Liability Insurance**, including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$2,000,000 per occurrence \$ 500,000 fire damage \$ 5,000 medical expenses \$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury \$3,000,000 general aggregate \$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual molestation or abuse. In the event that CONTRACTOR's policy should have an exclusion for sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a supplemental policy providing such coverage.

- B. **Workers' Compensation Insurance** in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- C. **Commercial Auto Liability Insurance** for all owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a \$1 million combined single limit.

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.

If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from students' homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements.

D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage,

<u>including</u> Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits:

\$1,000,000 per occurrence \$2,000,000 general aggregate

E. CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this Contract and periodically thereafter upon request, shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage. The certificate of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name the LEA and the Board of Education additional insured's premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by

CONTRACTOR and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR's obligations under this contract at no additional charge.

- F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above \$100,000 must be declared to and approved by the LEA. At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR's sole cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation.
- G. For any claims related to the services performed in connection with this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR's insurance coverage shall be the primary insurance with respect to the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- H. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on the certificate.

PART II - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED WITH A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY ("RTC")

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS affiliated with a **residential treatment center (NPS/RTC**), the following insurance policies are required:

A. **Commercial General Liability** including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$3,000,000 per occurrence \$6,000,000 in General Aggregate.

The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as *named* additional insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC's insurance primary despite any conflicting provisions in the RTC's policy. Coverage shall be maintained with no Self-Insured Retention above \$100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA.

- B. **Workers' Compensation Insurance** in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- C. Commercial Auto Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the RTC provides student bus services, the required coverage limit is \$5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence.
- D. **Fidelity Bond** or **Crime Coverage** shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all employees who process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be \$250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured retention.
- E. **Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice** coverage with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.

F. **Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage**, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations.

16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors ("LEA Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of CONTRACTOR, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall arise immediately upon tender of a claim or lawsuit to the CONTRACTOR. The LEA and the Member District(s) shall have the right in their sole discretion to select counsel of its choice to provide the defense at the sole cost of the CONTRACTOR or the applicable insurance carrier.

To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors ("CONTRACTOR Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance thereof, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by the negligent, intentional act or willful act or omission of LEA, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR Indemnities).

LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the State of California, that the self-insurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that its self-insurance covers the LEA's indemnification obligations under this Master Contract.

17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this Contract as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed to create any association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.

If the LEA is determined to be a partner, joint venture, co-principal, employer or co-employer of CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that determination, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.

18. SUBCONTRACTING

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract. In the event LEA determines that it can provide the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s). If LEA elects to provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of receipt of CONTRACTOR's original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s).

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the fullest extent reasonably possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the provision of special education and/or related services (including, but not limited to, transportation) for any student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term of each subcontract. Such subcontractor's insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15. Each subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage required by Section 15. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor's work commences. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the LEA Board of Education as additional insured.

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master Contract. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the LEA contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate. In addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in Section 45 Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.

19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and Government Code Section 1090 including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student's advocate. Pursuant to California Education code section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not recommend placement at CONTRACTOR's facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of interest.

The LEA shall neither execute an ISA with CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special education and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR to the student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e., before or after the student is enrolled in CONTRACTOR's school/agency) or whether an assessment of the student is performed or a report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation (hereinafter referred to as "IEE") and its recommendations, the LEA may not fund an IEE by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom the IEE is requested. Likewise, the LEA may not fund services through the evaluator whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund. When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an individual who is or was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty-five (365) days prior to executing this contract. This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated instruction and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to ten months of the school year by LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a private pay or tuition free "scholarship" basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to pursue funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings.

20. NON-DISCRIMINATION

CONTRACTOR shall not, in employment or operation of its programs, unlawfully discriminate on the basis of gender, nationality, national origin, ancestry, race, color, ethnicity, ethnic group affiliation, religion, age, marital status, pregnancy or parental status, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or expression, physical or mental disability, genetic information or any other classification protected by federal or state law or the perception of one or more of such characteristics or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE)

The LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition Plan (hereinafter referred to as "ITP") of each student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services (including transition services) to each student within the NPS/A consistent with the student's IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall not accept a student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services outlined in the student's IEP. If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease.

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities, as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the student's enrollment under the terms of this Master Contract). LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low incidence disabilities when specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the NPS. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations. CONTRACTOR may charge a student's parent(s) for services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed by the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of financial responsibility.

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education shall not interfere with the student's receipt of special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and PARENT agree otherwise in writing.

22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION

All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 *et seq.*..

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, assistive technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Students shall have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted Common Core State Standards ("CCSS") for curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive;

and provide standards – aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, used by an LEA, that contracts with the NPS: (b) college preparation courses; (c) extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college counseling.

When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades 9 through 12 inclusive, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading toward graduation or completion of LEA's diploma requirements. CONTRACTOR shall not award a high school diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA's graduation requirements.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA and CDE guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. The NPA providing Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written plan that specifies the nature of their NPA service for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA. Schoolbased services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or provided at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team. Except for services provided by a CONTRACTOR that is a Licensed Children's Institution (LCI), all services not provided in the school setting require the presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, provided such guardian or caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as requested. LCI CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is present during the provision of services under this Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA in writing if no parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a written description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date of this Master Contract. CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention services must have a trained behaviorist or trained equivalent on staff. It is understood that Behavior Intervention services are limited per CDE Certification and do not constitute as an instructional program.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing.

23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP and ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and passing time shall be at the same level that Ed. Code prescribes for the LEA.

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

24. CLASS SIZE

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of one teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing. Upon prior written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a

ratio of 1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to provide services to students with disabilities.

In the event a NPS is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to students, and the vacancy has direct impact on the CDE Certification of that school, the NPS shall develop a plan to ensure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated staff. The NPS and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may be increased to ensure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher. Such an agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties. This provision does not apply to a NPA.

CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs between the ages of three and five years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 et seq.

25. CALENDARS

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a school calendar with the total number of billable days not to exceed 180 days, plus extended school year billable days equivalent to the number of days determined by the LEA's extended school year calendar. Billable days shall include only those days that are included on the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or required by the IEP (developed by the LEA) for each student. CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school calendar and/or amend the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA. Nothing in this Master Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes.

Unless otherwise specified by the student's IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site. A student shall only be eligible for extended school year services as determined by the IEP team and the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA. Extended school year shall consist of twenty (20) instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP team convened by the LEA. Any days of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing, prior to the start of the extended school year.

Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school year and received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any NPS service. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA. Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, President's Day, Memorial Day and Independence Day. With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by the LEA.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA-developed/approved calendar prior to the initiation of services. CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe holidays as specified in the LEA-developed/approved calendar. CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to the LEA-developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. Unless otherwise specified in the LEA student's ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those days that the LEA student's school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school. CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the LEA calendar unless CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing. Student must have actually been in attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any NPA service provided by CONTRACTOR. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

26. DATA REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing information with LEA. CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide data related to all sections of this contract, including student discipline as noted below, and requested by and in the format required by the LEA. It is understood that all NPS/A shall utilize the LEA approved electronic IEP system for all IEP development, service tracking documentation, and progress reporting, unless otherwise agreed to by the LEA. Additional progress reporting may be required by the LEA. The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access.

Using forms developed by the CDE or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education Code sections 48900 and 48915. CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code sections 48900 and 48915.

The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for such data including, but not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports. The LEA may approve use of CONTRACTOR'S provided forms at their discretion.

27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive Environment ("LRE") options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate.

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP team consideration of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings.

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team's recommended activities to support the transition.

28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer all statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress ("CAASPP"), Desired Results Developmental Profile ("DRDP"), California Alternative Assessment ("CAA"), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness Gram, the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California ("ELPAC"), the Alternative English Language Proficiency Assessments for California ("Alternative ELPAC"), and as appropriate to the student, and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code section 52052, in the same manner as public schools. Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by the LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability program. LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR'S qualified staff. CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as required by LEA.

29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS

CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school graduation, standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, data collection, and standardized testing and IEPs. LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings. Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s).

30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 49005, *et seq.*, 56521.1 and 56521.2. LEA students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others must receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the federal law and it's implementing regulations. If the IEP team determines that a student's behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention Plan ("BIP"), the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student's behavioral problems through the development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all of its staff members are trained in crisis intervention, emergency procedures, and evidenced-based practices and interventions specific to the unique behavioral needs of the CONTRACTOR's pupil population. The training shall be provided within 30 days of employment to new staff who have any contact or interaction with pupils during the school day, and annually to all staff who have any contact or interaction with pupils during the school day. The CONTRACTOR shall select and conduct the training in accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1. CONTRACTOR shall maintain written records of the training and provide written verification of the training annually and upon request.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for a BIP, and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency interventions may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency.

CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is defined as a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others. It requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used. Emergencies *require* a behavior emergency report form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours for administrative action. CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone. If the student's IEP does not contain a BIP, an IEP team shall schedule a meeting to review the behavior emergency report, determine if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine an interim plan. If the student already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been exhibited or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective. CONTRACTOR shall schedule with LEA an IEP meeting within two (2) days.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following:

- 1.any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to, electric-shock;
- 2.an intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant sprays, mists, or substances in proximity to the face of the individual;
- 3.an intervention that denies adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities;
- 4.an intervention that is designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse, ridicule, or humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma;
- 5.restrictive interventions that employ a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, including the procedure known as prone containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques may be used by trained personnel as a limited emergency intervention;
- 6.locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room:

7.an intervention that precludes adequate supervision of the individual;

8. an intervention that deprives the individual of one or more of his or her senses.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with Education Code section 49005.8. Specifically, Contractor shall not do any of the following:

- 1. Use seclusion or a behavioral restraint for the purpose of coercion, discipline, convenience, or retaliation.
- 2. Use locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room.
- 3. Use a physical restraint technique that obstructs a pupil's respiratory airway or impairs the pupil's breathing or respiratory capacity, including techniques in which a staff member places pressure on a pupil's back or places his or her body weight against the pupil's torso or back.
- 4. Use a behavioral restraint technique that restricts breathing, including, but not limited to, using a pillow, blanket, carpet, mat, or other item to cover a pupil's face.
- 5. Place a pupil in a facedown position with the pupil's hands held or restrained behind the pupil's back
- 6. Use a behavioral restraint for longer than is necessary to contain the behavior that poses a clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the pupil or others.

CONTRACTOR shall keep constant, direct observation of a pupil who is in seclusion, which may be through observation of the pupil through a window, or another barrier, through which the educational provider is able to make direct eye contact with the pupil. This observation shall not be through indirect means, including through a security camera or a closed-circuit television.

CONTRACTOR shall afford pupils who are restrained the least restrictive alternative and the maximum freedom of movement, and shall use the least number of restraint points, while ensuring the physical safety of the pupil and others.

If prone restraint techniques are used by CONTRACTOR, a staff member shall observe the pupil for any signs of physical distress throughout the use of prone restraint. Whenever possible, the staff member monitoring the pupil shall not be involved in restraining the pupil.

In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child's learning or that of others, the IEP team shall consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations.

All restraint practices must be reviewed and revised when they have an adverse effect on a student and are used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or multiple uses by the same individual. CONTRACTOR shall notify the student's parent/guardian when any type of physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used. Upon the use of any type of physical or

mechanical restraint or seclusions of an LEA student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the reporting and notification requirements listed above.

31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with state and federal law and regulations. Using forms developed by the California Department of Education or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education Codes 48900 and 48915. CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code Sections 48900 and 48915.

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA. Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to: the student's name; the time, date, and description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such disciplinary action. A copy of the student's behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10th) day of suspension.

32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the NPS; and (3) whether changes to the student's IEP are necessary, including whether the student may be transitioned to a public school setting. (California Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii)) and pursuant to California Education Code section 56345 (b) (4).)

If the LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document a description of activities provided to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team. Except as otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student's IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting. Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It is understood that attendance at an IEP meeting is part of CONTRACTOR'S professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this Master Contract.

It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA for all IEP planning and progress reporting at the LEA's discretion. The LEA or SELPA may provide training for any CONTRACTOR to ensure access to the approved system. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain confidentiality of all IEP data on the approved system and shall protect the password requirements of the system. When a student dis-enrolls from the NPS/NPA, the NPS/NPA and LEA shall discontinue use of the approved system for that student.

Changes in any student's educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting provided under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student's IEP. In

the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student's IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change in the student's placement. Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement unless parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.

33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. Surrogate parents shall serve as the child's parent and have all the rights relative to the student's education that a parent has under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 1414-1482 and 34 CFR 300.1-300.756. A pupil in foster care shall be defined pursuant to California Education Code section 42238.01(b). The LEA shall annually notify the CONTRACTOR who the LEA has designated as the educational liaison for foster children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a NPS by the LEA any time after the completion of the pupil's second year of high school, the CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil in courses leading towards graduation based on the diploma requirements of the LEA unless provided notice otherwise in writing pursuant to Section 51225.1.

34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS

CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations and hearings, as requested by LEA. Participation further includes the willingness to make CONTRACTOR's staff available for witness preparation and testimony as is necessary to facilitate a due process hearing. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other state and/or federal governmental body or agency. Full participation shall include, but in no way be limited to, cooperating with LEA representatives to provide complete answers raised by any investigator and/or the immediate provision of any and all documentation that pertains to the operation of CONTRACTOR's program and/or the implementation of a particular student's IEP/Individual and Family Service Plan ("IFSP").

35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent complaints. These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students with appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 *et seq.*; (2) Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) (d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ("HIPAA"). CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA of any complaints filed against it related to LEA students and provide LEA with all documentation related to the complaints and/or its investigation of complaints, including any and all reports generated as a result of an investigation.

36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS

Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall provide to parents at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards. At a minimum, progress reports shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives. A copy of the progress reports/report cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR's place of business and shall be submitted to the LEA and LEA student's parent(s) quarterly.

The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation used to determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data

sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior intervention plans. The LEA may request such data at any time within five (5) years of the date of service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data supporting progress within five (5) business days of request. Additional time may be granted as needed by the LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the student ten (10) days prior to the student's annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student's present levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices. CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient copies of its reports, documents, and projected goals to share with members of the IEP team five (5) business days prior to the IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation such as test protocols and data collection, which shall be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request.

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, progress reporting and development of present levels of performance. All assessments resulting from an assessment plan shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that CONTRACTOR perform such additional assessment. Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be added to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at the LEA's sole discretion.

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA. For NPA services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 3065, shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA. Supervision means the direct observation of services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each professional's license, certification, or credential.

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student's parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report cards, evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, and/or meetings. It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil's record and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request.

37. TRANSCRIPTS

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester, or upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit them on LEA approved forms to the student's school of residence for evaluation of progress toward completion of diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of students and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA.

38. STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

Within five (5) school days from the date CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student's change of residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA, in writing, of the student's change of residence. Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation to notify CONTRACTOR of the student's change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents.

If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student's change of residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered following the student's change of residence.

39. WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5) business days when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services, including

student's change of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and parent/guardian withdrawal of student against professional advice from a NPS/RTC.

40. PARENT ACCESS

CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including, but not limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters, when applicable. CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA students.

CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent's reasonable request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC. CONTRACTOR shall require that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA at least thirty (30) days in advance. When requested, CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all parent travel and accommodations and for providing travel information to the parent as appropriate. Payment by LEA for approved travel-related expenses shall be made directly through the LEA consistent with LEA Procedures.

CONTRACTOR providing services in the student's home as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an emergency, is present. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization for emergencies. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider.

All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided, in writing, to the LEA.

41. LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION ("LCI") CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER ("RTC") CONTRACTORS

If CONTRACTOR is a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9 (c) (1), Health and Safety Code section 1501.1and any other applicable laws and/or regulations, including LEA guidelines or procedures. An LCI shall not require that a pupil be placed in its NPS as a condition of being placed in its residential facility.

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS/RTC, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1400 et seq. including the federal regulations 34 C.F.R section 300 et seq. and Education Code section 56000 et seq. including Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq.. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all monitoring requirements set forth in Section 43 below.

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as eligible for special education. For those identified as special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each student's IEP at the time of enrollment. A copy of the current IEP shall be provided to the LEA.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent or another adult with educational decision-making rights.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

42. STATE MEAL MANDATE

When CONTRACTOR is an NPS, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under California Education Code sections 49005 et seq.; 49501.5, the universal meal mandate enacted by AB 130 (2021-2022); 49530 et seq; and 49550 et seq.

43. MONITORING

When CONTRACTOR is an NPS, the LEA or SELPA shall conduct at least one onsite monitoring visit during each school year to the NPS at which the LEA has a pupil attending and with which it maintains a master contract. The monitoring visit shall include, but is not limited to, a review of services provided to the pupil through the ISA between the LEA and the NPS, a review of progress the pupil is making toward the goals set forth in the pupil's individualized education program, a review of progress the pupil is making toward the goals set forth in the pupil's behavioral intervention plan, if applicable, an observation of the pupil during instruction, and a walkthrough of the facility. The LEA or SELPA shall report the findings resulting from the monitoring visit to the California Department of Education within 60 calendar days of the onsite visit.

The LEA or SELPA shall conduct an onsite visit to the NPS before placement of a pupil if the LEA does not have any pupils enrolled at the school at the time of placement.

CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for additional periodic monitoring of each student's instructional program. LEA shall have access to observe each student at work, observe the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each student's records and progress. Such access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to CONTRACTOR's site administrative office. CONTRACTOR shall be invited to participate in the review of each student's progress.

If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, the CDE shall annually evaluate whether CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction ("Superintendent") shall monitor CONTRACTOR'S facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and (3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three.

CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA or CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the NPS, compliance with relevant state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-up or corrective action procedures related to review findings.

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause. The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California Education Code Section 33126.

PERSONNEL

44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237, 35021.1, 35021.2, and 56366.1 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as "CDOJ") and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers who will have or likely may have any direct contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers shall not come in contact with students until CDOJ and FBI clearance are ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with students, or subcontractors who may come into contact with students have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the employee's conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j). Upon request, clearance certification shall be submitted to the LEA. In addition, CONTRACTOR shall make a request for subsequent arrest service from CDOJ as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2. Contractor shall certify to LEA that they have successful background checks and enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service for all employees who may come into contact with students.

Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each owner, operator, and employee of the NPS/A. CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency. Background clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service, as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.

45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations sections 3001(r), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified staff may only provide related services within the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession, and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher's scope of practice.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided to the CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)).

In accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1(a)(5), when CONTRACTOR is a NPS, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development. The administrator of the NPS holds or is in the process of obtaining one of the following: (A) An administrative credential granted by an accredited postsecondary educational institution and two years of experience with pupils with disabilities. (B) A pupil personnel services credential that authorizes school counseling or psychology. (C) A license as a

clinical social worker issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (D) A license in psychology regulated by the Board of Psychology. (E) A master's degree issued by an accredited postsecondary institution in education, special education, psychology, counseling, behavioral analysis, social work, behavioral science, or rehabilitation. (F) A credential authorizing special education instruction and at least two years of experience teaching in special education before becoming an administrator. (G) A license as a marriage and family therapist certified by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (H) A license as an educational psychologist issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (I) A license as a professional clinical counselor issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (California Education Code Section 56366.1 (a)(5)). CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to the LEA upon request, documentation of its administrator's qualifications in accordance with the above.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections 45340 *et seq.* and 45350 *et seq.* Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to, instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications: (a) completed at least two (2) years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate's (or higher) degree; or (c) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and mathematics readiness, as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test clearance for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with any student.

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within forty-five (45) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or lawsuit, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. The LEA shall not be obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is providing services under this Master Contract. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

47. STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school and CONTRACTOR's classroom teacher is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to the LEA documentation of substitute coverage. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute for their student. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA representative.

48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME

It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified NPS/A shall adhere to the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services. All practices shall only be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made available to the CONTRACTOR.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by NPS/A providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus consistent with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall be made available to the CONTRACTOR upon request. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the instructional program.

CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student's school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in an emergency is present during provision of services. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home-based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR to parents or guardians, in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA.

HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES

49. HEALTH AND SAFETY

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 *et. seq.* and 49406, regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before an individual comes in contact with a student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code.

50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to: disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning permits; and occupancy capacity. When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire drills as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR's facilities as required complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49422 et seq. when CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication during the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the administration of such medication after the student's parent(s) provide to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the student's parent(s) granting CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician's statement. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student to whom medication is administered. Such written log shall specify the student's name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR's employee who administered the medication. CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for storing medications in a secure location and ensuring appropriate staff training in the administration of such medication consistent with physician's written orders. Any change in medication type, administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.

52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures specified in LEA Procedures.

53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. To protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e., reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted to the LEA.

54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR's policy, as well as federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and related procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1.

55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN

CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 49370. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA. The written statement shall be submitted as specified by the LEA.

FINANCIAL

56. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND BILLING PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall assure that the nonpublic school or nonpublic agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to implement the IEP and ISA for each and every student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA Procedures, as well as provide all such records requested by LEA concerning the same. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services specified in the student's IEP and ISA. All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Contract and governed by all applicable federal and state laws.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides. Original attendance forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter. CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being billed for payment.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall be properly submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA. At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed to by the LEA; name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA administrator authorizing that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when the service was provided.

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract. At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training.

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period in which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) days of LEA's receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in

California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA.

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond December 31st after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling for the Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, but no later than twelve (12) months from the close of the fiscal year. If the billing or re-billing error is the responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year. LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee.

57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT

LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole or in part, under the terms of this contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive services; (c) CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e) education and/or related services are provided to students by personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has not received prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning one or more students enrolled in CONTRACTOR's educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student's change of residence to another district or confirms the change of residence to another district, but fails to notify LEA within five (5) days of such confirmation; or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a student. It is understood that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months following the close of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.

Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for regular ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA. Such review or audit will be completed within ninety (90) days. The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected.

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding paragraph are as follows: (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of overpayment; (c) the portion of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been provided by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e) the proportionate amount of the invoice related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation is cured; or (f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the service provided to the student.

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA's withholding payment and the amount to be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA's withholding payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies or submit to LEA written documentation demonstrating that the basis or bases cited by the LEA for withholding payment is

unfounded. Upon receipt of CONTRACTOR's written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR's time to correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied.

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes payment should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR's notice within thirty (30) business days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes payment should not be made. If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the withholding of payment continues after the LEA's response to CONTRACTOR's notice, CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy.

After forty-five (45) business days: The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA's Representative of the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in writing within fifteen (15) business days.

After sixty (60) business days: The LEA or CONTRACTOR may appeal to the County Superintendent of Schools so long as the County Superintendent of Schools is not participating in the Local Plan involved in the NPS/A contract, or a mutually agreed upon mediator. Both parties agree to pay for their own costs and expenses arising out of such mediation. Each party agrees to act in good faith in participating in any mediation process agreed to by the parties.

58. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. CONTRACTOR shall provide prior written notice of the rights and protections required by Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations section 300.154(d) whenever it seeks to use the LEA students' public benefits to pay for special education and related services. Such notice shall be provided before seeking payment from Medi-Cal for the first time and annually.

59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE

Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute coverage pursuant to the LEA Procedures. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time. LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher.

Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in student's IEP.

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, no later than the tenth (10th) cumulative day of a student's unexcused absence, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence.

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California Education Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307. LEA shall not pay for services provided on days that a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under state law. *Per Diem* rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted on a pro rata basis in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was served. LEA shall not be responsible for payment of related services for days on which a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance ("ADA") reimbursement under state law, nor shall student be eligible for make-up services.

NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. LEA shall not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and LEA. In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not provided shall be included.

NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later than the fifth (5th) consecutive service day of the student's absence. LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services when a student is absent.

60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY

The following shall apply in the event of a LEA or NPS school closure due to an emergency consistent with guidelines followed by LEAs in accordance with Education Code sections 41422 and 46392:

- a. If CONTRACTOR remains open, if allowed, during an emergency and serves students appropriately as delineated in the ISA, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment, regardless of whether a sending LEA is open or closed.
- b. NPS School Closure- In the event of a NPS School Closure for the reasons set forth in Education Code section 41422, if the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance due to CONTRACTOR'S school closure. If the LEA is unable to obtain an alternative placement, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the student's approved ISA, as though the student were continuing his/her regular attendance, until an alternative placement can be found and implement LEA student IEP in accordance with Education Code section 56345(a)(9) pertaining to emergency conditions.
- c. LEA and NPS School Closure- In the event of the LEA and NPS School Closures, on days the LEA is funded, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the student's approved ISA, until an alternative placement can be found and implement LEA student IEP in accordance with Education Code section 56345(a)(9) pertaining to emergency conditions. If the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance with CONTRACTOR due to CONTRACTOR'S school closure.

When the emergency school closure is lifted, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEAs it serves of any lost instructional minutes. CONTRACTOR and LEAs shall work collaboratively to determine the need for make-up days or service changes, and shall work together to amend IEP and ISA paperwork as appropriate.

61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to: student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides, bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, documents evidencing other qualifications, , dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Such access shall include unannounced inspections by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR's offices (to be specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. All records shall be provided to LEA within five (5) working days of a written request from LEA. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide assistance for such examination or audit. LEA's rights under this section shall also include access to CONTRACTOR's offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR's employees. If any document or evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA agrees to the use of the electronic format.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA's written notice demanding payment.

62. RATE SCHEDULE

The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and maximum dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific services. Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on the required minimum number of minutes per grade level as set forth in paragraph 23, above, and in California Education Code Section 46200-46208.

Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A.

63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that:

- (a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are <u>not</u> presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency, and
- (b) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these offenses.

The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives. This contract is effective on the 1^{st} day of July, 2023 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2024, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

CONTRACTOR	LEA			
North County Family Counseling Services Nonpublic School/Agency	Guajome Park Academy LEA Name			
By:	By:			
Signature Date	Signature Date			
Name and Title of Authorized Representative	Kevin Humphrey, Superintendent Name and Title of Authorized Representative			
Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to:	Notices to LEA shall be addressed to:			
Name and Title	Name and Title Karen Whitworth, Special Education Coordinator			
Nonpublic School/Agency/Related Service Provider	LEA			
	Guajome Park Academy			
Address	Address 2000 N. Santa Fe Ave			
City State Zip	City State Zip Vista CA 92083			
Phone Fax	Phone Fax 760-631-8500 ext 1123 760-631-8503			
Email	Email whitworthka@guajome.net			
	Additional LEA Notification (Required if completed)			
	Name and Title			
	Address			
	City State Zip			
	Phone Fax			
	Email			

EXHIBIT A: 2023-2024 RATES

4.1 RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONTRACT YEAR

The CONTRACTOR: North County Family Counseling Service The CONTRACTOR CDS NUMBER:		
PER ED CODE 56366 – TEACHER-TO-PUPIL RATIO:		
Maximum Contract Amount:		
Education service(s) offered by the CONTRACTOR and the charge	es for such service(s) during the	ne term of this contract shall be as follows:
1) <u>Daily Basic Education Rate:</u>		
Inclusive Education Program (Includes Educational Counseling (not ed related menta Planning, and Occupational Therapy as specified on the		
3) Related Services		
SERVICE	<u>RATE</u>	PERIOD
Intensive Individual Services (340)		
Language and Speech (415)		
Adapted Physical Education (425)		
Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (435)		
Health and Nursing: Other Services (436)		
Assistive Technology Services (445)		
Occupational Therapy (450)		
Physical Therapy (460)		
Individual Counseling (510)	\$125.00	1 hour
Counseling and Guidance (515)	\$150.00	1 hour
Parent Counseling (520)	\$125.00	1hour
Social Work Services (525)		
Psychological Services (530)	\$125.00	1 hour
Behavior Intervention Services (535)		
Specialized Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610)		
Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing (710)		
Interpreter Services (715)		
Audiological Services (720)		

Specialized Vision Services (725)		
Orientation and Mobility (730)		
Specialized Orthopedic Services (740)		
Reader Services (745)		
Transcription Services (755)	<u> </u>	
Recreation Services, Including Therapeutic (760)		
College Awareness (820)		
Work Experience Education (850)		
Job Coaching (855)		
Mentoring (860)		
Travel Training (870)		
Other Transition Services (890)		
Other (900)		
Other (no code)		

MASTER CONTRACT

GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN,

		NPUBLIC SCHOOL AND AGENCY SERVICES lajome Schools
		Contract Year <u>2023-2024</u>
		Nonpublic School
	X	_ Nonpublic Agency
Type of (Contract:	
X	Master Contract for fisc term of this contract.	al year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the

Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student.

Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpose of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date:

> When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above shall amend Section 4 – Term of Master Contract.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	<u>GE</u>	NERAL PROVISIONS	<u>Page</u>
		MACTER CONTRACT	1
		MASTER CONTRACT	l
		CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES	1
		COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT	2
	4.	TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT	2
	5.	INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT	2
	•	FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION DIDIVIDUAL SERVICES ACREEMENT	3
		INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT	3
	/.	DEFINITIONS	4
П	ΑĪ	OMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT	
	8.	NOTICES	5
	9.	MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS	5
	10.	SEVERABILITY CLAUSE	6
	11.	SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST	6
	12.	VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW	6
	13.	MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO	
		CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES	6
	14.	TERMINATION	6
	15.	INSURANCE	6
	16.	INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS	9
	17.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	9
	18.	SUBCONTRACTING	9
	19.	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	1(
	20.	NON-DISCRIMINATION	1(
***		DUCATIONAL BROCKAM	
111	. <u>El</u>	DUCATIONAL PROGRAM	
	21	FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION	11
		GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION	11
		INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES	 12
		CLASS SIZE	12
		CALENDARS	12
		DATA REPORTING	 13
		LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT	12 14
		STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING	12
		MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS	12
		POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS	15
		STUDENT DISCIBLINE	 1 <i>6</i>
		IEP TEAM MEETINGS	10 1 <i>6</i>
		CURROCATE BARENTS AND FOCTER VOLUTU	
			17
		DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS	17
		COMPLAINT PROCEDURES	17
		STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS	18
		TRANSCRIPTS	18
	38.	STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE	19
	39.	WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM	19
	40.	PARENT ACCESS	19

41. LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION CONTRACTORS	
AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER CONTRACTORS	
42. STATE MEAL MANDATE	20
43. MONITORING	20
IV. PERSONNEL	
44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS	21
45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS	21
46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS	22
47. STAFF ABSENCE	23
48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR	23
V. <u>HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES</u>	
49. HEALTH AND SAFETY	23
50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS	24
51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION	24
52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING	24
53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING	24
54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT	25
55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN	25
VI. <u>FINANCIAL</u>	
56. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING,	
ATTENDANCE REPORTING AND BILLING PROCEDURES	2
57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT	20
58. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES	2
59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES	2
60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY	28
61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT	28
62. RATE SCHEDULE	29
63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION	29
EXHIBIT A: RATES	32
EXHIBIT B: INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT	34

2023-2024

CONTRACT NU	MBEK:	IA-S	37-I(J6
--------------------	-------	------	-------	----

LOCAL ED	UCATION	AGENCY:
----------	---------	----------------

Guajome	Schools			

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER:

Specialized Therapy Services, Inc.

NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT

AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract (or "Contract") is entered into on July 1, 2023, between Guajome Schools , hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA"), a member of the El Dorado Charter SELPA and Specialized Therapy Services, Inc., (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred to as NPS/A or "CONTRACTOR" for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 et seq. and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq., AB 490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB 1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this agreement does not commit the LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any student, or CONTRACTOR to provide such special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR. Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Service Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA"). Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all relevant services specified in the student's Individualized Education Program (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days of a student's enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each student served by CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and/or electronic database for the development of the ISA and invoices.

Unless placement and/or services is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed settlement agreement between LEA and parent or authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A services until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent.

2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a NPS/A. All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification and licensure specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 *et seq* and within the professional scope of practice of each provider's license, certification, and/or credential. A current copy of CONTRACTOR's NPS/A certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this Agreement is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract.

Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification and in Section 24 of the Master Contract.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified and all staff persons providing services to pupils shall be certified and/or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children's institution (hereinafter referred to as "LCI"), CONTRACTOR shall be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract with the state to license, to provide nonmedical care room and board to children, including, but not limited to, individuals with exceptional needs. The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements relevant to the protection of the child, and have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child so placed. If the CONTRACTOR operates a program outside of this State, CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the appropriate licensing agency in both California and in the state where the LCI is located.

With respect to CONTRACTOR's certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE in writing of any changes in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS

During the term of this Master Contract, unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of Section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to; the provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, student enrollment and transfer, student inactive status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive behavior interventions).

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE nonpublic school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a).

4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT

The term of this Master Contract shall be from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years. The parties acknowledge that any subsequent Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2024. In the event the contract negotiations are not agreed to by June 30th, the most recently executed Master Contract will remain in effect for 90 days. (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d)) No Master Contract will be offered unless and until all of the contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR is at the sole discretion of the LEA.

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR's ownership or authorized representative shall be provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized representative.

5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION

This Master Contract includes each ISA and they are incorporated herein by this reference. This Master Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement. This Master Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties.

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract or a renewal.

At a minimum, such information shall include copies of current teacher credentials and clearance, insurance documentation and CDE certification. The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract will be issued. If CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new Master Contract's effective date. If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract within such ninety-day period, all payments shall cease until such time as the new Master Contract for the current school year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) and (2)). In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students at the discretion of the LEA.

6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICE AGREEMENT ("ISA")

This Agreement shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide special education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with the approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A). An ISA may be effective for more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect. In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students.

Any and all changes to a student's educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student's IEP or by written agreement between the parent and LEA. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a student's parent, CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a student's IEP subject to all procedural safeguards required by law.

Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California Education Code sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)). In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5) business days of the last date a service was provided. CONTRACTOR shall provide any and all subsequent compensatory service hours awarded to student as a result of lack of provision of services while student was served by the NPS/A.

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, CONTRACTOR shall abide by the "stay-put" requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH

consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.

Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located, or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code section 56366(c) (2).

7. **DEFINITIONS**

The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract:

- a. The term "CONTRACTOR" means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the California Department of Education and its officers, agents, and employees.
- b. The term "authorized LEA representative" means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible for NPS/A. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA. The LEA maintains sole responsibility for this Contract, unless otherwise specified in this Contract.
- c. The term "credential" means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(g).
- d. The term "qualified" means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and related services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which the individual is providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards contained in the California Business and Professions Code.

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations. (Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (r)).

e The term "license" means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or refer to themselves using a specified professional title including but not limited to mental health and board and care services at a residential placement. If a license is not available through an appropriate state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at the national or state level which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(1).

f. "Parent" means:

- i. a biological or adoptive parent; unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal authority to make educational decisions for the child,
- ii. a guardian generally authorized to act as the child's parent or authorized to make educational decisions for the child.

- iii. an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally responsible for the child's welfare,
- iv. a surrogate parent,
- v. a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational decisions on the child's behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2).

Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the NPS/A under contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services for a child. (California Education Code section 56028).

- g. The term "days" means calendar days unless otherwise specified.
- h. The phrase "billable day" means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs.
- i. The phrase "billable day of attendance" means a school day as defined in California Education Code Section 46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA.
- j. It is understood that the term "Master Contract" also means "Contract" and is referred to as such in this document.

ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT

8. NOTICES

All notices provided for by this Contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page of this Master Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of this Master Contract.

9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) years after the termination of this Master Contract. For purposes of this Master Contract, "records" shall include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision; daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional instructional assistants, NPA behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; behavior emergency reports (BER); incident reports; notification of injuries; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications bylaws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general journals; cash receipts and disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents; documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; evidence of electronic payments; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of CONTRACTOR's employees who have access to confidential records. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an access log for each student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, date/time of access for each individual requesting or receiving information from the student's record, and a description of the record(s) provided. Such log needs to record access to the student's records by: (a) the student's parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the student's parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student records. For purposes of this paragraph, "employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR" do not include subcontractors. CONTRACTOR shall grant the following access to student records, (a) the student's parent; (b) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record, and comply with parents' requests for copies of student records, as required by state and federal laws and regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school or agency closure, to forward student records within ten (10) business days to LEA. These shall include, but not limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, BER's, incident reports, notification of injuries and all other relevant reports. LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request within five (5) business days.

10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect.

11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST

This contract binds CONTRACTOR's successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of any change of ownership or corporate control.

12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the County where the LEA is located.

13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. The party seeking such modification shall provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days' notice of any such changes or modifications made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which the modification or changes are based.

14. TERMINATION

This Master Contract or ISA may be terminated for cause. The cause shall not be the availability of a public class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the public school program at an IEP team meeting. To terminate the contract either party shall give no less than twenty (20) days prior written notice (California Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of termination, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under this Master Contract. ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided

in Section 5 or 6. CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause. To terminate the ISA, either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice.

15. INSURANCE

CONTRACTOR shall, at CONTRACTOR'S sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the term of this Contract, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the work or any component or part thereof:

PART I - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AND AGENCIES

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$2,000,000 per occurrence \$ 500,000 fire damage \$ 5,000 medical expenses \$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury \$3,000,000 general aggregate \$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual molestation or abuse. In the event that CONTRACTOR's policy should have an exclusion for sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a supplemental policy providing such coverage.

- B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- C. Commercial Auto Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a \$1 million combined single limit.

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.

If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from students' homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements.

D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage, including Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is

<u>including</u> Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage in afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits:

\$1,000,000 per occurrence \$2,000,000 general aggregate

E. CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this Contract and periodically thereafter upon request, shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage. The certificate of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision. The Commercial

General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name the LEA and the Board of Education additional insured's premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by CONTRACTOR and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR's obligations under this contract at no additional charge.

- F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above \$100,000 must be declared to and approved by the LEA. At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR's sole cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation.
- G. For any claims related to the services performed in connection with this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR's insurance coverage shall be the primary insurance with respect to the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- H. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on the certificate.

PART II - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED WITH A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY ("RTC")

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS affiliated with a **residential treatment center (NPS/RTC**), the following insurance policies are required:

A. Commercial General Liability including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$3,000,000 per occurrence \$6,000,000 in General Aggregate.

The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as *named* additional insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC's insurance primary despite any conflicting provisions in the RTC's policy. Coverage shall be maintained with no Self-Insured Retention above \$100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA.

- B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- C. Commercial Auto Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the RTC provides student bus services, the required coverage limit is \$5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence.
- D. **Fidelity Bond** or **Crime Coverage** shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all employees who process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be \$250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured retention.
- E. **Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice** coverage with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.

F. **Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage**, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations.

16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors ("LEA Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of CONTRACTOR, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall arise immediately upon tender of a claim or lawsuit to the CONTRACTOR. The LEA and the Member District(s) shall have the right in their sole discretion to select counsel of its choice to provide the defense at the sole cost of the CONTRACTOR or the applicable insurance carrier.

To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors ("CONTRACTOR Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance thereof, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by the negligent, intentional act or willful act or omission of LEA, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR Indemnities).

LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the State of California, that the self-insurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that its self-insurance covers the LEA's indemnification obligations under this Master Contract.

17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this Contract as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed to create any association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.

If the LEA is determined to be a partner, joint venture, co-principal, employer or co-employer of CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that determination, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.

18. SUBCONTRACTING

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract. In the event LEA determines that it can provide the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s). If LEA elects to provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of receipt of CONTRACTOR's original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s).

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the fullest extent reasonably possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the provision of special education and/or related services (including, but not limited to, transportation) for any student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term of each subcontract. Such subcontractor's insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15. Each subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage required by Section 15. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor's work commences. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the LEA Board of Education as additional insured.

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master Contract. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the LEA contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate. In addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in Section 45 Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.

19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and Government Code Section 1090 including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student's advocate. Pursuant to California Education code section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not recommend placement at CONTRACTOR's facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of interest.

The LEA shall neither execute an ISA with CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special education and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR to the student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e., before or after the student is enrolled in CONTRACTOR's school/agency) or whether an assessment of the student is performed or a report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation (hereinafter referred to as "IEE") and its recommendations, the LEA may not fund an IEE by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom the IEE is requested. Likewise, the LEA may not fund services through the evaluator whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund. When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an individual who is or was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty-five (365) days prior to executing this contract. This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated instruction and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to ten months of the school year by LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a private pay or tuition free "scholarship" basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to pursue funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings.

20. NON-DISCRIMINATION

CONTRACTOR shall not, in employment or operation of its programs, unlawfully discriminate on the basis of gender, nationality, national origin, ancestry, race, color, ethnicity, ethnic group affiliation, religion, age, marital status, pregnancy or parental status, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or expression, physical or mental disability, genetic information or any other classification protected by federal or state law or the perception of one or more of such characteristics or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE)

The LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition Plan (hereinafter referred to as "ITP") of each student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services (including transition services) to each student within the NPS/A consistent with the student's IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall not accept a student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services outlined in the student's IEP. If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease.

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities, as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the student's enrollment under the terms of this Master Contract). LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low incidence disabilities when specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the NPS. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations. CONTRACTOR may charge a student's parent(s) for services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed by the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of financial responsibility.

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education shall not interfere with the student's receipt of special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and PARENT agree otherwise in writing.

22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION

All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 *et seq.*..

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, assistive technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Students shall have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted Common Core State Standards ("CCSS") for curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive;

and provide standards – aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, used by an LEA, that contracts with the NPS: (b) college preparation courses; (c) extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college counseling.

When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades 9 through 12 inclusive, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading toward graduation or completion of LEA's diploma requirements. CONTRACTOR shall not award a high school diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA's graduation requirements.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA and CDE guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. The NPA providing Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written plan that specifies the nature of their NPA service for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA. Schoolbased services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or provided at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team. Except for services provided by a CONTRACTOR that is a Licensed Children's Institution (LCI), all services not provided in the school setting require the presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, provided such guardian or caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as requested. LCI CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is present during the provision of services under this Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA in writing if no parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a written description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date of this Master Contract. CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention services must have a trained behaviorist or trained equivalent on staff. It is understood that Behavior Intervention services are limited per CDE Certification and do not constitute as an instructional program.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing.

23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP and ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and passing time shall be at the same level that Ed. Code prescribes for the LEA.

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

24. CLASS SIZE

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of one teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing. Upon prior written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a

ratio of 1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to provide services to students with disabilities.

In the event a NPS is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to students, and the vacancy has direct impact on the CDE Certification of that school, the NPS shall develop a plan to ensure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated staff. The NPS and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may be increased to ensure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher. Such an agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties. This provision does not apply to a NPA.

CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs between the ages of three and five years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 et seq.

25. CALENDARS

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a school calendar with the total number of billable days not to exceed 180 days, plus extended school year billable days equivalent to the number of days determined by the LEA's extended school year calendar. Billable days shall include only those days that are included on the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or required by the IEP (developed by the LEA) for each student. CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school calendar and/or amend the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA. Nothing in this Master Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes.

Unless otherwise specified by the student's IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site. A student shall only be eligible for extended school year services as determined by the IEP team and the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA. Extended school year shall consist of twenty (20) instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP team convened by the LEA. Any days of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing, prior to the start of the extended school year.

Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school year and received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any NPS service. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA. Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, President's Day, Memorial Day and Independence Day. With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by the LEA.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA-developed/approved calendar prior to the initiation of services. CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe holidays as specified in the LEA-developed/approved calendar. CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to the LEA-developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. Unless otherwise specified in the LEA student's ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those days that the LEA student's school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school. CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the LEA calendar unless CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing. Student must have actually been in attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any NPA service provided by CONTRACTOR. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

26. DATA REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing information with LEA. CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide data related to all sections of this contract, including student discipline as noted below, and requested by and in the format required by the LEA. It is understood that all NPS/A shall utilize the LEA approved electronic IEP system for all IEP development, service tracking documentation, and progress reporting, unless otherwise agreed to by the LEA. Additional progress reporting may be required by the LEA. The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access.

Using forms developed by the CDE or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education Code sections 48900 and 48915. CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code sections 48900 and 48915.

The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for such data including, but not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports. The LEA may approve use of CONTRACTOR'S provided forms at their discretion.

27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive Environment ("LRE") options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate.

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP team consideration of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings.

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team's recommended activities to support the transition.

28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer all statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress ("CAASPP"), Desired Results Developmental Profile ("DRDP"), California Alternative Assessment ("CAA"), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness Gram, the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California ("ELPAC"), the Alternative English Language Proficiency Assessments for California ("Alternative ELPAC"), and as appropriate to the student, and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code section 52052, in the same manner as public schools. Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by the LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability program. LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR'S qualified staff. CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as required by LEA.

29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS

CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school graduation, standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, data collection, and standardized testing and IEPs. LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings. Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s).

30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 49005, et seq., 56521.1 and 56521.2. LEA students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others must receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the federal law and it's implementing regulations. If the IEP team determines that a student's behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention Plan ("BIP"), the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student's behavioral problems through the development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all of its staff members are trained in crisis intervention, emergency procedures, and evidenced-based practices and interventions specific to the unique behavioral needs of the CONTRACTOR's pupil population. The training shall be provided within 30 days of employment to new staff who have any contact or interaction with pupils during the school day, and annually to all staff who have any contact or interaction with pupils during the school day. The CONTRACTOR shall select and conduct the training in accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1. CONTRACTOR shall maintain written records of the training and provide written verification of the training annually and upon request.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for a BIP, and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency interventions may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency.

CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is defined as a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others. It requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used. Emergencies *require* a behavior emergency report form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours for administrative action. CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone. If the student's IEP does not contain a BIP, an IEP team shall schedule a meeting to review the behavior emergency report, determine if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine an interim plan. If the student already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been exhibited or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective. CONTRACTOR shall schedule with LEA an IEP meeting within two (2) days.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following:

- 1.any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to, electric-shock;
- 2.an intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant sprays, mists, or substances in proximity to the face of the individual;
- 3.an intervention that denies adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities;
- 4. an intervention that is designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse, ridicule, or humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma;
- 5.restrictive interventions that employ a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, including the procedure known as prone containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques may be used by trained personnel as a limited emergency intervention:
- 6. locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room;
- 7.an intervention that precludes adequate supervision of the individual;
- 8. an intervention that deprives the individual of one or more of his or her senses.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with Education Code section 49005.8. Specifically, Contractor shall not do any of the following:

- 1. Use seclusion or a behavioral restraint for the purpose of coercion, discipline, convenience, or retaliation.
- 2. Use locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room.
- 3. Use a physical restraint technique that obstructs a pupil's respiratory airway or impairs the pupil's breathing or respiratory capacity, including techniques in which a staff member places pressure on a pupil's back or places his or her body weight against the pupil's torso or back.
- 4. Use a behavioral restraint technique that restricts breathing, including, but not limited to, using a pillow, blanket, carpet, mat, or other item to cover a pupil's face.
- 5. Place a pupil in a facedown position with the pupil's hands held or restrained behind the pupil's back.
- 6. Use a behavioral restraint for longer than is necessary to contain the behavior that poses a clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the pupil or others.

CONTRACTOR shall keep constant, direct observation of a pupil who is in seclusion, which may be through observation of the pupil through a window, or another barrier, through which the educational provider is able to make direct eye contact with the pupil. This observation shall not be through indirect means, including through a security camera or a closed-circuit television.

CONTRACTOR shall afford pupils who are restrained the least restrictive alternative and the maximum freedom of movement, and shall use the least number of restraint points, while ensuring the physical safety of the pupil and others.

If prone restraint techniques are used by CONTRACTOR, a staff member shall observe the pupil for any signs of physical distress throughout the use of prone restraint. Whenever possible, the staff member monitoring the pupil shall not be involved in restraining the pupil.

In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child's learning or that of others, the IEP team shall consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations.

All restraint practices must be reviewed and revised when they have an adverse effect on a student and are used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or multiple uses by the same individual. CONTRACTOR shall notify the student's parent/guardian when any type of physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used. Upon the use of any type of physical or

mechanical restraint or seclusions of an LEA student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the reporting and notification requirements listed above.

31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with state and federal law and regulations. Using forms developed by the California Department of Education or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education Codes 48900 and 48915. CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code Sections 48900 and 48915.

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA. Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to: the student's name; the time, date, and description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such disciplinary action. A copy of the student's behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10th) day of suspension.

32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the NPS; and (3) whether changes to the student's IEP are necessary, including whether the student may be transitioned to a public school setting. (California Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii)) and pursuant to California Education Code section 56345 (b) (4).)

If the LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document a description of activities provided to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team. Except as otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student's IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting. Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It is understood that attendance at an IEP meeting is part of CONTRACTOR'S professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this Master Contract.

It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA for all IEP planning and progress reporting at the LEA's discretion. The LEA or SELPA may provide training for any CONTRACTOR to ensure access to the approved system. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain confidentiality of all IEP data on the approved system and shall protect the password requirements of the system. When a student dis-enrolls from the NPS/NPA, the NPS/NPA and LEA shall discontinue use of the approved system for that student.

Changes in any student's educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting provided under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student's IEP. In

the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student's IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change in the student's placement. Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement unless parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.

33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. Surrogate parents shall serve as the child's parent and have all the rights relative to the student's education that a parent has under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 1414-1482 and 34 CFR 300.1-300.756. A pupil in foster care shall be defined pursuant to California Education Code section 42238.01(b). The LEA shall annually notify the CONTRACTOR who the LEA has designated as the educational liaison for foster children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a NPS by the LEA any time after the completion of the pupil's second year of high school, the CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil in courses leading towards graduation based on the diploma requirements of the LEA unless provided notice otherwise in writing pursuant to Section 51225.1.

34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS

CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations and hearings, as requested by LEA. Participation further includes the willingness to make CONTRACTOR's staff available for witness preparation and testimony as is necessary to facilitate a due process hearing. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other state and/or federal governmental body or agency. Full participation shall include, but in no way be limited to, cooperating with LEA representatives to provide complete answers raised by any investigator and/or the immediate provision of any and all documentation that pertains to the operation of CONTRACTOR's program and/or the implementation of a particular student's IEP/Individual and Family Service Plan ("IFSP").

35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent complaints. These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students with appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 et seq.; (2) Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) (d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ("HIPAA"). CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA of any complaints filed against it related to LEA students and provide LEA with all documentation related to the complaints and/or its investigation of complaints, including any and all reports generated as a result of an investigation.

36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS

Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall provide to parents at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards. At a minimum, progress reports shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives. A copy of the progress reports/report cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR's place of business and shall be submitted to the LEA and LEA student's parent(s) quarterly.

The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation used to determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data

sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior intervention plans. The LEA may request such data at any time within five (5) years of the date of service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data supporting progress within five (5) business days of request. Additional time may be granted as needed by the LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the student ten (10) days prior to the student's annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student's present levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices. CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient copies of its reports, documents, and projected goals to share with members of the IEP team five (5) business days prior to the IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation such as test protocols and data collection, which shall be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request.

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, progress reporting and development of present levels of performance. All assessments resulting from an assessment plan shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that CONTRACTOR perform such additional assessment. Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be added to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at the LEA's sole discretion.

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA. For NPA services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 3065, shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA. Supervision means the direct observation of services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each professional's license, certification, or credential.

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student's parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report cards, evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, and/or meetings. It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil's record and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request.

37. TRANSCRIPTS

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester, or upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit them on LEA approved forms to the student's school of residence for evaluation of progress toward completion of diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of students and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA.

38. STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

Within five (5) school days from the date CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student's change of residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA, in writing, of the student's change of residence. Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation to notify CONTRACTOR of the student's change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents.

If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student's change of residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered following the student's change of residence.

39. WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5) business days when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services, including

student's change of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and parent/guardian withdrawal of student against professional advice from a NPS/RTC.

40. PARENT ACCESS

CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including, but not limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters, when applicable. CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA students.

CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent's reasonable request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC. CONTRACTOR shall require that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA at least thirty (30) days in advance. When requested, CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all parent travel and accommodations and for providing travel information to the parent as appropriate. Payment by LEA for approved travel-related expenses shall be made directly through the LEA consistent with LEA Procedures.

CONTRACTOR providing services in the student's home as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an emergency, is present. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization for emergencies. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider.

All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided, in writing, to the LEA.

41. LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION ("LCI") CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER ("RTC") CONTRACTORS

If CONTRACTOR is a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9 (c) (1), Health and Safety Code section 1501.1and any other applicable laws and/or regulations, including LEA guidelines or procedures. An LCI shall not require that a pupil be placed in its NPS as a condition of being placed in its residential facility.

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS/RTC, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1400 et seq. including the federal regulations 34 C.F.R section 300 et seq. and Education Code section 56000 et seq. including Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq.. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all monitoring requirements set forth in Section 43 below.

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as eligible for special education. For those identified as special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each student's IEP at the time of enrollment. A copy of the current IEP shall be provided to the LEA.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent or another adult with educational decision-making rights.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

42. STATE MEAL MANDATE

When CONTRACTOR is an NPS, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under California Education Code sections 49005 et seq.; 49501.5, the universal meal mandate enacted by AB 130 (2021-2022); 49530 et seq; and 49550 et seq.

43. MONITORING

When CONTRACTOR is an NPS, the LEA or SELPA shall conduct at least one onsite monitoring visit during each school year to the NPS at which the LEA has a pupil attending and with which it maintains a master contract. The monitoring visit shall include, but is not limited to, a review of services provided to the pupil through the ISA between the LEA and the NPS, a review of progress the pupil is making toward the goals set forth in the pupil's individualized education program, a review of progress the pupil is making toward the goals set forth in the pupil's behavioral intervention plan, if applicable, an observation of the pupil during instruction, and a walkthrough of the facility. The LEA or SELPA shall report the findings resulting from the monitoring visit to the California Department of Education within 60 calendar days of the onsite visit.

The LEA or SELPA shall conduct an onsite visit to the NPS before placement of a pupil if the LEA does not have any pupils enrolled at the school at the time of placement.

CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for additional periodic monitoring of each student's instructional program. LEA shall have access to observe each student at work, observe the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each student's records and progress. Such access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to CONTRACTOR's site administrative office. CONTRACTOR shall be invited to participate in the review of each student's progress.

If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, the CDE shall annually evaluate whether CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction ("Superintendent") shall monitor CONTRACTOR'S facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and (3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three.

CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA or CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the NPS, compliance with relevant state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-up or corrective action procedures related to review findings.

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause. The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California Education Code Section 33126.

PERSONNEL

44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237, 35021.1, 35021.2, and 56366.1 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as "CDOJ") and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers who will have or likely may have any direct contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers shall not come in contact with students until CDOJ and FBI clearance are ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with students, or subcontractors who may come into contact with students have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the employee's conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j). Upon request, clearance certification shall be submitted to the LEA. In addition, CONTRACTOR shall make a request for subsequent arrest service from CDOJ as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2. Contractor shall certify to LEA that they have successful background checks and enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service for all employees who may come into contact with students.

Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each owner, operator, and employee of the NPS/A. CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency. Background clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service, as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.

45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations sections 3001(r), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified staff may only provide related services within the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession, and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher's scope of practice.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided to the CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)).

In accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1(a)(5), when CONTRACTOR is a NPS, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development. The administrator of the NPS holds or is in the process of obtaining one of the following: (A) An administrative credential granted by an accredited postsecondary educational institution and two years of experience with pupils with disabilities. (B) A pupil personnel services credential that authorizes school counseling or psychology. (C) A license as a

clinical social worker issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (D) A license in psychology regulated by the Board of Psychology. (E) A master's degree issued by an accredited postsecondary institution in education, special education, psychology, counseling, behavioral analysis, social work, behavioral science, or rehabilitation. (F) A credential authorizing special education instruction and at least two years of experience teaching in special education before becoming an administrator. (G) A license as a marriage and family therapist certified by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (H) A license as an educational psychologist issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (I) A license as a professional clinical counselor issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (California Education Code Section 56366.1 (a)(5)). CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to the LEA upon request, documentation of its administrator's qualifications in accordance with the above.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections 45340 *et seq.* and 45350 *et seq.* Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to, instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications: (a) completed at least two (2) years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate's (or higher) degree; or (c) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and mathematics readiness, as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test clearance for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with any student.

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within forty-five (45) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or lawsuit, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. The LEA shall not be obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is providing services under this Master Contract. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

47. STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school and CONTRACTOR's classroom teacher is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to the LEA documentation of substitute coverage. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time.

The LEA shall not be responsible for any payment for instruction and/or services when an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher is not provided in accordance with California Education Code section 56061.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute for their student. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA representative.

48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME

It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified NPS/A shall adhere to the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services. All practices shall only be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made available to the CONTRACTOR.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by NPS/A providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus consistent with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall be made available to the CONTRACTOR upon request. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the instructional program.

CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student's school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in an emergency is present during provision of services. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home-based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR to parents or guardians, in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA.

HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES

49. HEALTH AND SAFETY

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 *et. seq.* and 49406, regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before an individual comes in contact with a student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code.

50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to: disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning permits; and occupancy capacity. When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire drills as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR's facilities as required complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49422 et seq. when CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication during the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the administration of such medication after the student's parent(s) provide to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the student's parent(s) granting CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician's statement. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student to whom medication is administered. Such written log shall specify the student's name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR's employee who administered the medication. CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for storing medications in a secure location and ensuring appropriate staff training in the administration of such medication consistent with physician's written orders. Any change in medication type, administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.

52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures specified in LEA Procedures.

53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. To protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e., reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted to the LEA.

54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR's policy, as well as federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of

retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and related procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1.

55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN

CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 49370. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA. The written statement shall be submitted as specified by the LEA.

FINANCIAL

56. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND BILLING PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall assure that the nonpublic school or nonpublic agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to implement the IEP and ISA for each and every student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA Procedures, as well as provide all such records requested by LEA concerning the same. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services specified in the student's IEP and ISA. All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Contract and governed by all applicable federal and state laws.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides. Original attendance forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter. CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being billed for payment.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall be properly submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA. At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed to by the LEA; name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA administrator authorizing that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when the service was provided.

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract. At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training.

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period in which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) days of LEA's receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA.

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond December 31st after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling for the Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, but no later than twelve (12) months from the close of the fiscal year. If the billing or re-billing error is the responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year. LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee.

57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT

LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole or in part, under the terms of this contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive services; (c) CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e) education and/or related services are provided to students by personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has not received prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning one or more students enrolled in CONTRACTOR's educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student's change of residence to another district or confirms the change of residence to another district, but fails to notify LEA within five (5) days of such confirmation; or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a student. It is understood that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months following the close of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.

Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for regular ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA. Such review or audit will be completed within ninety (90) days. The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected.

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding paragraph are as follows: (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of overpayment; (c) the portion of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been provided by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e) the proportionate amount of the invoice related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation is cured; or (f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the service provided to the student.

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA's withholding payment and the amount to

be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA's withholding payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies or submit to LEA written documentation demonstrating that the basis or bases cited by the LEA for withholding payment is unfounded. Upon receipt of CONTRACTOR's written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR's time to correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied.

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes payment should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR's notice within thirty (30) business days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes payment should not be made. If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the withholding of payment continues after the LEA's response to CONTRACTOR's notice, CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy.

After forty-five (45) business days: The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA's Representative of the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in writing within fifteen (15) business days.

After sixty (60) business days: The LEA or CONTRACTOR may appeal to the County Superintendent of Schools so long as the County Superintendent of Schools is not participating in the Local Plan involved in the NPS/A contract, or a mutually agreed upon mediator. Both parties agree to pay for their own costs and expenses arising out of such mediation. Each party agrees to act in good faith in participating in any mediation process agreed to by the parties.

58. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. CONTRACTOR shall provide prior written notice of the rights and protections required by Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations section 300.154(d) whenever it seeks to use the LEA students' public benefits to pay for special education and related services. Such notice shall be provided before seeking payment from Medi-Cal for the first time and annually.

59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE

Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute coverage pursuant to the LEA Procedures. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time. LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher.

Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in student's IEP.

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, no later than the tenth (10th) cumulative day of a student's unexcused absence, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence.

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California Education Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307. LEA shall not pay for services provided on days that a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under state law. *Per Diem* rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted on a pro rata basis in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was served. LEA shall not be responsible for payment of related services for days on which a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance ("ADA") reimbursement under state law, nor shall student be eligible for make-up services.

NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. LEA shall not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and LEA. In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not provided shall be included.

NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later than the fifth (5th) consecutive service day of the student's absence. LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services when a student is absent.

60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY

The following shall apply in the event of a LEA or NPS school closure due to an emergency consistent with guidelines followed by LEAs in accordance with Education Code sections 41422 and 46392:

- a. If CONTRACTOR remains open, if allowed, during an emergency and serves students appropriately as delineated in the ISA, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment, regardless of whether a sending LEA is open or closed.
- b. NPS School Closure- In the event of a NPS School Closure for the reasons set forth in Education Code section 41422, if the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance due to CONTRACTOR'S school closure. If the LEA is unable to obtain an alternative placement, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the student's approved ISA, as though the student were continuing his/her regular attendance, until an alternative placement can be found and implement LEA student IEP in accordance with Education Code section 56345(a)(9) pertaining to emergency conditions.
- c. LEA and NPS School Closure- In the event of the LEA and NPS School Closures, on days the LEA is funded, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the student's approved ISA, until an alternative placement can be found and implement LEA student IEP in accordance with Education Code section 56345(a)(9) pertaining to emergency conditions. If the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance with CONTRACTOR due to CONTRACTOR'S school closure.

When the emergency school closure is lifted, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEAs it serves of any lost instructional minutes. CONTRACTOR and LEAs shall work collaboratively to determine the need for

make-up days or service changes, and shall work together to amend IEP and ISA paperwork as appropriate.

61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to: student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides, bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, documents evidencing other qualifications, , dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Such access shall include unannounced inspections by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR's offices (to be specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. All records shall be provided to LEA within five (5) working days of a written request from LEA. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide assistance for such examination or audit. LEA's rights under this section shall also include access to CONTRACTOR's offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR's employees. If any document or evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA agrees to the use of the electronic format.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA's written notice demanding payment.

62. RATE SCHEDULE

The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and maximum dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific services. Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on the required minimum number of minutes per grade level as set forth in paragraph 23, above, and in California Education Code Section 46200-46208.

Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A.

63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that:

- (a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are <u>not</u> presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency, and
- (b) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these offenses.

The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives. This contract is effective on the ___1st__ day of July, 2023 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2024, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

CONTRACTOR **LEA** Guajome Schools Specialized Therapy Services, Inc. Nonpublic School/Agency **LEA Name** DocuSigned by: 5/30/2023 kevin trumpliney 6/2/2023 Steve Oas Bv: By: Signature **Date** Signature **Date** Steve Oas, Director Kevin Humphrey Superintendent Name and Title of Authorized Name and Title of Authorized Representative Representative Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to: Notices to LEA shall be addressed to: Kevin Humphrey Steve Oas, Director Name and Title Name and Title Guajome Schools Specialized Therapy Services, Inc. Nonpublic School/Agency/Related Service Provider LEA 4204A Adams Avenue 2000 N Santa Fe Avenue Address Address Vista Ca 92083 San Diego 92116 CA City State Zip City State Zip 760-631-8500 760-631-8504 (619) 431-5049 (866) 353-7829 **Phone** Fax Phone Fax humphreyke@guajome.net steve@theoascenter.com **Email Email Accounts Payable Contact(s)** Kevin Humphrey Superintendent Name and Title humphreyke@guajome.net **Email** Kendria Tavares Name and Title tavareske@guajome.net **Email** Karen Whitworth Name and Title whitworthka@guajome.net **Email**

Exhibit A: 2023 - 2024 - Guajome Park Academy Contractor Number 1A-37-106

Rate Schedule. This rate schedule limits the number of LEA students that may be enrolled and the maximum dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific services. Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR, and the charges for such educational and/or related services during the term of this contract shall be as follows:

Payment under this contract may not exceed	
Total LEA enrollment may not exceed	

Code	Session Type	Cost	Period
425	APE: Assessment, Direct Service Individual/Group, IEP, Prep/Plan	\$90.00	Hourly
425	APE: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$90.00	Hourly
445	AT: Assessment, Direct Service, Training, Prep/Plan Consult (Per IEP)	\$100.00	Hourly
445	AT: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$100.00	Hourly
720	Audiology: Assessment, Hourly, Direct Service, IEP Meeting, Prep/Plan	\$180.00	Hourly
720	Audiology: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$180.00	Hourly
535	Behavior Intervention Services: Assessment, Consult (per IEP), Direct Service, IEP Meeting, Supervision, Prep/Plan, Training	\$130.00	Hourly
535	Behavior Intervention Services: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$130.00	Hourly
535	Behavior Technician: Direct Service, Prep/Plan, Training	\$65.00	Hourly
535	Behavior Technician: Drive Time	\$65.00	Hourly
710	DHH: Assessment, Direct Service, IEP Meeting, Prep/Plan	\$110.00	Hourly
710	DHH: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$110.00	Hourly
510/515 520/525	ERMHS 510, 515, 520, 525, 530: Direct Individual/Group, Hourly, IEP Meeting, Prep/Plan, Training, Consult (per IEP)		
530		\$95.00	Hourly
510/515 520/525	ERMHS 510, 515, 520, 525, 530 Bilingual: Direct Individual/Group, Hourly, IEP Meeting, Prep/Plan, Training, Consult (per IEP) & Drive Time (as		
530	approved by LEA Admin)	\$110.00	Hourly
510	ERMHS: Assessment Flat Rate	\$1,350.00	Assessment
510	ERMHS Bilingual: Assessment Flat Rate	\$1,600.00	Assessment
All ERMHS	ERMHS: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$95.00	Hourly
340	Instructional Assistant: Assessment, Direct Service, IEP Meeting, Prep/Plan, Consult (per IEP)	\$45.00	Hourly
340	Instructional Assistant: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$45.00	Hourly
900	Music Therapy: Direct Service, IEP Meeting, Prep/Plan, Assessment	\$100.00	Hourly
900	Music Therapy: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$100.00	Hourly
435/436	Nursing: Direct Service, Health Assessment, Hearing/Vision Screening, Training, IEP Meeting	\$95.00	Hourly
435/436	Nursing Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$95.00	Hourly
435/436	LVN Nursing: Direct Service, Health Assessment, Hearing/Vision Screening, Training, IEP Meeting	\$51.50	Hourly
435/436	LVN Nursing: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$51.50	Hourly
435/436	CNA Nursing: Direct Service, Health Assessment, Hearing/Vision Screening, Training, IEP Meeting	\$40.00	Hourly
435/436	CNA Nursing: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$40.00	Hourly

730	O&M: Assessment, Direct Service, IEP Meeting, Prep/Plan, Consult (per		
750	IEP)	\$125.00	Hourly
730	O&M: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$125.00	Hourly
740	OI: Assessment, Direct Service, IEP Meeting, Prep/Plan	\$125.00	Hourly
740	OI: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$125.00	Hourly
450	OT: Assessment, Direct Service Individual/group, Prep/Plan, IEP Meeting,	7=====	
	Consult (per IEP)	\$90.00	Hourly
450	OT: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$90.00	Hourly
450	OT Assistant: Direct Individual/Group, Prep/Plan	\$75.00	Hourly
450	OT Assistant: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$75.00	Hourly
530	Psych: Neuro Psych Assessment	\$4,500.00	Assessment
530	Psych: Neuro Psych IEP	\$125.00	Hourly
530	Psych: Psych Assessment	\$1,350.00	Assessment
530	Psych: Psych Assessment with Academics	\$1,800.00	Assessment
530	Psych: Psych Assessment with ERMHS	\$1,800.00	Assessment
530	Psych: Psych Assessment with ERMHS and Academics	\$2,100.00	Assessment
530	Psych: Direct Service, IEP Meeting, Prep/Plan, Consult	\$125.00	Hourly
530	Psych Bilingual: Assessment	\$1,600.00	Assessment
530	Psych Bilingual: Assessment with Academics	\$2,100.00	Assessment
530	Psych Bilingual: Assessment with ERMHS	\$2,100.00	Assessment
530	Psych Bilingual: Assessment with ERMHS and Academics	\$2,300.00	Assessment
530	Psych Bilingual: Direct Service, IEP Meeting, Prep/Plan	\$135.00	Hourly
530	Psych: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$125.00	Hourly
530	Psych Bilingual: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$135.00	Hourly
460	PT: Assessment, Direct Service, IEP Meeting, Prep/Plan	\$95.00	Hourly
460	PT: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$95.00	Hourly
330	SAI: Assessment, Direct Service Individual/Group, IEP, Prep/Plan	\$75.00	Hourly
330	SAI: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$75.00	Hourly
330	SAI Bilingual: Assessment, Direct Service Individual/Group, IEP, Prep/Plan	\$80.00	Hourly
330	SAI Bilingual: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$80.00	Hourly
	Spec Ed Coordination: IEP Meeting, Consultation, Admin	\$125.00	Hourly
	Spec Ed Coordination: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$125.00	Hourly
415	Speech: Assessment, Direct Individual/Group, Prep/Plan, Consult (per IEP)	\$90.00	Hourly
415	Speech: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$90.00	Hourly
415	Speech Assistant: Assessment, Prep/Plan, Direct Individual/Group, Consult (per IEP)	\$75.00	Hourly
415	Speech Assistant: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$75.00	Hourly
415	Speech Bilingual: Assessment, Prep/Plan, Direct Individual/Group, Consult	φ/3.00	Tiourly
113	(per IEP)	\$95.00	Hourly
415	Speech Bilingual: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$95.00	Hourly
725	Vision Itinerant: Assessment, Direct Service, IEP Meeting, Prep/Plan,		
	Consult (Per IEP)	\$125.00	Hourly
725	Vision Itinerant: Drive Time (as approved by LEA Admin)	\$125.00	Hourly
900	VT: Assessment – Flat Rate	\$1000.00	Assessment
900	VT: Direct Service, IEP Meeting, Prep/Plan, Consult (per IEP)	\$200.00	Session

Appendix A:

- **A.** Should LEA wish to hire an STS employee assigned to the LEA, LEA may do so without a fee after the completion of the contracted school year period. Should the LEA elect to hire the employee before the completion of the period a conversion fee will be paid to STS in the form of: Full-time (employees working 30-hours or more per week for STS) provider: \$2,500, and Part-time (employees working less than 30-hours per week for STS) provider: \$1,250.
- **B.** Payment for missed sessions when provider confirmed attendance prior to arrival to the school, this includes Psychological Assessments.
- **C.** Minimum 2-hours of service time to be paid to providers when on campus to provide services or attend meetings.
- **D.** For charters with more than one location the travel time between schools is billable.
- **E.** Services provided per hour also include IEP meeting/preparation/participation, scheduling, session planning, SEIS service tracker reporting and consultation to staff/parents as approved by the school administration. Certain services may require session set up and break down (example: APE may need to create a specific sporting program on campus) this is billable. Provider time spend waiting or finding a location to provide services while on campus.
- **F.** Parking: If providers are required to pay for parking when on campus for services, the parking fees are reimbursable by the charter school.
- **G.** Billable Administrative Costs: When providers are asked by the school/LEA to perform administrative duties including but not limited to: Creating PWN, meeting notices, CALPADS reporting, Behavior Plans, Manifestation Determination Meetings, Threat Assessments, AT Device programing, SCIA reporting/training.
- **H.** Mileage will be paid at \$0.655 cents per mile or hourly for distances greater than 20-minutes from provider origination with prior approval from LEA.
- **I.** Independent Study/Home School Charter programs: Providers can get reimbursed for sessions cancelled with less than 24-hours' notice.

CONTRACTOR	LEA				
_Specialized Therapy Services, Inc.	Guajome Schools				
Nonpublic School/Agency	LEA Name				
DocuSigned by:	DocuSigned by:				
Steve Oas 5/30/2023	kenin tumplurey 6/2/2023				
Signature Date	Signature Date				
Steve Oas, Director	Kevin Humphrey Superintendent				
Name and Title of Authorized Representative	Name and Title of Authorized Representative				



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 11/30/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).						
PRODUCER		CONTACT NAME: Brian Grant				
Pacific Premier Insurance Assoc., Ir	nc.	PHONE (A/C, No, Ext): (858) 386-4443	AX VC, No): (858)	386-4445		
3160 Camino Del Rio S #118		E-MAIL ADDRESS: certificates@pacpremier.com				
		INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE		NAIC #		
San Diego	CA 92108	INSURER A: ARCH INS CO		11150		
INSURED		INSURER B:				
Specialized Therapy	Services, Inc. dba The OAS Center	INSURER C:				
4204A Adams Ave		INSURER D:				
		INSURER E:				
San Diego	CA 92116	INSURER F:				
COVERAGES	CERTIFICATE NUMBER:	REVISION NUMB	BER:			
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD						

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR LTR	TYPE OF INSURANCE	ADDL INSD	SUBR WVD	POLICY NUMBER	POLICY EFF (MM/DD/YYYY)	POLICY EXP (MM/DD/YYYY)	LIMIT	s
	COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY						EACH OCCURRENCE	\$ 1,000,000
	CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR						DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Ea occurrence)	\$ 100,000
							MED EXP (Any one person)	\$ 5,000
Α				AAPKG10800-04	12/01/2022	12/01/2023	PERSONAL & ADV INJURY	\$ 1,000,000
	GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:						GENERAL AGGREGATE	\$ 3,000,000
	POLICY PRO- JECT LOC						PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG	\$ 3,000,000
	OTHER:							\$
	AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY						COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident)	\$ 1,000,000
	ANY AUTO						BODILY INJURY (Per person)	\$
Α	OWNED SCHEDULED AUTOS ONLY			AAPKG10800-04	12/01/2022	12/01/2023	BODILY INJURY (Per accident)	\$
	X HIRED AUTOS ONLY X NON-OWNED AUTOS ONLY						PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per accident)	\$
								\$
	X UMBRELLA LIAB X OCCUR						EACH OCCURRENCE	\$ 1,000,000
Α	EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE			AAFXS30252-04	12/01/2022	12/01/2023	AGGREGATE	\$ 1,000,000
	DED RETENTION \$							\$
	WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N						PER OTH- STATUTE ER	
	ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?	N/A					E.L. EACH ACCIDENT	\$
	(Mandatory in NH)	14774					E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE	\$
	If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below						E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT	\$
	Professional Liability						Each Incident/Each A	1,000,000
Α	Sexual Misconduct Liability			AAPKG10800-04	12/01/2022	12/01/2023	Aggregate (Professior	3,000,000
	-						Aggregate (Sexual Ab	3,000,000
DESC	CRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHIC	LES (A	CORD	101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may b	e attached if mor	re space is requir	red)	

CERTIFICATE HOLDER	CANCELLATION
Proof of Coverage	SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
	AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
	Laura Goodnow

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.



CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION NOTICE OF NONPUBLIC AGENCY CERTIFICATION

Date: November 10, 2022

NPA ID: 9900324

Nonpublic Agency: Specialized Therapy Services-San Diego

Site Administrator: Erin Zumwalt

Mailing Address: 4024A Adams Avenue

City: San Diego CA 92106

NPA AUTHORIZED TO PROVIDE SERVICES AT NPA SITE Yes No Grades: PK to 12

Site Address: 4024A Adams Avenue

City: San Diego CA 92106 Student Gender: All

Ages: 1

to 21

2023 CERTIFICATION STATUS:

APPROVED

Maximum Capacity: 76+

EFFECTIVE DATES:

January 01, 2023 through December 31, 2023

Certified related services must be provided according to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 3051 et. seq. This certification does not include Specialized Academic Instruction/Support or assessments for IEP implementation.

☐ Amended

Certification is not an endorsement of the services offered by the nonpublic agency (NPA), but states only that the NPA meets minimum legal standards. "Approved" or "Conditional" certifications authorize the NPA to accept students placed by local educational agencies (LEAs) under California Education Code, Section 56366.

Authorized to Provide the Following Related Services:								
✓ APE	✓ BII	✓ LSDR	✓ PCT	SDTI	☐ VECD			
✓ AS	✓ CG	✓ MT	✔ PS*	✓ SW	✓ LI: Deaf and Hard of Hearing			
✓ ATS	☐ EE	✓ OM	✔ PT	✓ TS	Other Services:			
✓ BID	✓ HNS	✓ OT	\square RS	✓ VS	*Other than Assessment and IEP Development			

Per California Education Code 56366.4(a) (5) (A), the superintendent may revoke or suspend the certification of a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency for any of the following reasons: Failure to notify the department in writing of any of the following within 45 days of the occurence: changes in credentialed, licensed, or registered staff who render special education and related services; ownership; management; or control of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency.

Nonpublic Agencies Unit, Special Education Division

(Rev. October 2018) Department of the Treasury Internal Revenue Service

Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification

▶ Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the requester. Do not send to the IRS.

		Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.				•						
		2. Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above										
n page 3.								4 Exemptions (codes apply only to certain entities, not individuals; see instructions on page 3):				
e. onso		☐ Individual/sole proprietor or ☐ C Corporation ☐ S Corporation ☐ Partnership single-member LLC	Trust/es		Exem	pt payee	code	(if any	/)			
cti y		Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnersh										
Print or type. Specific Instructions on page		Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member own LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the own another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.	ner of the Li e-member LL	LC is		ption fro (if any)	m FA	TCA re	epor	ting		
ecif		☐ Other (see instructions) ►		0	Applies	to accounts	mainta	ined out	tside t	ne U.S.)		
		Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.	Requester's	name an	d add	dress (op	tiona)				
See	4	204A Adams Avenue										
0,	6	6 City, state, and ZIP code										
	S	an Diego, CA 92116										
	7	List account number(s) here (optional)										
Do		Tayyaayay Idantification Number (TIN)										
Pa		. ,	-1 500	cial secu	rity r	umbor						
		our TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for	<u> </u>	Jiai Secu		lumber	1 1		$\overline{}$	_		
		alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, later. For other	ŭ		_		_					
		it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a										
TIN, I			or							_		
		the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and	nd Em	ployer id	entii	ication i	umb	er	_	_		
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter. 2 6						2 1	6	3	3	2		
Par	t l	I Certification								·		
Unde	rp	enalties of perjury, I certify that:										
		number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a										
		not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I										

- Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding; and
- 3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and
- 4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part II, later.

Sign Signature of Here 05/01/2023 U.S. person ▶ Date ▶

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise

Future developments. For the latest information about developments related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number (SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number (EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

- Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual funds)
- Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross proceeds)
- Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other transactions by brokers)
- Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)
- Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)
- Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 1098-T (tuition)
- Form 1099-C (canceled debt)
- Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to provide your correct TIN.

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding,

Nonpublic, Nonsectarian SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT 2023-2024

MASTER CONTRACT

GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN, NONPUBLIC SCHOOL AND AGENCY SERVICES

	LEA	GUAJO:	ME PARK ACADEMY
		Contract Year	2023-2024
		Nonpublic School	
	X	Nonpublic Agency	À
Type of	Contract:		
X	Master Contract for fis term of this contract.	scal year with Individua	al Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the
			lent incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) ract specific to a single student.
	of this Interim Contrac		s fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpose bing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole
		on is included as part o ction 4 – Term of Mass	of any Master Contract, the changes specified above ter Contract.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	<u>GE</u>	<u>ENERAL PROVISIONS</u>	<u>Page</u>
	1	MASTER CONTRACT	1
			1 1
		COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS	2
		TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT	2
		INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT	<i></i>
	٥.		3
	6		
		INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT DEFINITIONS	4
	,.		
II.	ΑI	DMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT	
	8.	NOTICES	5
	9.	MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS	5
		SEVERABILITY CLAUSE	
		SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST	
		. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW	6
	13.	MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO	
		CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES	6
		TERMINATION	
		NSURANCE NAME AND MAD HAD MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD M	6
		NIDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS	
		INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	9
		SUBCONTRACTING CONFILICATE OF INTERPEGA	9
		NON DISCRIMINATION	1(
	20.	NON-DISCRIMINATION	10
ш	TT 1	DUCATIONAL PROGRAM	
111	L. <u>171</u>	<u>DUCATIONALI ROGRAM</u>	
	21	FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION	1:
		GENERAL PROGRAM OF INCERNICATION	
		. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES CLASS SIZE	
		. CALENDARS	13
		DATA REPORTING	13
	27.	LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT	
		STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING	14
	29.	MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS	14
	30.	POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS	1:
	31.	STUDENT DISCIPLINE	10
	32.	. IEP TEAM MEETINGS	10
	33.	SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH	17
	34.	DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS	17
		COMPLAINT DROCEDURES	1
		TD A NICCOLDEG	18
		STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE	 19
			15 19
		WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM PARENT A COESS	
	40.	PARENT ACCESS	19

	REN'S INSTITUTION CONTRACTORS	
AND RESIDENTIA	AL TREATMENT CENTER CONTRACTORS	19
42. STATE MEAL MA	NDATE	20
43. MONITORING		20
IV. <u>PERSONNEL</u>		
44. CLEARANCE REQ	QUIREMENTS	21
45. STAFF QUALIFICA		21
46. VERIFICATION O	F LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS	22
47. STAFF ABSENCE		2/
48. STAFF PROFESSION	ONAL BEHAVIOR	21
V. <u>HEALTH AND SAF</u>	FETY MANDATES	
49. HEALTH AND SAI	FETY	23
	EACILITIES MODIFICATIONS	2/
51. ADMINISTRATION	N OF MEDICATION	
52. INCIDENT/ACCID		
53. CHILD ABUSE RE	DODTING	2/
54. SEXUAL HARASS	MENT	24
55. REPORTING OF M		24
VI. <u>FINANCIAL</u>		
56. ENROLLMENT, CO	ONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING,	
ATTENDANCE RE	EPORTING AND BILLING PROCEDURES	25
57. RIGHT TO WITHH		24
58. PAYMENT FROM	OUTSIDE AGENCIES	27
59. PAYMENT FOR A	BSENCES	27
60. LEA and/or NONPU	UBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY	28
61. INSPECTION AND	O AUDIT	28
62. RATE SCHEDULE		20
63. DEBARMENT CER		29
EXHIBIT A: RATES		32
EXHIBIT B: INDIVIDUAL		34

CONTRACT NUMBER:

LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY: Guajome Park Academy

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: Braille

Abilities

NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT

AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract (or "Contract") is entered into on July 1, 2023, between <u>Guajome Park Academy</u>, hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA"), a member of the El Dorado Charter SELPA and <u>Braille Abilities</u> (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred to as NPS/A or "CONTRACTOR" for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 *et seq.* and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 *et seq.*, AB 490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB 1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this agreement does not commit the LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any student, or CONTRACTOR to provide such special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Service Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA"). Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all relevant services specified in the student's Individualized Education Program (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days of a student's enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each student served by CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and/or electronic database for the development of the ISA and invoices.

Unless placement and/or services is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed settlement agreement between LEA and parent or authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A services until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent.

2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a NPS/A. All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification and licensure specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 *et seq* and within the professional scope of practice of each provider's license, certification, and/or credential. A current copy of CONTRACTOR's NPS/A certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this Agreement is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification and in Section 24 of the Master Contract.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified and all staff persons providing services to pupils shall be certified and/or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children's institution (hereinafter referred to as "LCI"), CONTRACTOR shall be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract with the state to license, to provide nonmedical care room and board to children, including, but not limited to, individuals with exceptional needs. The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements relevant to the protection of the child, and have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child so placed. If the CONTRACTOR operates a program outside of this State, CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the appropriate licensing agency in both California and in the state where the LCI is located.

With respect to CONTRACTOR's certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE in writing of any changes in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS

During the term of this Master Contract, unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of Section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to; the provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, student enrollment and transfer, student inactive status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive behavior interventions).

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE nonpublic school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a).

4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT

The term of this Master Contract shall be from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years. The parties acknowledge that any subsequent Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2024. In the event the contract negotiations are not agreed to by June 30th, the most recently executed Master Contract will remain in effect for 90 days. (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d)) No Master Contract will be offered unless and until all of the contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR is at the sole discretion of the LEA.

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR's ownership or authorized representative shall be provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized representative.

5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION

This Master Contract includes each ISA and they are incorporated herein by this reference. This Master Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement. This Master Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties.

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract or a renewal.

At a minimum, such information shall include copies of current teacher credentials and clearance, insurance documentation and CDE certification. The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract will be issued. If CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new Master Contract's effective date. If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract within such ninety-day period, all payments shall cease until such time as the new Master Contract for the current school year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) and (2)). In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students at the discretion of the LEA.

6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICE AGREEMENT ("ISA")

This Agreement shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide special education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with the approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A). An ISA may be effective for more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect. In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students.

Any and all changes to a student's educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student's IEP or by written agreement between the parent and LEA. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a student's parent, CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a student's IEP subject to all procedural safeguards required by law.

Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California Education Code sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)). In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5) business days of the last date a service was provided. CONTRACTOR shall provide any and all subsequent compensatory service hours awarded to student as a result of lack of provision of services while student was served by the NPS/A.

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, CONTRACTOR shall abide by the "stay-put" requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.

Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located, or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code section 56366(c) (2).

7. **DEFINITIONS**

The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract:

- a. The term "CONTRACTOR" means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the California Department of Education and its officers, agents, and employees.
- b. The term "authorized LEA representative" means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible for NPS/A. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA. The LEA maintains sole responsibility for this Contract, unless otherwise specified in this Contract.
- c. The term "credential" means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(g).
- d. The term "qualified" means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and related services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which the individual is providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards contained in the California Business and Professions Code.

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations. (Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (r)).

e The term "license" means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or refer to themselves using a specified professional title including but not limited to mental health and board and care services at a residential placement. If a license is not available through an appropriate state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at the national or state level which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(1).

f. "Parent" means:

- i. a biological or adoptive parent; unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal authority to make educational decisions for the child,
- ii. a guardian generally authorized to act as the child's parent or authorized to make educational decisions for the child,
- iii. an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally responsible for the child's welfare,

- iv. a surrogate parent,
- v. a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational decisions on the child's behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2).

Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the NPS/A under contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services for a child. (California Education Code section 56028).

- g. The term "days" means calendar days unless otherwise specified.
- h. The phrase "billable day" means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs.
- i. The phrase "billable day of attendance" means a school day as defined in California Education Code Section 46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA.
- j. It is understood that the term "Master Contract" also means "Contract" and is referred to as such in this document.

ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT

8. NOTICES

All notices provided for by this Contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page of this Master Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of this Master Contract.

9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) years after the termination of this Master Contract. For purposes of this Master Contract, "records" shall include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision; daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional instructional assistants, NPA behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; behavior emergency reports (BER); incident reports; notification of injuries; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications bylaws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general journals; cash receipts and disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents; documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; evidence of electronic payments; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of CONTRACTOR's employees who have access to confidential records. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an access log for each student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, date/time of access for each individual requesting or receiving information from the student's record, and a description of the record(s) provided. Such log needs to record access to the student's records by: (a) the student's parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the student's parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student records. For purposes of this paragraph, "employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR" do not include subcontractors. CONTRACTOR shall grant the following access to student records, (a) the student's parent; (b) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record, and comply with parents' requests for copies of student records, as required by state and federal laws and regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school or agency closure, to forward student records within ten (10) business days to LEA. These shall include, but not limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, BER's, incident reports, notification of injuries and all other relevant reports. LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request within five (5) business days.

10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect.

11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST

This contract binds CONTRACTOR's successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of any change of ownership or corporate control.

12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the County where the LEA is located.

13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. The party seeking such modification shall provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days' notice of any such changes or modifications made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which the modification or changes are based.

14. TERMINATION

This Master Contract or ISA may be terminated for cause. The cause shall not be the availability of a public class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the public school program at an IEP team meeting. To terminate the contract either party shall give no less than twenty (20) days prior written notice (California Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of termination, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under this Master Contract. ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section 5 or 6. CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause. To terminate the ISA, either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice.

15. INSURANCE

CONTRACTOR shall, at CONTRACTOR'S sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the term of this Contract, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the work or any component or part thereof:

PART I - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AND AGENCIES

A. **Commercial General Liability Insurance**, including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$2,000,000 per occurrence \$ 500,000 fire damage \$ 5,000 medical expenses \$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury \$3,000,000 general aggregate \$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual molestation or abuse. In the event that CONTRACTOR's policy should have an exclusion for sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a supplemental policy providing such coverage.

- B. **Workers' Compensation Insurance** in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- C. **Commercial Auto Liability Insurance** for all owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a \$1 million combined single limit.

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.

If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from students' homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements.

D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage,

<u>including</u> Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits:

\$1,000,000 per occurrence \$2,000,000 general aggregate

E. CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this Contract and periodically thereafter upon request, shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage. The certificate of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name the LEA and the Board of Education additional insured's premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by

CONTRACTOR and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR's obligations under this contract at no additional charge.

- F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above \$100,000 must be declared to and approved by the LEA. At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR's sole cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation.
- G. For any claims related to the services performed in connection with this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR's insurance coverage shall be the primary insurance with respect to the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- H. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on the certificate.

PART II - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED WITH A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY ("RTC")

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS affiliated with a **residential treatment center (NPS/RTC**), the following insurance policies are required:

A. **Commercial General Liability** including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$3,000,000 per occurrence \$6,000,000 in General Aggregate.

The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as *named* additional insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC's insurance primary despite any conflicting provisions in the RTC's policy. Coverage shall be maintained with no Self-Insured Retention above \$100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA.

- B. **Workers' Compensation Insurance** in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- C. Commercial Auto Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the RTC provides student bus services, the required coverage limit is \$5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence.
- D. **Fidelity Bond** or **Crime Coverage** shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all employees who process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be \$250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured retention.
- E. **Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice** coverage with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.

F. **Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage**, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations.

16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors ("LEA Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of CONTRACTOR, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall arise immediately upon tender of a claim or lawsuit to the CONTRACTOR. The LEA and the Member District(s) shall have the right in their sole discretion to select counsel of its choice to provide the defense at the sole cost of the CONTRACTOR or the applicable insurance carrier.

To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors ("CONTRACTOR Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance thereof, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by the negligent, intentional act or willful act or omission of LEA, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR Indemnities).

LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the State of California, that the self-insurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that its self-insurance covers the LEA's indemnification obligations under this Master Contract.

17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this Contract as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed to create any association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.

If the LEA is determined to be a partner, joint venture, co-principal, employer or co-employer of CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that determination, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.

18. SUBCONTRACTING

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract. In the event LEA determines that it can provide the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s). If LEA elects to provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of receipt of CONTRACTOR's original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s).

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the fullest extent reasonably possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the provision of special education and/or related services (including, but not limited to, transportation) for any student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term of each subcontract. Such subcontractor's insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15. Each subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage required by Section 15. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor's work commences. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the LEA Board of Education as additional insured.

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master Contract. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the LEA contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate. In addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in Section 45 Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.

19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and Government Code Section 1090 including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student's advocate. Pursuant to California Education code section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not recommend placement at CONTRACTOR's facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of interest.

The LEA shall neither execute an ISA with CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special education and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR to the student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e., before or after the student is enrolled in CONTRACTOR's school/agency) or whether an assessment of the student is performed or a report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation (hereinafter referred to as "IEE") and its recommendations, the LEA may not fund an IEE by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom the IEE is requested. Likewise, the LEA may not fund services through the evaluator whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund. When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an individual who is or was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty-five (365) days prior to executing this contract. This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated instruction and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to ten months of the school year by LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a private pay or tuition free "scholarship" basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to pursue funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings.

20. NON-DISCRIMINATION

CONTRACTOR shall not, in employment or operation of its programs, unlawfully discriminate on the basis of gender, nationality, national origin, ancestry, race, color, ethnicity, ethnic group affiliation, religion, age, marital status, pregnancy or parental status, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or expression, physical or mental disability, genetic information or any other classification protected by federal or state law or the perception of one or more of such characteristics or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE)

The LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition Plan (hereinafter referred to as "ITP") of each student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services (including transition services) to each student within the NPS/A consistent with the student's IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall not accept a student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services outlined in the student's IEP. If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease.

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities, as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the student's enrollment under the terms of this Master Contract). LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low incidence disabilities when specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the NPS. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations. CONTRACTOR may charge a student's parent(s) for services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed by the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of financial responsibility.

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education shall not interfere with the student's receipt of special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and PARENT agree otherwise in writing.

22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION

All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 *et seq.*..

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, assistive technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Students shall have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted Common Core State Standards ("CCSS") for curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive;

and provide standards – aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, used by an LEA, that contracts with the NPS: (b) college preparation courses; (c) extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college counseling.

When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades 9 through 12 inclusive, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading toward graduation or completion of LEA's diploma requirements. CONTRACTOR shall not award a high school diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA's graduation requirements.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA and CDE guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. The NPA providing Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written plan that specifies the nature of their NPA service for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA. Schoolbased services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or provided at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team. Except for services provided by a CONTRACTOR that is a Licensed Children's Institution (LCI), all services not provided in the school setting require the presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, provided such guardian or caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as requested. LCI CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is present during the provision of services under this Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA in writing if no parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a written description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date of this Master Contract. CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention services must have a trained behaviorist or trained equivalent on staff. It is understood that Behavior Intervention services are limited per CDE Certification and do not constitute as an instructional program.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing.

23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP and ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and passing time shall be at the same level that Ed. Code prescribes for the LEA.

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

24. CLASS SIZE

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of one teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing. Upon prior written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a

ratio of 1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to provide services to students with disabilities.

In the event a NPS is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to students, and the vacancy has direct impact on the CDE Certification of that school, the NPS shall develop a plan to ensure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated staff. The NPS and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may be increased to ensure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher. Such an agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties. This provision does not apply to a NPA.

CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs between the ages of three and five years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 et seq.

25. CALENDARS

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a school calendar with the total number of billable days not to exceed 180 days, plus extended school year billable days equivalent to the number of days determined by the LEA's extended school year calendar. Billable days shall include only those days that are included on the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or required by the IEP (developed by the LEA) for each student. CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school calendar and/or amend the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA. Nothing in this Master Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes.

Unless otherwise specified by the student's IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site. A student shall only be eligible for extended school year services as determined by the IEP team and the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA. Extended school year shall consist of twenty (20) instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP team convened by the LEA. Any days of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing, prior to the start of the extended school year.

Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school year and received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any NPS service. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA. Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, President's Day, Memorial Day and Independence Day. With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by the LEA.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA-developed/approved calendar prior to the initiation of services. CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe holidays as specified in the LEA-developed/approved calendar. CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to the LEA-developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. Unless otherwise specified in the LEA student's ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those days that the LEA student's school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school. CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the LEA calendar unless CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing. Student must have actually been in attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any NPA service provided by CONTRACTOR. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

26. DATA REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing information with LEA. CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide data related to all sections of this contract, including student discipline as noted below, and requested by and in the format required by the LEA. It is understood that all NPS/A shall utilize the LEA approved electronic IEP system for all IEP development, service tracking documentation, and progress reporting, unless otherwise agreed to by the LEA. Additional progress reporting may be required by the LEA. The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access.

Using forms developed by the CDE or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education Code sections 48900 and 48915. CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code sections 48900 and 48915.

The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for such data including, but not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports. The LEA may approve use of CONTRACTOR'S provided forms at their discretion.

27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive Environment ("LRE") options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate.

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP team consideration of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings.

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team's recommended activities to support the transition.

28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer all statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress ("CAASPP"), Desired Results Developmental Profile ("DRDP"), California Alternative Assessment ("CAA"), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness Gram, the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California ("ELPAC"), the Alternative English Language Proficiency Assessments for California ("Alternative ELPAC"), and as appropriate to the student, and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code section 52052, in the same manner as public schools. Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by the LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability program. LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR'S qualified staff. CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as required by LEA.

29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS

CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school graduation, standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, data collection, and standardized testing and IEPs. LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings. Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s).

30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 49005, *et seq.*, 56521.1 and 56521.2. LEA students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others must receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the federal law and it's implementing regulations. If the IEP team determines that a student's behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention Plan ("BIP"), the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student's behavioral problems through the development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all of its staff members are trained in crisis intervention, emergency procedures, and evidenced-based practices and interventions specific to the unique behavioral needs of the CONTRACTOR's pupil population. The training shall be provided within 30 days of employment to new staff who have any contact or interaction with pupils during the school day, and annually to all staff who have any contact or interaction with pupils during the school day. The CONTRACTOR shall select and conduct the training in accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1. CONTRACTOR shall maintain written records of the training and provide written verification of the training annually and upon request.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for a BIP, and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency interventions may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency.

CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is defined as a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others. It requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used. Emergencies *require* a behavior emergency report form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours for administrative action. CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone. If the student's IEP does not contain a BIP, an IEP team shall schedule a meeting to review the behavior emergency report, determine if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine an interim plan. If the student already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been exhibited or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective. CONTRACTOR shall schedule with LEA an IEP meeting within two (2) days.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following:

- 1.any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to, electric-shock;
- 2.an intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant sprays, mists, or substances in proximity to the face of the individual;
- 3.an intervention that denies adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities;
- 4.an intervention that is designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse, ridicule, or humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma;
- 5.restrictive interventions that employ a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, including the procedure known as prone containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques may be used by trained personnel as a limited emergency intervention;
- 6.locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room:

7.an intervention that precludes adequate supervision of the individual;

8. an intervention that deprives the individual of one or more of his or her senses.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with Education Code section 49005.8. Specifically, Contractor shall not do any of the following:

- 1. Use seclusion or a behavioral restraint for the purpose of coercion, discipline, convenience, or retaliation.
- 2. Use locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room.
- 3. Use a physical restraint technique that obstructs a pupil's respiratory airway or impairs the pupil's breathing or respiratory capacity, including techniques in which a staff member places pressure on a pupil's back or places his or her body weight against the pupil's torso or back.
- 4. Use a behavioral restraint technique that restricts breathing, including, but not limited to, using a pillow, blanket, carpet, mat, or other item to cover a pupil's face.
- 5. Place a pupil in a facedown position with the pupil's hands held or restrained behind the pupil's back
- 6. Use a behavioral restraint for longer than is necessary to contain the behavior that poses a clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the pupil or others.

CONTRACTOR shall keep constant, direct observation of a pupil who is in seclusion, which may be through observation of the pupil through a window, or another barrier, through which the educational provider is able to make direct eye contact with the pupil. This observation shall not be through indirect means, including through a security camera or a closed-circuit television.

CONTRACTOR shall afford pupils who are restrained the least restrictive alternative and the maximum freedom of movement, and shall use the least number of restraint points, while ensuring the physical safety of the pupil and others.

If prone restraint techniques are used by CONTRACTOR, a staff member shall observe the pupil for any signs of physical distress throughout the use of prone restraint. Whenever possible, the staff member monitoring the pupil shall not be involved in restraining the pupil.

In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child's learning or that of others, the IEP team shall consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations.

All restraint practices must be reviewed and revised when they have an adverse effect on a student and are used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or multiple uses by the same individual. CONTRACTOR shall notify the student's parent/guardian when any type of physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used. Upon the use of any type of physical or

mechanical restraint or seclusions of an LEA student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the reporting and notification requirements listed above.

31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with state and federal law and regulations. Using forms developed by the California Department of Education or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education Codes 48900 and 48915. CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code Sections 48900 and 48915.

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA. Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to: the student's name; the time, date, and description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such disciplinary action. A copy of the student's behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10th) day of suspension.

32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the NPS; and (3) whether changes to the student's IEP are necessary, including whether the student may be transitioned to a public school setting. (California Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii)) and pursuant to California Education Code section 56345 (b) (4).)

If the LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document a description of activities provided to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team. Except as otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student's IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting. Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It is understood that attendance at an IEP meeting is part of CONTRACTOR'S professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this Master Contract.

It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA for all IEP planning and progress reporting at the LEA's discretion. The LEA or SELPA may provide training for any CONTRACTOR to ensure access to the approved system. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain confidentiality of all IEP data on the approved system and shall protect the password requirements of the system. When a student dis-enrolls from the NPS/NPA, the NPS/NPA and LEA shall discontinue use of the approved system for that student.

Changes in any student's educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting provided under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student's IEP. In

the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student's IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change in the student's placement. Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement unless parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.

33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. Surrogate parents shall serve as the child's parent and have all the rights relative to the student's education that a parent has under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 1414-1482 and 34 CFR 300.1-300.756. A pupil in foster care shall be defined pursuant to California Education Code section 42238.01(b). The LEA shall annually notify the CONTRACTOR who the LEA has designated as the educational liaison for foster children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a NPS by the LEA any time after the completion of the pupil's second year of high school, the CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil in courses leading towards graduation based on the diploma requirements of the LEA unless provided notice otherwise in writing pursuant to Section 51225.1.

34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS

CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations and hearings, as requested by LEA. Participation further includes the willingness to make CONTRACTOR's staff available for witness preparation and testimony as is necessary to facilitate a due process hearing. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other state and/or federal governmental body or agency. Full participation shall include, but in no way be limited to, cooperating with LEA representatives to provide complete answers raised by any investigator and/or the immediate provision of any and all documentation that pertains to the operation of CONTRACTOR's program and/or the implementation of a particular student's IEP/Individual and Family Service Plan ("IFSP").

35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent complaints. These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students with appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 *et seq.*; (2) Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) (d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ("HIPAA"). CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA of any complaints filed against it related to LEA students and provide LEA with all documentation related to the complaints and/or its investigation of complaints, including any and all reports generated as a result of an investigation.

36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS

Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall provide to parents at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards. At a minimum, progress reports shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives. A copy of the progress reports/report cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR's place of business and shall be submitted to the LEA and LEA student's parent(s) quarterly.

The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation used to determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data

sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior intervention plans. The LEA may request such data at any time within five (5) years of the date of service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data supporting progress within five (5) business days of request. Additional time may be granted as needed by the LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the student ten (10) days prior to the student's annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student's present levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices. CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient copies of its reports, documents, and projected goals to share with members of the IEP team five (5) business days prior to the IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation such as test protocols and data collection, which shall be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request.

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, progress reporting and development of present levels of performance. All assessments resulting from an assessment plan shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that CONTRACTOR perform such additional assessment. Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be added to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at the LEA's sole discretion.

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA. For NPA services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 3065, shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA. Supervision means the direct observation of services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each professional's license, certification, or credential.

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student's parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report cards, evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, and/or meetings. It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil's record and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request.

37. TRANSCRIPTS

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester, or upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit them on LEA approved forms to the student's school of residence for evaluation of progress toward completion of diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of students and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA.

38. STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

Within five (5) school days from the date CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student's change of residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA, in writing, of the student's change of residence. Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation to notify CONTRACTOR of the student's change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents.

If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student's change of residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered following the student's change of residence.

39. WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5) business days when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services, including

student's change of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and parent/guardian withdrawal of student against professional advice from a NPS/RTC.

40. PARENT ACCESS

CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including, but not limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters, when applicable. CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA students.

CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent's reasonable request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC. CONTRACTOR shall require that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA at least thirty (30) days in advance. When requested, CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all parent travel and accommodations and for providing travel information to the parent as appropriate. Payment by LEA for approved travel-related expenses shall be made directly through the LEA consistent with LEA Procedures.

CONTRACTOR providing services in the student's home as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an emergency, is present. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization for emergencies. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider.

All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided, in writing, to the LEA.

41. LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION ("LCI") CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER ("RTC") CONTRACTORS

If CONTRACTOR is a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9 (c) (1), Health and Safety Code section 1501.1and any other applicable laws and/or regulations, including LEA guidelines or procedures. An LCI shall not require that a pupil be placed in its NPS as a condition of being placed in its residential facility.

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS/RTC, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1400 et seq. including the federal regulations 34 C.F.R section 300 et seq. and Education Code section 56000 et seq. including Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq.. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all monitoring requirements set forth in Section 43 below.

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as eligible for special education. For those identified as special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each student's IEP at the time of enrollment. A copy of the current IEP shall be provided to the LEA.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent or another adult with educational decision-making rights.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

42. STATE MEAL MANDATE

When CONTRACTOR is an NPS, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under California Education Code sections 49005 et seq.; 49501.5, the universal meal mandate enacted by AB 130 (2021-2022); 49530 et seq; and 49550 et seq.

43. MONITORING

When CONTRACTOR is an NPS, the LEA or SELPA shall conduct at least one onsite monitoring visit during each school year to the NPS at which the LEA has a pupil attending and with which it maintains a master contract. The monitoring visit shall include, but is not limited to, a review of services provided to the pupil through the ISA between the LEA and the NPS, a review of progress the pupil is making toward the goals set forth in the pupil's individualized education program, a review of progress the pupil is making toward the goals set forth in the pupil's behavioral intervention plan, if applicable, an observation of the pupil during instruction, and a walkthrough of the facility. The LEA or SELPA shall report the findings resulting from the monitoring visit to the California Department of Education within 60 calendar days of the onsite visit.

The LEA or SELPA shall conduct an onsite visit to the NPS before placement of a pupil if the LEA does not have any pupils enrolled at the school at the time of placement.

CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for additional periodic monitoring of each student's instructional program. LEA shall have access to observe each student at work, observe the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each student's records and progress. Such access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to CONTRACTOR's site administrative office. CONTRACTOR shall be invited to participate in the review of each student's progress.

If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, the CDE shall annually evaluate whether CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction ("Superintendent") shall monitor CONTRACTOR'S facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and (3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three.

CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA or CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the NPS, compliance with relevant state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-up or corrective action procedures related to review findings.

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause. The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California Education Code Section 33126.

PERSONNEL

44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237, 35021.1, 35021.2, and 56366.1 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as "CDOJ") and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers who will have or likely may have any direct contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers shall not come in contact with students until CDOJ and FBI clearance are ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with students, or subcontractors who may come into contact with students have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the employee's conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j). Upon request, clearance certification shall be submitted to the LEA. In addition, CONTRACTOR shall make a request for subsequent arrest service from CDOJ as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2. Contractor shall certify to LEA that they have successful background checks and enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service for all employees who may come into contact with students.

Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each owner, operator, and employee of the NPS/A. CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency. Background clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service, as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.

45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations sections 3001(r), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified staff may only provide related services within the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession, and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher's scope of practice.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided to the CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)).

In accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1(a)(5), when CONTRACTOR is a NPS, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development. The administrator of the NPS holds or is in the process of obtaining one of the following: (A) An administrative credential granted by an accredited postsecondary educational institution and two years of experience with pupils with disabilities. (B) A pupil personnel services credential that authorizes school counseling or psychology. (C) A license as a

clinical social worker issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (D) A license in psychology regulated by the Board of Psychology. (E) A master's degree issued by an accredited postsecondary institution in education, special education, psychology, counseling, behavioral analysis, social work, behavioral science, or rehabilitation. (F) A credential authorizing special education instruction and at least two years of experience teaching in special education before becoming an administrator. (G) A license as a marriage and family therapist certified by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (H) A license as an educational psychologist issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (I) A license as a professional clinical counselor issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (California Education Code Section 56366.1 (a)(5)). CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to the LEA upon request, documentation of its administrator's qualifications in accordance with the above.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections 45340 *et seq.* and 45350 *et seq.* Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to, instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications: (a) completed at least two (2) years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate's (or higher) degree; or (c) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and mathematics readiness, as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test clearance for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with any student.

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within forty-five (45) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or lawsuit, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. The LEA shall not be obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is providing services under this Master Contract. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

47. STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school and CONTRACTOR's classroom teacher is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to the LEA documentation of substitute coverage. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute for their student. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA representative.

48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME

It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified NPS/A shall adhere to the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services. All practices shall only be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made available to the CONTRACTOR.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by NPS/A providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus consistent with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall be made available to the CONTRACTOR upon request. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the instructional program.

CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student's school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in an emergency is present during provision of services. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home-based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR to parents or guardians, in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA.

HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES

49. HEALTH AND SAFETY

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 *et. seq.* and 49406, regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before an individual comes in contact with a student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code.

50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to: disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning permits; and occupancy capacity. When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire drills as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR's facilities as required complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49422 et seq. when CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication during the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the administration of such medication after the student's parent(s) provide to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the student's parent(s) granting CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician's statement. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student to whom medication is administered. Such written log shall specify the student's name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR's employee who administered the medication. CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for storing medications in a secure location and ensuring appropriate staff training in the administration of such medication consistent with physician's written orders. Any change in medication type, administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.

52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures specified in LEA Procedures.

53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. To protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e., reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted to the LEA.

54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR's policy, as well as federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and related procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1.

55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN

CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 49370. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA. The written statement shall be submitted as specified by the LEA.

FINANCIAL

56. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND BILLING PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall assure that the nonpublic school or nonpublic agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to implement the IEP and ISA for each and every student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA Procedures, as well as provide all such records requested by LEA concerning the same. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services specified in the student's IEP and ISA. All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Contract and governed by all applicable federal and state laws.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides. Original attendance forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter. CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being billed for payment.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall be properly submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA. At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed to by the LEA; name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA administrator authorizing that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when the service was provided.

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract. At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training.

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period in which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) days of LEA's receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in

California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA.

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond December 31st after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling for the Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, but no later than twelve (12) months from the close of the fiscal year. If the billing or re-billing error is the responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year. LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee.

57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT

LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole or in part, under the terms of this contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive services; (c) CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e) education and/or related services are provided to students by personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has not received prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning one or more students enrolled in CONTRACTOR's educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student's change of residence to another district or confirms the change of residence to another district, but fails to notify LEA within five (5) days of such confirmation; or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a student. It is understood that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months following the close of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.

Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for regular ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA. Such review or audit will be completed within ninety (90) days. The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected.

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding paragraph are as follows: (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of overpayment; (c) the portion of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been provided by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e) the proportionate amount of the invoice related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation is cured; or (f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the service provided to the student.

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA's withholding payment and the amount to be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA's withholding payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies or submit to LEA written documentation demonstrating that the basis or bases cited by the LEA for withholding payment is

unfounded. Upon receipt of CONTRACTOR's written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR's time to correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied.

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes payment should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR's notice within thirty (30) business days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes payment should not be made. If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the withholding of payment continues after the LEA's response to CONTRACTOR's notice, CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy.

After forty-five (45) business days: The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA's Representative of the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in writing within fifteen (15) business days.

After sixty (60) business days: The LEA or CONTRACTOR may appeal to the County Superintendent of Schools so long as the County Superintendent of Schools is not participating in the Local Plan involved in the NPS/A contract, or a mutually agreed upon mediator. Both parties agree to pay for their own costs and expenses arising out of such mediation. Each party agrees to act in good faith in participating in any mediation process agreed to by the parties.

58. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. CONTRACTOR shall provide prior written notice of the rights and protections required by Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations section 300.154(d) whenever it seeks to use the LEA students' public benefits to pay for special education and related services. Such notice shall be provided before seeking payment from Medi-Cal for the first time and annually.

59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE

Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute coverage pursuant to the LEA Procedures. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time. LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher.

Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in student's IEP.

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, no later than the tenth (10th) cumulative day of a student's unexcused absence, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence.

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California Education Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307. LEA shall not pay for services provided on days that a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under state law. *Per Diem* rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted on a pro rata basis in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was served. LEA shall not be responsible for payment of related services for days on which a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance ("ADA") reimbursement under state law, nor shall student be eligible for make-up services.

NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. LEA shall not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and LEA. In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not provided shall be included.

NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later than the fifth (5th) consecutive service day of the student's absence. LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services when a student is absent.

60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY

The following shall apply in the event of a LEA or NPS school closure due to an emergency consistent with guidelines followed by LEAs in accordance with Education Code sections 41422 and 46392:

- a. If CONTRACTOR remains open, if allowed, during an emergency and serves students appropriately as delineated in the ISA, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment, regardless of whether a sending LEA is open or closed.
- b. NPS School Closure- In the event of a NPS School Closure for the reasons set forth in Education Code section 41422, if the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance due to CONTRACTOR'S school closure. If the LEA is unable to obtain an alternative placement, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the student's approved ISA, as though the student were continuing his/her regular attendance, until an alternative placement can be found and implement LEA student IEP in accordance with Education Code section 56345(a)(9) pertaining to emergency conditions.
- c. LEA and NPS School Closure- In the event of the LEA and NPS School Closures, on days the LEA is funded, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the student's approved ISA, until an alternative placement can be found and implement LEA student IEP in accordance with Education Code section 56345(a)(9) pertaining to emergency conditions. If the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance with CONTRACTOR due to CONTRACTOR'S school closure.

When the emergency school closure is lifted, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEAs it serves of any lost instructional minutes. CONTRACTOR and LEAs shall work collaboratively to determine the need for make-up days or service changes, and shall work together to amend IEP and ISA paperwork as appropriate.

61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to: student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides, bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, documents evidencing other qualifications, , dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Such access shall include unannounced inspections by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR's offices (to be specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. All records shall be provided to LEA within five (5) working days of a written request from LEA. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide assistance for such examination or audit. LEA's rights under this section shall also include access to CONTRACTOR's offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR's employees. If any document or evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA agrees to the use of the electronic format.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA's written notice demanding payment.

62. RATE SCHEDULE

The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and maximum dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific services. Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on the required minimum number of minutes per grade level as set forth in paragraph 23, above, and in California Education Code Section 46200-46208.

Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A.

63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that:

- (a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are <u>not</u> presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency, and
- (b) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these offenses.

The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives. This contract is effective on the 1^{st} day of July, 2023 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2024, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

CONTRACTOR	LEA			
Braille Abilities Nonpublic School/Agency	Guajome Park Academy LEA Name			
By:	By:			
Signature Date	Signature Date			
Name and Title of Authorized Representative	Kevin Humphrey, Superintendent Name and Title of Authorized Representative			
Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to:	Notices to LEA shall be addressed to:			
Name and Title	Name and Title Karen Whitworth, Special Education Coordinator			
Nonpublic School/Agency/Related Service Provider	LEA			
	Guajome Park Academy			
Address	Address 2000 N. Santa Fe Ave			
City State Zip	City State Zip Vista CA 92083			
Phone Fax	Phone Fax 760-631-8500 ext 1123 760-631-8503			
Email	Email whitworthka@guajome.net			
	Additional LEA Notification (Required if completed)			
	Name and Title			
	Address			
	City State Zip			
	Phone Fax			
	Email			

EXHIBIT A: 2023-2024 RATES

4.1 RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONTRACT YEAR

The CONTRACTOR: <u>Braille Abilities</u> The CONTRACTOR CDS NUMBER:				
PER ED CODE 56366 – TEACHER-TO-PUPIL RATIO:				
Maximum Contract Amount:				
Education service(s) offered by the CONTRACTOR and the charge	es for such service(s) d	luring the term of this contract shall be as	follows:	
1) <u>Daily Basic Education Rate:</u>				
2) Inclusive Education Program (Includes Educational Counseling (not ed related mental health) services, Speech & Language services, Behavior Intervention Planning, and Occupational Therapy as specified on the student's IEP.) DAILY RATE:				
3) Related Services				
SERVICE	<u>RATE</u>	PERIOD		
Intensive Individual Services (340)				
Language and Speech (415)		<u> </u>		
Adapted Physical Education (425)				
Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (435)				
Health and Nursing: Other Services (436)				
Assistive Technology Services (445)				
Occupational Therapy (450)				
Physical Therapy (460)				
Individual Counseling (510)				
Counseling and Guidance (515)				
Parent Counseling (520)				
Social Work Services (525)				
Psychological Services (530)				
Behavior Intervention Services (535)				
Specialized Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610)				
Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing (710)				
Interpreter Services (715)				
Audiological Services (720)				

Specialized Vision Services (725)	\$135.00	1 Hour
Orientation and Mobility (730)		_
Specialized Orthopedic Services (740)		_
Reader Services (745)		_
Transcription Services (755)		
Recreation Services, Including Therapeutic (760)		_
College Awareness (820)		_
Work Experience Education (850)		_
Job Coaching (855)		_
Mentoring (860)		_
Travel Training (870)		
Other Transition Services (890)		
Other (900)		
Other (no code)		

INDEPENDENT EDUCATIONAL EVALUATION SERVICE AGREEMENT

This INDEPENDENT EDUCATIONAL EVALUATION SERVICE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is entered into by and between _Guajome Park Academy, a local educational agency (the " <u>LEA</u> "), and _Bridge the Gap Sped (" <u>Evaluator</u> ") as of August 25, 2023 (date).
WHEREAS, the LEA is in need of an Independent Education Evaluation as defined by 34 C.F.R. § 300.502;
WHEREAS, such services are made available at no cost to parents from public agencies;
WHEREAS, Independent Evaluator is specially trained, experienced, and competent to provide the special services required; and
WHEREAS, such services are needed on a limited basis;
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:
1. SCOPE OF SERVICES:
Independent Evaluator shall provide the following services:
Adaptive Physical Education Assessment
Services shall be delivered at LEA sites such as schools and administrative facilities, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LEA and Independent Evaluator.
2. TERM OF AGREEMENT
The Independent Evaluator will commence providing services under this Agreement on8/28/2023 (date), and will diligently perform as required and complete performance by9/28/2023 (date). Independent Evaluator shall be under the control of the LEA as to the result to be accomplished but not as to the means or manner by which such result is to be accomplished. Accordingly, the Agreement is by and between two independent agencies and is not intended to and shall not be construed to create the relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture, or association. The Evaluator understands and agrees that it shall be responsible for providing its own salaries, payroll taxes, withholding, insurance, worker's compensation coverage and all other benefits of any kind, as required by law, for its own employees, and assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this Agreement.
3. QUALIFICATIONS

The Independent Evaluator warrants that it is qualified to perform the services under this Agreement, and that it meets all minimum qualification standards imposed by law or by any of the following entities: the LEA, the California Department of Education, the County Office of Education, or the special education local plan area.

Evaluator shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among his/her employees and shall not employ or work any unfit person or anyone not skilled in work assigned to him or her. Any person in the employ of Independent Evaluation whom the LEA may deem incompetent or unfit shall be dismissed from the job site and shall not again be employed at site without written consent of the LEA. All employees of Independent Evaluator who will be in individual contact with students must have a valid fingerprint and background check completed prior to undertaking responsibilities.

Independent Evaluator further understands and agrees that it shall be responsible for providing its own salaries, payroll taxes, withholding, insurance, workers compensation coverage and all other benefits of any kind, as required by law, for its own employees, and assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this Agreement.

The Independent Evaluator and all of its employees, agents, and sub-contractors shall secure and maintain in force, at Independent Evaluator's sole cost and expense, such licenses and permits as required by law, in connection with the furnishing of services, materials, or supplies herein listed.

4. PUPIL INFORMATION

The LEA will prepare and furnish to the Independent Evaluator, upon request, such information as is reasonably necessary to the performance of the Independent Evaluator under this Agreement.

As an independent evaluator performing services for the LEA, Independent Evaluator understands that he or she has been or may be granted access to student records which contain individually identifiable information which is protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 ("FERPA"). Independent Evaluator hereby agrees, in accordance with the provisions of FERPA, to preserve the confidentiality of any and all student records that he or she views or has access to during the course of the working relationship with the LEA.

Independent Evaluator understands that access to student records is granted solely on the need to fulfill his or her contractual responsibilities and that he or she will not copy, store, disclose or otherwise use such information except in the fulfillment of these responsibilities.

Independent Evaluator acknowledges that he or she fully understands that the intentional disclosure of this information to any unauthorized person could subject Independent Evaluator to criminal and civil penalties imposed by law. Independent Evaluator further acknowledges that such willful or unauthorized disclosure also violates LEA policy and could constitute cause for termination of the relationship with the LEA, regardless of whether criminal or civil penalties are imposed.

5. STATUTORY/LEGAL COMPLIANCE

Independent Evaluator shall perform its IEE in accordance with the requirements of California Education Code § 56320, and any assessment or evaluation report prepared by the Independent Evaluator shall conform to the requirements of California Education Code § 56327. These statutes are fully incorporated into the Agreement by this reference and made a part hereof. In addition to any other laws specified in this Agreement, Independent Evaluator shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances, including but not limited to those laws pertaining to workers' compensation.

6. WRITTEN REPORT

As part of the contracted evaluation, Independent Evaluator shall release their assessment information including protocols and results directly to the LEA prior to the receipt of payment for services. Upon request, the report containing all necessary assessment and eligibility sections shall be provided to the LEA five (5) days prior to the date of the IEP meeting. The LEA shall receive the report no later than the same date Student's family receives the report. The results of the independent evaluation will be considered in making educational decisions as required by applicable law.

7. PAYMENT

Independent Evaluator shall submit an invoice including dates of assessment, observation(s), and hourly rates to LEA upon completion of the evaluation. LEA shall pay the Independent Evaluator __\$95____ per hour, not to exceed ____\$285____ in total for services provided pursuant to this Agreement. Payment shall be made upon receipt of the written report provided pursuant to the terms of this Agreement in accordance with the LEA's normal billing cycles.

8. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall terminate on the last day of service as provided above except:

- a. LEA may terminate at any time if Independent Evaluator does not perform, or refuses to perform according to this Agreement.
- b. LEA may terminate services of Independent Evaluator at any time if, in the professional judgment of the LEA representative named herein, Independent Evaluator's performance is unsatisfactory as to the manner of performance or the product of said performance fails to meet LEA's requirements.
- c. In the event of early termination, Independent Evaluator shall be paid for all work or services performed to the date of termination together with an amount of approved expenses due and owing.
- d. Written notice by LEA shall be sufficient to cease further performance of services by Independent Evaluator. The notice shall be deemed given when received by Independent Evaluator or not later than three days after the date of mailing, whichever is sooner.

9. HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT

Independent Evaluator agrees to and shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify LEA, its officers, agents, and employees from every claim or demand and every liability or loss, damage, or expense of any nature whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of:

- a. Liability for damages for death or injury to person or property, or any other loss, damage or expense sustained by the Independent Evaluator or any person, firm or corporation employed by the Independent Evaluator upon or in connection with the services called for in this Agreement, except for liability for damages referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the LEA, its officers, employees, or agents.
- b. Any injury to or death of persons or damage to property, sustained by any persons, firm or corporation, including the LEA, arising out of, or in any way connected with the services covered by this Agreement, regardless of the location where the injury was suffered, except for liability for damages which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the LEA, its officers, employees, or agents.

The foregoing defense and indemnity obligations shall survive the termination of the Agreement. At all times when this Agreement is in effect, the Independent Evaluator, at Independent Evaluator's sole expense, shall maintain in full force and effect a policy of comprehensive general liability insurance.

10. ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT

Independent evaluator shall not assign nor transfer by operation of law or otherwise any or all rights, burdens, duties, or obligations under this Agreement without prior written consent of the LEA. Any

assignment not approved in writing is void. To the extent the parties agree to an assignment or subcontract, such subcontracts or assignments may be entered into only with providers which possess the required qualifications for performance of an IEE. Any subcontractor or assignee shall be bound by all of the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to all indemnification provisions.

11. ANTI-DISCRIMINATION

It is the policy of the LEA that in connection with all work performed under agreements, there shall be no discrimination against any employee engaged in the work because of race, religion, ethnic background, or national origin, language, gender, sexual orientation, economic status, physical or developmental disabilities, or other special needs, and therefore the Independent Evaluator agrees to comply with the applicable Federal and California Laws, including but not limited to the California Fair Employment & Housing Act and applicable regulations.

12. INSURANCE

The Independent Evaluator shall not commence work under this Agreement until it has obtained the insurance required under this paragraph and satisfactory proof of such insurance has been submitted and approved by the LEA. Except for worker's compensation insurance, the policy shall not be amended or modified, and the coverage amounts shall not be reduced without the LEA'S written consent. LEA shall be named as an additional insured and be furnished thirty (30) days written notice prior to cancellation.

- a. The Independent Evaluator shall procure and shall maintain during the life of this agreement Worker's Compensation Insurance on all of its employees to be engaged in work on the project under this agreement.
- b. The Independent Evaluator shall procure and maintain during the life of this agreement, a policy of Public Liability Insurance in the amount of \$1,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage, which policy shall name LEA an additional insured.

13. EMPLOYEE OF ANOTHER PUBLIC AGENCY

Independent Evaluator, if an employee of another public agency, certifies that Independent Evaluator will not receive salary or remuneration, other than vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are actually being performed pursuant to this Agreement. While engaging in carrying out other terms and conditions of this Agreement, Independent Evaluator is an independent contractor, and not an officer, employee, agent, partner, or joint venture of the LEA.

14. MODIFICATION

This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written document signed by authorized representatives of LEA and Independent Evaluator.

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes any prior or contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated.

16. GOVERNING LAW

The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California with venue in _____San Diego_____County, California.

17. SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed.

IDEPENDENT EVALUATOR		LEA			
Signature		Signature			
Date		Date			
		Kevin Humphrey			
Printed Name		Printed Name			
		2000 N. Santa Fe Ave			
Address		Address			
		Vista, CA 92083			
City, State, Zip		City, State, Zip			
		760-631-8500			
Phone No.	Fax No.	Phone No.	Fax No.		

Federal ID for Business/Social Security No. for Individuals

GUAJOME SCHOOLS

Nonpublic Agencies Listing 2023-2024

Contract Effective Date	Nonpublic Agency Name	Description of Services	Current Need	Tuition and/or Fee
7/1/2023 - 6/30/2024	Braille Abilities	Vision Itinerant Teacher and Orientation and Mobility Services	Between 2-3 students per school year	 Teacher of Visually Impaired \$135/hour Orientation and Mobility \$135/hour Transcription \$40/hour Assessment \$175/hour
8/28/2023 - 9/28/2023	Bridge the Gap SPED	Adaptive PE Assessment	1 student	Assessment \$95/hour
7/1/2023 - 6/30/2024	North County Family Counseling Services	Mental Health Services	Between 10-20 students per school year	 Individual Counseling \$95/hour Counseling and Guidance \$125/hour Parent Counseling \$100/hour Psychological Services \$95/hour Assessment \$95/hour
7/1/2023 - 6/30/2024	Specialized Therapy Services	Behavioral Support (BCBA, RBT)	Between 5 and 15 students	Behavior Intervention\$130/hourBehavior tech \$45/hour
7/1/2023 - 6/30/2024	North County Academy	Nonpublic school for educational and mental health services	2 Students	Educational cost \$446.09/day Mental Health cost \$90.96/day

GPA TRIP AUTHORIZATION/TRANSPORTATION REQUEST

SCHOOL/DEPARTMENT USE ONLY

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ORIGINATOR:

- 1. Refer to GPA Administrative Procedures (A.P.) 6102.
- Use separate form for each trip requested.

 Submit request to site administrator at least twenty (20) working days prior to date of in-county trips and thirty-five (35) days for out of county or overnight trips, as these require Board approval. In the case of the latter, site administrator presents form to the Board.

4. Obtain parent permission for each student. (GPA Form F	200.)
VEHICLE REQUIREMENTS	DESTINATION
NUMBER OF INDIVIDUALS ON TRIP Students: (Grade Level(s))	Place of Visit CIMI - fox Landing
Names of Teachers/Staff: (please print)	Avalon
2 Wunder	Catalina Classic Cruise S List any High Risk Activity:
5 Parents & Other Adults	Overnight Trip Yes No
Adult/Student tio Met Yes No	If an overnight trip, has fingerprinting requirement for adult(s) been addressed? Yes No
MODE OF TRANSPORTATION	Out-of-County Trip Yes No
Public	Planned Stops Yes # No No
TypeSQuantity	If planned stops, list location(s) (Atalma (1981)) Chisco Long Beach
000	Date of Arrival at Destination 9/13/23
Name Christal Mowel	Time of Arrival Olice of Panartura Olice
Title + Cally	Time of DepartureA.MP.M.
Telephone Number <u> </u>	FEES/COSTS 1
Guided Tour Yes No	Total Cost of Trip 377 17,040
Additional Instructions	Trip financed from the following:
	School Budget 💢 Fundraising 🗆 Donations 🗷
	GPA Foundation Grant Grant
	(Name) Other □
PURPOSE/SELECTION/NOTIFICATION OF TRIP	
tem building	ns and environmental education,
How were students selected for this trip? All 5th	60.00
	Attach all existing flyers and notices to this request)
Name of Originator histal mare School Site	0.000
Signature of Originator Position	+lallol Date Signed 8/21/23
SITE ADMINIS	TRATOR USE ONLY
[X] Approved [] Disapproved – Reason	
Signature of Site Administrator Knobay arias	Date Signed
OUT-OF-COUNTY/OVERNIGHT: Board Approval No	t required Required
CENTRAL ADMINISTR	RATION OFFICE USE ONLY
[] Approved [] Disapproved – Reason	
	Data Signad
Signature of Charter School Superintendent or Designee	Date Signed

5th Grade Science Camp!!!

Christal Moore • hace un año • Monday, Aug 22 at 10:00 AM • 5th Grade-Moore

Hello 5th Grade Families!

We are so excited to be going to science camp on Catalina Island this year! The date for our camp is rapidly approaching! We will go to camp on Monday, October 31st and we will return on Wednesday, November 2nd. Below I have included some of the details for camp. Please review this information, prior to Back to School night! I won't be going over the details, but I will leave time for questions. You can also submit questions on this Parent Square post, so that I am prepared to answer them!

Science Camp Details:

- We will be going to the Fox Landing part of Catalina Island. You can explore the things we will do at camp and the FAQs here: https://cimi.org/fox-landing/
- You can take a virtual tour of camp here: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=K9Uawk7WFNU
- Monday, October 31st--Meet at Guajome at 4:30 a.m. The bus will leave promptly at 5:15 a.m.
- Wednesday, November 2nd--We will leave the Long Beach pier around 4 p.m., so we will likely be home between 7pm and 8 pm
- We will have 4 chaperones join us. Some of them are staff members, and some are parents who were already cleared last year. 2 females and 2 males will join us, in addition to Ms. Moore and Ms. Wunder. If you have any questions about chaperones, please contact Mrs. Arias at ariasli@guajome.net
- Camp will cost \$250 (pending approval by the Guajome Foundation). The camp payment is due on September 30th.
- · If money is a concern, please reach out to your scholar's teacher, ASAP.
- · There is a trained nurse and health professionals on site, at camp.
- · If a family decides to keep their scholar home, they are still required to attend school.

Thank you so much for giving you scholar the chance to embark on this once in a lifetime opportunity! Please use the form on this post to ask any questions that I may not have answered. Those questions will be answered at Back to School Night. We can't wait for camp!

Form Input	
Complete by Wednesday, Aug 24	
Note: No action required. This form does not apply to your children	en.
Student Name	
Student ID#	
Student Grade Level	



SIGNATURE:

Please Print Name: ___

Parent/Legal Guardian

Rules for acceptance and participation in Guided Discoveries, Inc. programs are the same for everyone without regard to race, color, national origin, sex, or handicap.

Date:

STUDENT HEALTH FORM Cherry Cove Fox Landing Toyon Bay Student Name: Last: Gender: First: Address: _____ State: ____ Zip: _____ _____ City: ____ Parent/Guardian: Work Phone:____ ____ Cell Phone: ___ Address: City: State: Zip: Email: Weight____Student Age: ____Student Date of Birth: Height How would you rate your child's level of comfort in the water? Poor Average Great Health Insurance Co: Emergency Contact: Policy No: Address: City: _____ State: Phone: Family Physician: Phone: Phone: Relationship to Student: Date of Last Tetanus: IMPORTANT: A signature at the bottom of this form by a parent or DIETARY NEEDS: Vegetarian Vegan Lactose-Intolerant Gluten-Free Other legal guardian is required for participation at CIMI. FOOD ALLERGIES: Please Describe: EMERGENCY MEDICAL CONSENT: The Student's medical conditions and information stated on this application is complete and correct. I give permission to the CIMI camp staff and School chaperones to, (1) administer the Student's routine medications listed in this Application, as well as needed medications and overe thee counter medications for minor illness or discomfort; (2) in case of a medical emergency to provide appropriate first aid for minor injuries; and (3) seek further treatment from local physicians or hospitals if the medical condition warrants. In the event I cannot be reached in CHECK OFF: All applicable health issues: an emergency, I also give permission to the physician selected by CIMI or the School chaperone to examine, diagnose, and treat or secure proper treatment for the Student and hospitalize, and to order injection and/or anesthesia and/or surgery for the Student, as the physician shall determine proper and necessary under the circumstances. A photocopy of this Authorization shall be as valid and may be _Allergies* Allergy - Bee Sting* Asthma Backaches/Weak Back accepted as the original. This completed Application may be photocopied by CIMI and released to the physicians or hospitals if requested. This Consent is given pursuant to the provisions of California Car/Sea Sick Bowel/Bladder Problems Epilepsy/Convulsive Disorder Diabetes Family Code §6910. Hay Fever Headache CONSENT AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY: I, in my legal capacity as parent/guardian of the minor named below ("Minor"), acknowledge and agree that any use of CIMI facilities, services, Heart Trouble Poison Oak Sinus Issues Respiratory Problems** equipment and premises ("Facilities") and any participation in CIMI programs and activities Vomiting Sleep Walking ("Programs") comes with inherent risks including, but in no way limited to: (1) moderate and severe personal injury, (2) property damage, (3) disability, (4) death, and (5) sickness or disease, including but not limited to exposure to, contracting, or spreading COVID-19 or any virus. I voluntarily, for myself and Minor, accept and assume full responsibility for these risks as well as any and all other risks of the use *Is your child currently prescribed an EpiPen for allergies? YES NO If YES, the EpiPen must accompany your child to camp in order to participate in activities. of Facilities and participation in Programs. I agree that I have full knowledge of the nature and extent of **Does your child require an inhaler(s) on a daily basis and/or for exercise-induced activities? YES NOO. If YES, the inhaler(s) must accompany your child to camp in order to participate in activities. all such risks and am not relying on all such risks being described in this document, In consideration of Minor's use of Facilities and participation in Programs I, in my legal capacity as parent/guardian of Minor, agree on behalf of myself and Minor that CIMI, its officers, directors, agents, employees, volunteers, insurers and representatives ("Releasees") will not be liable for any personal injury, property damage, disability, death, sickness or disease incurred by Minor, however occurring including, but not limited to, the negligence of Releasees. I understand that Minor and I will be solely Please specify with YES or NO for each medication that can be responsible for any loss or damage, including personal injury, property damage, disability, death, sickness or disease sustained from the use of Facilities and participation in Programs. administered to your child. Pepto Bismol (upset stomach) Milk of Magnesia (for constipation) I further agree, in my legal capacity as the parent/guardian of Minor, on behalf of Minor, myself, Ibuprofen (minor aches pains; fever) and any and all legal successors and proxies, to release and HEREBY DO RELEASE, WAIVE AND Throat Lozenge/Cough Drop Benadryl (allergy) COVENANT NOT TO SUE Releasees from any causes of action, claims, suits, liabilities or demands of any nature whatsoever including, but in no way limited to, claims of negligence, which Minor, myself, and any and all legal successors and proxies may have, now or in the ___ Caladryl (for skin rash) future, against Releasees on account of personal injury, property damage, disability, death, sickness, Aceteminophen (headaches/elevated temperatures) disease or accident of any kind, arising out of or in any way related to the use of Facilities or participation in Programs, whether that participation is supervised or unsupervised, Bonine/Meclazine/Dramamine (motion sickness) however the injury or damage occurs, including, but not limited to, the negligence of Releasees. Is the student required to take regular medication? In further consideration of the use of Facilities and participation in Programs, I, in my legal capacity as parent/guardian of Minor, agree on behalf of myself and Minor to INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS Releasees from any and all causes of action, claims, demands, losses, suits, liabilities or costs of any nature whatsoever, including claims of negligence, arising out of or in any way related to NO (the use of Facilities and participation in Programs. All medications are administered by the chaperones I give permission for CIMI to use any photographs, video, or interview taken at camp to be used to illustrate, report, promote or advertise CIMI or Guided Discoveries programs or camps from the student's school. Please provide instructions, accivities, (dose) for administration of medication.

> WHAT IMPORTANT MEDICAL NEEDS SHOULD CIMI BE AWARE OF? PLEASE EXPLAIN IN DETAIL.

(Attach additional sheet if necessary.)



Dirección:

Email:

Altura___

Teléfono:

Nombre del estudiante: Apellido:

Padre/tutor:____

Contacto de emergencia:

Relación con el estudiante:

tutor legal firmen al final de este formulario.

Dirección:

Peso

[Logo: CIMI]

FORMULARIO DE SALUD DEL ESTUDIANTE

Escuela: OUQ jome

Cherry Cove □

_____Ciudad:

Dirección:

Fox Landing

Toyon Bay □

sovo = ron Bunamb	4	royon bay	June			
	—N	ombre:	Sexo: □ M □ F			
Ciudad:						
Teléfono móvil:_						
		Ciudad:				
Edad del estudia						
	C	amnañía da Caguras Mádica				
		ompañía de Seguros Médico				
Date And	N	º de póliza:				
Estado:	Te	eléfono:				
	M	édico de cabecera:	Teléfono:			
	F	echa de la última va <u>cuna contr</u>	a el tétano:			
l es necesario que los padres o el ario.		NECESIDADES DIETÉTICAS:	re a la lactosa □ Sin gluten □ Otros □			
ICIA: Las condiciones médicas del Estudiant						
oleta y correcta. Autorizo al personal del uela a, (1) administrar los medicamentos de	е у	ALERGIAS ALIMENTARIAS: Por fav	vor, describa:			
, así como los medicamentos necesarios y los	de					
es; (2) en caso de una emergencia médica ra lesiones menores; y (3) buscar tratamiento						
condición médica lo justifica. En caso de que 1 abién doy permiso al médico seleccionado por		MARCAR: Todos los problemas d	<u>le salud aplicables:</u>			
mine, diagnostique y trate o asegure el oltalice, y para que ordene inyecciones y/o médico determine que es apropiado y necesario thorization shall be as valid and may be		□ Alergias * □ Asma	 □ Alergia a la picadura de abeja * □ Dolores de espalda/espalda débil 			
		☐ Mareos en auto/mar	☐ Problemas de intestino/vejiga			
n puede ser fotocopiada por CIMI y entregada nsentimiento se da de acuerdo con las	a	☐ Diabetes ☐ Rinitis alérgica	 □ Epilepsia/trastorno convulsivo □ Dolor de cabeza 			
§6910.		☐ Problemas de corazón	☐ Roble venenoso			
ONSABILIDAD: Yo, en mi capacidad legal r"), reconozco y acepto que cualquier uso de las		☐ Problemas de sinusitis ☐ Sonambulismo	 □ Problemas respiratorios ** □ Vómitos 			
stalaciones") y cualquier participación en los			n para las alergias? SÍ 🗆 NO 🗀 . Si la			
con riesgos inherentes incluyendo, pero de oderadas y severas, (2) daños a la propiedad, (3) lo la exposición a, contraer o propagar COVID-19		respuesta es afirmativa, el EpiPen o	debe acompañar a su hijo al			
no la plena responsabilidad de estos riesgos, así		campamento para poder participar **: Necesita su hijo un inhalador a dia	4			
so de las Instalaciones y de la participación en lo a naturaleza y el alcance de todos esos riesgos y s en este documento,	S	**¿Necesita su hijo un inhalador a diario y/o para actividades relacionadas con el ejercicio? SÍ □ NO □ Si la respuesta es afirmativa, el inhalador o los inhaladores deben acompañar a su hijo al campamento para poder participar en				
icipación del menor en los programas, yo, en mi		las actividades.	ai campamento para poder participar en			
n mi nombre y en el del menor que CIMI, sus ios, aseguradores y representantes		Por favor, especifique marcano	do cada uno de los			
ión personal, daño a la propiedad, incapacidad, ; como quiera que ocurra, incluyendo, pero no que el menor y yo seremos los únicos		medicamentos que pueden ser	administrados a su			
lesiones personales, daños a la propiedad,		hijo. □Pepto Bismol (malestar e				
or el uso de las instalaciones y la participación e	11	□Leche de Magnesia (para □Ibuprofeno (dolores men				
		□Pastillas para la garganta	가 있다. () 4 (4) 가 있다면서 4 하 다			
mo padre/tutor del menor, en nombre del menor gales, en liberar y POR LA PRESENTE LIBERO,	5,	□Benadryl (alergia) □Caladryl (para el sarpulli	do de la piel)			
os exonerados de cualquier causa de acción, alquier naturaleza, incluyendo, pero sin limitars:	e a		de cabeza/temperatura elevada)			
smo, y todos los sucesores legales y apoderados los a causa de lesiones personales, daños a la		□Bonine/Meciazine/Drain	lanine (mareo por movimiento)			
nte de cualquier tipo, que se deriven del uso de l a sea que la participación sea supervisada o no,	as	El estudiante debe toma	ar regularmente la medicación?			
a lesión o el daño, incluyendo, pero sin limitarse a so de las instalaciones o de la participación en los		sí □	NO □			
i o no, independientemente de la forma en que se arse a, la negligencia de los exonerados.	9		<u>\$</u>			
eo o entrevista realizada en el campamento pa	ra I		os son administrados por a escuela del estudiante.			
s o campamentos de CIMI o Guided Discoveries.		Por favor, facilite las in	strucciones (dosis) para			
		la administración de la	See the substitute			
		¿QUÉ NECESIDADES MÉDI CONOCER ASTROCAMP? POR FA				
		JOHOGER ASTROCAMIT TOR FA	AT VAN DAV DE VOE EN DE LALLE.			

(Adjunte una hoja adicional si es necesario).

IMPORTANTE: Para participar en el CIMI es necesario que los padres o el

Ciudad:_____Estado:

CONSENTIMIENTO MÉDICO DE EMERGENCIA: Las condiciones médicas del Estudiante y la información declarada en esta solicitud es completa y correcta. Autorizo al personal del campamento CIMI y a los acompañantes de la escuela a, (1) administrar los medicamentos de rutina del Estudiante que figuran en esta Solicitud, así como los medicamentos necesarios y los de venta libre para enfermedades o molestias menores; (2) en caso de una emergencia médica proporcionar los primeros auxilios apropiados para lesiones menores; y (3) buscar tratamiento adicional de los médicos u hospitales locales si la condición médica lo justifica. En caso de que no se me pueda localizar en caso de emergencia, También doy permiso al médico seleccionado por CIMI o el acompañante de la escuela para que examine, diagnostique y trate o asegure el tratamiento adecuado para el Estudiante y lo hospitalice, y para que ordene inyecciones y/o anestesia y/o cirugía para el Estudiante, según el médico determine que es apropiado y necesario bajo dichas circunstancias. A photocopy of this Authorization shall be as valid and may be accepted as the original. Esta solicitud completada puede ser fotocopiada por CIMI y entregada a los médicos u hospitales si así lo solicitan. Este consentimiento se da de acuerdo con las disposiciones del Código de Familia de California §6910.

CONSENTIMIENTO Y EXENCIÓN DE RESPONSABILIDAD: Yo, en mi capacidad legal como padre/tutor del menor nombrado abajo ("Menor"), reconozco y acepto que cualquier uso de las instalaciones, servicios, equipos y locales de CIMI ("Instalaciones") y cualquier participación en los programas y actividades de CIMI ("Programas") viene con riesgos inherentes incluyendo, pero de ninguna manera limitado a: (1) lesiones personales moderadas y severas, (2) daños a la propiedad, (3) discapacidad, (4) muerte, y (5) enfermedad, incluyendo la exposición a, contraer o propagar COVID-19. Voluntariamente, por mí y por el menor, acepto y asumo la plena responsabilidad de estos riesgos, así como de todos y cada uno de los posibles riesgos del uso de las Instalaciones y de la participación en los Programas. Acepto que tengo pleno conocimiento de la naturaleza y el alcance de todos esos riesgos y que no confío en que todos esos riesgos estén descritos en este documento.

En consideración al uso de las instalaciones y a la participación del menor en los programas, yo, en mi capacidad legal como padre/tutor del menor, acepto en mi nombre y en el del menor que CIMI, sus funcionarios, directores, agentes, empleados, voluntarios, aseguradores y representantes ("Exonerados"), no serán responsables de ninguna lesión personal, daño a la propiedad, incapacidad, muerte, enfermedad o dolencia incurrida por el menor, como quiera que ocurra, incluyendo, pero no limitado a, la negligencia de los Exonerados. Entiendo que el menor y yo seremos los únicos responsables de cualquier pérdida o daño, incluyendo lesiones personales, daños a la propiedad, discapacidad, muerte, enfermedad o dolencia sufrida por el uso de las instalaciones y la participación en los programas.

Además, estoy de acuerdo, en mi capacidad legal como padre/tutor del menor, en nombre del menor, de mí mismo, y de todos los sucesores y apoderados legales, en liberar y POR LA PRESENTE LIBERO, RENUNCIO Y ME COMPROMETO A NO DEMANDAR a los exonerados de cualquier causa de acción, reclamos, juicios, responsabilidades o demandas de cualquier naturaleza, incluyendo, pero sin limitarse a las reclamaciones por negligencia, que el menor, yo mismo, y todos los sucesores legales y apoderados puedan tener, ahora o en el futuro, contra los exonerados a causa de lesiones personales, daños a la propiedad, discapacidad, muerte, enfermedad o accidente de cualquier tipo, que se deriven del uso de las instalaciones o de la participación en los programas, ya sea que la participación sea supervisada o no, independientemente de la forma en que se produzca la lesión o el daño, incluyendo, pero sin limitarse a, la negligencia de los exonerados. que se deriven del uso de las instalaciones o de la participación en los programas, ya sea que la participación sea supervisada o no, independientemente de la forma en que se produzca la lesión o el daño, incluyendo, pero sin limitarse a, la negligencia de los exonerados.

Autorizo a CIMI a utilizar cualquier fotografía, vídeo o entrevista realizada en el campamento para ilustrar, informar, promover o publicitar los programas o campamentos de CIMI o Guided Discoveries.

FIRMA: _ Padre/tutor legal

Por favor, nombre en letra imprenta: Las reglas de aceptación y participación en los programas de Guided Discoveries, Inc. son las mismas para todos sin importar la raza, el color, la nacionalidad, el sexo o la discapacidad.

Guajome Park Academy FORMULARIO DE CONSENTIMIENTO PATERNO

Para la	participación del alumn	o en una actividad/excursiói	n fuera del plantel esc	colar
Destino: CIh	nI-Catalina	a Is and Maestro Supe	rvisor: MOORe/U	runder
Fecha de la actividad:	13 de Sept.	- 15 de Sep	1 . '	
Hora de salida: 13 0	le Sept- 6 an	Hora de regreso: 15	de Sept. le	om
Tipo de transportación	: Autobús	Vehículo privado	Caminar	(
El alumno necesitará:	Dinero (cantidad/propósito	i-porel primer dia) opcional especifique) Clas Cosas	en la lista	-
El suscrito padre de fa ("GPA"), por la preser actividad o excursión o	nte estoy de acuerdo y voluntaria	edad amente permito al alumno mencior	, un alumno de Guajom nado a participar en todos l	ne Park Academy os aspectos de la
Permiso por el present necesarios mientras es	e se concede a cualquier adulto te en la excursión o actividad, si	para buscar y obtener cualquier asi se requieren de los servicios.	stencia médica y servicios	que sean
transportacion de un ven todas las demandas o cau negligencia de Guajome por el presente testimonio representantes, y acepto a presente testimonio recon incluyendo a causa de ne Por favor enliste el hista anteriores, heridas, lim	iculo privado, yo por el presente tessas de acción por daño personal o Park Academy (GPA) o de otra maio retiro de responsabilidad a GPA pindemnizar y eximir de toda responsozo que entiendo los efectos de regligencia. corial medico (eje.: alergias a meditaciones de actividades, recienta (a) necesita cuando sucede una servicios de servicios de una servicio de servicio servicio	s mencionada u otra actividad fuera de stimonio libero de responsabilidad por muerte acaeciendo al alumno o a otros nera, contra de GPA o cualquiera de su por daños y perjuicios para mi y mis he sabilidad a GPA de cualquier y todas litirar a GPA de toda clase de responsabilidad a GPA de tod	daños y perjuicios sufridos y s, o daño a propiedad si surge us oficiales, agentes, maestros rederos, ejecutores, administras demandas o causas de accibilidad por daños y perjuicios te, aguijón de abeja, enfer	retiro cualquier y e debido a la s, o empleados. Yo radores y ión. Yo por el s sufridos, medades
9 				ıçiı
En caso de una emerge	ncia si no se puede poner en cor	tacto con el padre/tutor, por favor	lame a:	
Nombre	Relación	Teléfono de casa/o	Celular/Trabajo	
Nombre	D-11/	TD 1/0	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	$\mathcal{L}^{f_{-1}}\mathcal{L}(\mathcal{L}^{f_{-1}})$
Nombre	Relación	Teléfono de casa/o	Celular/Trabajo	
Nombre del alumno	(imprima)	Padre/Tutor (por favor, esc.	riba in letra de molde)	
Lindsay a	nas 8/21/23	Dirección		200
Firma del Patrocinador/		Teléfono de casa/trabajo/ce	lular	
Dirección del alumno y	teléfono (si es diferente a la de	Firma de Padre/Tutor arriba):	Fecha	to the same
Dirección	Ciudad	Código postal	Teléfono	

Guajome Schools <u>PARENT PERMISSION FORM</u> For Student Participation in Off-Campus Activity/Field Trip

Λ-	For Student Partie	ipation in Oil-Campus			11, 6.
Destination: LT	MI-Catali	noi Islands	Supervising Tea	cher: MOORE	Wunder
Date of Activity:	Sept. 13-15	, 2023			<u> </u>
Departure Time: 56	pt. 13 - 6a	M Return Time:	Sept.1	5 - 6 pm	\circ
Type of Transportation:	$X_{\rm Bus}$	Private Vehicle		Walk	
Student will need:	Sack Lunch/Snack	ch: phonal pment (specify) (se	e pack	ing list)	
The undersigned parent hereby voluntarily agree	/guardian of es permission for said student to	a participate in all aspects	ge, a so	tudent of Guajome Sc amed field trip or acti	hools ("GS"), vity.
Permission is hereby gr such field trip or activit	anted to any adult to seek and o y, if services are required.	btain whatever medical as	ssistance and se	ervices deemed necess	sary while on
above-described field trip from liability and waive ar arising from the negligenc GS from liability for mysel	CLITY AND INDEMNIFICATION or other off-site activity (the "Activity and all claims or causes of action of Gajome Schools (GS) or other fand my heirs, executors, administ I hereby acknowledge that I unde	rity") which may include tran n for personal injury or deat rwise, against GS or any of i rators and assigns, and I sho	nsportation by a h occurring to th its officers, agen all indemnify and	private vehicle, I hereby ne Student or others, or p ts, teachers, or employee l hold harmless GS from	y voluntarily release property damage es. I hereby release
limitations, current med reaction occurs. Also in	dical history (e.g., drug, food, or ications). Include signs and syncholde side effects of current means are to be reached in the event of an or it be reached in the event of an or ication.	nptoms of an allergic reac dications. Please write "l	etion and what N/A" if this is n	treatment your child s	ctivity eeks when a
ir parenti guardian canne	to be reached in the event of an o	emergency, please contact	:		
Name	Relationship]	Home/Cell/Wo	rk Phone	
Name	Relationship]	Home/Cell/Wo	rk Phone	
Name of Student (plea	ase print)	Signature of Paren	t/Guardian	Date	
Lindsay a	nian 8/21/23	-	Address		
Signature of Sponsor/Ad	ministrator Date	Home Phone		Work Phone	
		Cell Phone			-
Student's address and tel	ephone (if different from above):			
Address	City	Zip	Phone		

CIMI PACKING LIST

There are many items that students will want to bring to CIMI. Some are necessary and some may just be extra baggage that they may never use. We advise guests to bring no more than they can comfortably carry. Guests will carry their luggage not only on and off the boat, but also several hundred yards to their sleeping accommodations. They will repeat that process on their day of departure. Unnecessary items should be left at home.

If students have cell phones, tablets, etc. for use during their travel to and from the island, we recommend that you collect and hold onto them until departure. **CIMI does not assume responsibility** for lost or stolen items. Please leave valuables at home.

Es	sential Items:	Op	tional items:	Do	not bring:
0	Water bottle	0	Sunhat		,, ,
0	Shirts	0	Sunglasses	0	Weapons of any kind
0	Shorts and pants	0	Flip flops	0	Alcohol or drugs
0	Raincoat or poncho	0	Camera	0	Fireworks
0	Underwear and socks	0	Pillow	0	Valuables
0	Sweatshirt or jacket	0	Small backpack	0	Cell phones, electronic
0	Shoes (closed toe and heel)	0	Money for souvenirs		devices
0	Beach & bath towels	0	Flashlight	0	Fishing gear
0	Swimsuit(s)	0	Personal snorkel gear	0	Curling iron/hair dryer
0	Toiletries	0	Warm hat (for colder	0	Anything not allowed at
0	Warm sleeping bag		months)		school is not allowed at CIMI
0	Sunscreen	0	Face masks		

Please pack personal gear in a suitable and well-marked bag with your name, address, and school name, and designated school color (i.e. with yarn). Luggage with wheels is best. Students will need to carry their luggage on/off the boat and the distance to their dorm area.

Please note: We do not provide bedding. You must pack your own. Sleeping bags work well. If you prefer sheets, our beds are twin sized.

Inclement weather: The weather on Catalina Island is usually very good. However, it is possible to have rain, wind, fog, or a combination of these conditions at any time. Programs will occur as planned or will be altered to meet the conditions. All students and chaperones should bring rain gear. If there are bad winds, it is possible that your boat transportation will be postponed until winds have died down.

LISTA DE EMPAQUE PARA CIMI

Hay muchos artículos que los estudiantes querrán traer a CIMI. Algunos son necesarios y otros pueden ser equipaje adicional que tal vez nunca utilicen. Aconsejamos a los huéspedes que no traigan más de lo que puedan llevar de manera cómoda. Los huéspedes llevarán su equipaje no solo dentro y fuera del barco, sino también a varios cientos de metros hasta sus dormitorios. Repetirán ese proceso el día de su salida. Los artículos innecesarios deben dejarse en casa.

CIMI no asume responsabilidad por artículos perdidos o robados. Deje los objetos de valor en casa.

Objetos esenciales:

- o Botella de agua
- o Camisas y shorts viejos
- o Jeans o pantalones viejos
- o Impermeable o poncho
- o Ropa interior/Calcetines
- Sudadera o chaqueta
- o Toalla de playa y de baño
- Traje de baño
- Artículos de tocador
- Saco de dormir calientito
- Zapatos cerrados
- Protector solar

Elementos opcionales:

- o Sombrero para el sol
- Gafas de sol
- o Chancletas
- o Cámara
- o Almohada
- Mochila pequeña
- o Dinero para souvenirs
- Traje de baño extra
- Máscara personal y snorkel
- Lentes de contacto
- o Gorro (para los meses más fríos)
- Mascarilla facial/Cubrebocas

No traiga:

- Cuchillos
- o Fusiles
- o Petardos
- Rizador de pelo/secador de pelo
- Artículos de valor
- Alcohol o drogas
- Dispositivos electrónicos
- o Pistolas de agua/globos
- Equipo de pesca
- Cualquier cosa que no esté permitida en la escuela no está permitida en CIMI]

Empaque el equipo personal en una bolsa adecuada y bien identificada con su nombre, dirección y nombre de la escuela, y el color designado de la escuela (por ejemplo, con hilo). El equipaje con ruedas es lo mejor. Los estudiantes deberán llevar su equipaje dentro y fuera del barco y a una corta distancia al área de dormitorios.

Considere: **no proporcionamos ropa de cama**. Debe empacar la suya. Los sacos de dormir funcionan bien. Si prefiere las sábanas, nuestras camas son dobles.

Inclemencias del tiempo: El clima en la isla Catalina por lo general es muy bueno. Sin embargo, es posible que haya lluvia, viento, niebla o una combinación de estas condiciones en cualquier momento. Los programas se llevarán a cabo según lo planeado o se modificarán de acuerdo a estas condiciones. Todos los estudiantes y acompañantes deben traer ropa de lluvia. Si hay vientos fuertes, es posible que el transporte de su barco se posponga hasta que los vientos se calmen.

Guajome Park Academy

2000 North Santa Fe. Avenue, Vista, CA 92083 Phone: 760-631-8500 Website: www.quaiome.net

Board of Directors REGULAR MEETING UNADOPTED MINUTES August 3, 2023

1. Public Session - Call to Order

Anna McAfee called the meeting to order in public session at 3:00 p.m. in Building 1, Student Services Building, Administrative Training Center.

Roll Call and Establishment of Quorum:

Members Present: Anna McAfee, Sylvia Harper, Debbie Duffy, Casey Semrow, Steve Kildoo (Steve Kildoo arrived at 3:44 p.m.)

Absent: None

2. Approval of Agenda

Moved by Sylvia Harper; second by Debbie Duffy; the Board unanimously approved the agenda with the following vote:

Yes: Anna McAfee, Sylvia Harper, Debbie Duffy, Casey Semrow

No: 0

Absent: Steve Kildoo

3. Workshop

A. Brown Act Training and Conflict of Interest Training

YM&C presented virtually the Brown Act Training and Conflict of Interest Training to the board.

4. Public Comments on Agenda Items

None

5. Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items

None

6. Head of Schools Report

Judd Thompson reported on the planning for the start of the school year, as well as general updates, back-to-school events, and upcoming new student orientations.

7. Superintendent Report

Kevin Humphrey reported on general school updates including the conceptual plans for the re-building of the Library/Resource Center and the upcoming Strategic Planning workshop scheduled for 10/13/23 and 10/14/23.

8. Board of Directors

A. Appoint Finance Committee

Anna McAfee called for volunteers to sit on the Finance Committee for the 2023/24 school year. Anna McAfee, Steve Kildoo, and Debbie Duffy were self-nominated to join the 2023/24 School Year Finance Committee.

Moved by Syliva Harper; second by Casey Semrow; the Board unanimously approved Anna McAfee, Steve Kildoo and Debbie Duffy as 2023/24 Finance Committee members with the following vote:

Yes: Anna McAfee, Sylvia Harper, Debbie Duffy, Casey Semrow, Steve Kildoo

No: 0 Absent: 0

9. Staff Report

A. Facilities Report

Kevin Humphrey presented the details of the summer maintenance completed on campus and current projects underway.

10. Fiscal Services

A. Instructional Minutes Adoption

Kevin Humphrey presented the 2023-2024 Instructional Minutes for adoption.

Moved by Debbie Duffy; second by Steve Kildoo; Board unanimously approved the adoption of the 2023-2024 Instructional Minutes with the following vote:

Yes: Anna McAfee, Sylvia Harper, Debbie Duffy, Casey Semrow, Steve Kildoo No: 0

Absent: 0

B. Consolidated Application Certification Statement

LEA's use the Consolidated Application and Reporting System (CARS) to electronically apply for, manage, report, and provide assurances that the district will comply with the legal requirements related to specific formulas driven by state and/or federal categorical programs. Kevin Humphrey presented the certification statement for board approval.

Moved by Sylvia Harper; second by Debbie Duffy; the Board unanimously approved the Consolidated Application Certification Statement with the following vote:

Yes: Anna McAfee, Sylvia Harper, Debbie Duffy, Casey Semrow, Steve Kildoo

No: 0 Absent: 0

11. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar motion is to expedite action on routine agenda items. All agenda action items that are not held for discussion at the request of a member of the audience or Board member will be approved as written as part of a single motion Consent Calendar Motion. No action items were held for discussion.

Moved by Sylvia Harper; second by Debbie Duffy; the Board unanimously approved the Consent Calendar with the following vote:

Yes: Anna McAfee, Sylvia Harper, Debbie Duffy, Casey Semrow, Steve Kildoo

No: 0 Absent: 0

Consent Calendar

- A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
 - 1. June 15, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting

12. Communication from the Board

None

13. Proposed Agenda Items for Future Meetings

None

14. Adjournment of Public Session

Anna McAfee adjourned the Public Session meeting at 4:18 p.m.